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On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of the Chinese
People Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) and all of its
subsidiaries (collectively the “"Group”), | am pleased to present
the Group’s annual report for the year ended 31 March 2008 to

the shareholders.

Year 2007 witnessed the sustainable, stable and rapid growth of
the Chinese economy. According to statistics released by the
National Bureau of Statistics of China, GDP of China was about
RMB24.7 trillion in 2007, an increase of 11.4% over the previous
year. For five consecutive years, the growth rate has been raising
over 10%. The sustainable growth of the Chinese economy
brought along swift growth of natural gas production and
consumption. In 2007, the total production volume of natural
gas in the PRC was around 69.3 billion cubic meters, an increase
of 18.4% over the previous year; total consumption of natural
gas was 67.3 billion cubic meters, an increase of 19.9% over the
previous year. The growth rate of natural gas production and
consumption rank the top among various energy sources. Natural
gas in the PRC, being a kind of clean and highly efficient energy,

occupied an even more prominent role in the energy structure.
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According to the “Development Plan for Energy in the 11th Five-
Year Plan” issued by the National Development and Reform
Commission in the PRC, the transmission pipeline network project
for oil and gas will be constructed under the framework of
“Transmitting oil and gas from West to East, Northeast to South,
Ocean to the Land”. In February 2008, the construction work of
the second pipeline under the west-east gas transmission project
commenced. It is expected that the whole project will be
completed by the end of 2011, by then the annual gas
transmission capacity will reach 30 billion cubic meters. In the
earlier of 2008, Fujian Province Liquefied Natural Gas (“LNG")
terminal began to handle LNG purchased from overseas. From
2009 onwards, Fujian Province will import LNG from Indonesia
(“Inshore of Indonesia LNG"), subject to a contract term of 25
years. The first phase under stabilized production period will
handle 2.6 million tons LNG per year, while the second phase is
expecting a planned handling capacity of 5 million tons LNG per
year. The perfection of natural gas infrastructure in the PRC will
be a meaningful step towards optimization of energy consumption
structure, balance in supply and demand of natural gas and
promotion of development of urban gas.

Despite since 2008 more uncertainties confronted by the economic
growth of China and various factors, the overall position is still
favorable. According to statistics, GDP of China in the first half
year of 2008 was RMB13,061.9 billion, an increase of 10.4%
over the last same period. It is sure that the sound development
of China economy will bring along greater demand on natural
gas. At the same time, the rapid surge of international crude oil
price, the reinforcement of national environmental protection
policy and the enhancement of environmental awareness among
citizens will definitely induce an increasing consumption of clean
energies like natural gas. According to “China Energy Development
Report of 2007" released by China Academy of Social Science,
the following 15 years will see a sustainable growth on the
demand of natural gas in China, with an average growth rate
between 11%-13%; by the end of 2010, the demand of natural
gas in the PRC will reach 100 billion cubic meters and by the end
of 2020, the demand will be over 200 billion cubic meters. With
the accelerating industrialization and urbanization in the PRC,
the prospect of the natural gas industry will be brighter and the
business of piped gas fuel supply of the Group will sure to keep
sustainable, fast and sound development.
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According to the statistical yearbook released by the National
Bureau of Statistics of China, consumption of Liquefied petroleum
gas (“LPG") in urban gas fuel increased from 2.19 million tons in
1990 to 12.637 million tons in 2006, with an average annual
growth rate of 11%. For cities where natural gas is unavailable,
the use of LPG as the primary urban gas fuel is popular. With the
acceleration of urbanization of China, the consumption of LPG
has a prosperous prospect. The business of transportation &
distribution of LPG and retail of bottled LPG of the Group will

keep sustained, fast and sound development.

On 30 August 2007, the Company subscribed for 150 million
new shares of New Chinese Medicine Holdings Limited, (“NCM")
stock code: 08085.HK), which represented 14.24% of the issued
share capital of NCM as at 31 March 2008. In connection with
the development of the existing and future business scopes and
operation, the Company held a general meeting on 27 September
2007 and renamed the Company as “CHINESE PEOPLE HOLDINGS
COMPANY LIMITED” and adopted [# RIEREE R A 7] ] as its
Chinese name. The new name and the Chinese name (for
identification only) of the Company were effective from 12 October
2007 and 15 November 2007 respectively. In the future, the Group
will, on the basis of steady development of piped gas fuel and
LPG business, explore businesses with even more profitable returns

so as to maximize wealth for all shareholders of the Company.
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On 12 May 2008, a 8.0 magnitude of Richter Scale earthquake
took place in Wenchuan of Sichuan Province, the PRC, causing
heavy casualties of the local urban population, severe destruction
of urban buildings and infrastructures, and the Group’s subsidiaries
located in Chuanyu district and adjacent areas suffered from
various degree of damages (see “Impairment loss in respect of
earthquake” under Management Discussion and Analysis of this
annual report). After the disaster, the Group has taken an active
role to assist in the earthquake remedial and recovery works, and
gas supply in certain areas have already resumed to normal. The
Group believes that, in the short run, the earthquake adversely
affected the results of our subsidiaries located in the disaster
areas. However, owing to the support of the favourable
reconstruction policies to be implemented by the state and the
guidelines with regard to the reconstruction plan for earthquake,
it is expected that future development of piped gas fuel supply

business of our subsidiaries in the disaster area are still promising.

On behalf of the Board, | hereby gratefully acknowledge the

supports of all shareholders and all social sectors over the year.

Dr. Mo Shikang

Chairman

Beijing, 25 July 2008
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Items

Provision of piped gas fuel:

Turnover
Gross profit
Segment result

Transportation & distribution

of LPG and retail of
bottled LPG:
Turnover

Gross profit

Segment result

Total segment result

Change in fair value of
convertible notes

Change in fair value of
financial assets at fair

value through profit or loss
Impairment loss in respect of

earthquake
Impairment loss

in respect of goodwill
Share based expense in

respect to share

option schemes

Other revenues & expenses (net)
(Loss)/profit before taxation

(Loss)/profit attributable to

shareholders

(Loss)/earnings per share

Basic (HK cents per share)

Diluted (HK cents per share)
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For the year ended 31 March

HBZE3A31BALEE

2008
HK$'000
BET R

425,846

119,340
58,640

193,830
23,026
9,626

68,266

(61,789)

71,998

(279,922)

(8,397)

(31,551)
(59,266)

(300,661)

(309,456)

(7.87)

N/ATE A

2007
HK$'000
BT

489,115

169,764
97,784

33,689
2,643
(744)

97,040

(19,797)

(5,677)
(23,726)

47,749

22,123

0.69

0.69

Change
%5
HK$°000
BETT
(63,269)

(50,424)
(39,144)

160,141
20,383
10,370

(28,774)

(41,992)

71,998
(279,922)
(8,306)
(25,874)
(35,540)
(348,410)

(331,579)

(8.56)
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Items

No. of projects
Piped gas fuel (Note 1)
LPG
Others (Note 2)

Total No. of projects

No. of connected for the year

Household customers
Commercial & industrial customers

Total No. of connected

Accumulated No. of connected
Household customers
Commercial & industrial customers

Accumulated No. of connected

Sales of piped gas fuel (10,000 m3)

Household customers
Commercial & industrial customers

Total sales of piped gas fuel

Sales of LPG (tons)

Notes: 1.

BE

HEYE (@)
EEMRAR (M)
BB RIE B
ity (F5E2)

HA 2

ERBRAFHE
(REEHA)
ERRF (P)
IH%RF (P)

EREAFPA%(P)

RAEEBRAFR
BERAPE (P)
IEXAF (P)

ZAEREAP (P)

EERRHEE (BUHX)

BERAF
IEERF

EENMRBHEE

RIEAHRHEEER (W)

Newly added gas fuel projects of the year are set out under

the section of “New Investments For The Year”.

2008

36

42

31,491
638

32,129

200,175
14,561

214,736

4,356
13,804

18,160

38,263

2. Other items refer to “Zhongmin Zai Xian” and “Yan Bian

Zhongmin” and Yan Bian Hua Xin Project was disposed during

the year (details of which is set out in the section headed

"Business Disposed During The Year”).

B 3 :

For the year ended 31 March

BZE3A3MBLEE
Percentage
Changes of changes
2007 £y 2HEIL
(%)
33 3 9.1
4 0 0.0
-1 -33.3
40 2 5.0
73,874 -42,383 -57.4
5,389 -4,751 -88.2
79,263 -47,134 -59.5
168,684 31,491 18.7
13,923 638 4.6
182,607 32,129 17.6
3,389 967 28.5
14,665 -861 -5.9
18,054 106 0.6
8,017 30,246 377.3
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Supplying piped gas fuel to household and commercial and
industrial customers by gas pipeline networks in the PRC is the
principal business of the Group, which is the Group’s major source

of income.

During the year ended 31 March 2008, the Group achieved piped
gas fuel sales of 181.60 million cubic meters, representing an
increase of 0.6% as compared with the corresponding period of
last year. Among which, the sales of 43.56 million cubic meters
of piped gas fuel to household customers represented an increase
of 28.5% as compared to the corresponding period of last year
as well as the sales of 138.04 million cubic meters of piped gas
fuel to commercial and industrial customers, representing a
decrease of 5.9% as compared with the corresponding period of
last year. A comparison of sales of piped gas fuel among the

financial years from 2006 to 2008 is shown in the Graph 1.

RPBREMREERAERR THEAPREM:
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Graph 1: Comparison of sales volumes of piped gas fuel
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During the year ended 31 March 2008, the Group completed
connection work for a total number of 31,491 household
customers, a decrease of 57.4% from the corresponding period
of last year and 638 commercial and industrial customers, a
decrease of 88.2% from the corresponding period of last year.
The decrease in the number of connected customers during the
year is primarily attributable to the fall in number of connected
customers at the Group’s subsidiaries in Fujian Province resulted
from the tight supply and high price of gas in the region of
Fujian Province. This negative factor is expected to be eliminated
when Inshore of Indonesia LNG be introduced in year 2009.
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During the year, the Group realised an income from provision of
piped gas fuel of approximately HK$425,846,000 (2007:
approximately HK$489,115,000), representing a decrease of
12.9% as compared with the corresponding period of last year.
Income from provision of piped gas fuel accounted for
approximately 68.7% of the Group’s overall turnover during the
year. A comparison of number of connected customers among
the financial years from 2006 to 2008 are shown in the Graph 2

below.

Graph 2: Comparison of number of connected customers in total
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Transportation and distribution of LPG and retail of bottled LPG
in the PRC is a newly added business of the Group in 2007. After
a year of instant development, they have now become another
major source of income for the Group. During the year ended 31
March 2008, the sales of LPG by the Group reached 38,263 tons
in total, representing an increase of 377.3% over the
corresponding period of last year and the Group realised an income
from sales of LPG of approximately HK$193,830,000 (2007:
approximately HK$33,689,000), representing an increase of
475.3% over corresponding period of last year. The Group’s
income from the transportation and distribution of LPG and retail
of bottled LPG accounted for approximately 31.3% of the turnover
during the year. A comparison of the sales volumes of LPG of the
Group between financial years 2007 and 2008 are shown in the

Graph 3 below.

Graph 3: Comparison of sales volumes of LPG
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWR DM

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Video lottery system and equipment supply business

The Group intended to engage in the video welfare lottery system
and equipment supply business in the PRC through investing in
its associate — Zhong Min Zai Xian (Beijing) Technology
Development Ltd. (“Zhong Min Zai Xian"), and the related license
is still pending for approval. The lottery business has not yet to

commence operation during the year.

Graph 4: Revenue structure of the Group
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Zhangzhou City is one of the five major cities planned for gas
fuel supply under the Fujian Province LNG project in the PRC. In
order to prepare for the Inshore of Indonesia LNG, the Group has
established three branches in Hua’an County, Zhao’an County
and Pinghe County of Zhangzhou City during the year. They are

mainly engaged in piped gas fuel business.

Hua’an County has a population of approximately 160,000. It has
established an economic development structure with
hydroelectricity, photoelectricity, fine chemical industry,
construction materials production, glasswork, and green food as
the core industries, and tea, jade processing, bamboo and wood

processing as the featured industries.

Zhao'an County has a population of approximately 570,000. Food
processing and textile clothing industry are being well-established
in the area, and a preliminary development framework for harbour
front industries, such as ship-building and repairing, wind power
generation, aquiculture, etc., have been formed.

Pinghe County has a population of approximately 550,000. It is
one of the major hometowns of overseas Chinese and the original
family home of China Taiwanese in Fujian Province. Mechanical
manufacturing, food processing, paper processing, hydroelectricity,

etc. are being the core industries within the area.

These three counties are densely populated and the development
of industry and commerce has been fast, with favorable prospects
for the growth of gas fuel market. When Inshore of Indonesia
LNG is introduced, branches in these three counties are sure to
bring along increasing numbers of connectable household
customers and commercial and industrial customers, thus

increasing the Group’s sales volume of piped gas fuel.

FEMNTREPREBEAINGER REHRM A A
EWme— BOEDEING LR AEBER
AEERNEENTELRG BLFERTFNGER
BRIU=FRDPAA ETENFEERRIES-

ﬁlll

ELHBAONI6E CKTKE RE
AT EMAE WRER KERA/TE
EFXRMAE - FAMIERTANIAFEESR

R EERER

BLHFBEAOLSTE BRHMITAGERE T
¥uROCAERE WHEE BRNEE KES
HERAIEXEZEERBEVIZEK-

FHMBFERAOLNSHE SRELAEHB/HME

EE BEVPEK THEREE BRI
MMM I KEHFLETEES-
ELZ BEMIENEAORT ITHERER

R-MRTSERASER -EHEINGERE
% L =D RE A RAEETKEZ KA
ERERBPMIMERFP ENMAEKENE
BRRIHEE-

15



16

In August 2007, the Group subscribed for 150,000,000 new shares
of New Chinese Medicine Holdings Limited (“NCM", stock code:
08085.HK) at a price of HK$0.20 per share, accounting for
approximately 14.24% of the issued share capital of NCM at 31
March 2008. As at the date of this annual report, the Company
held 12.46% of the issued share capital of NCM. NCM, registered
in Cayman Islands, is listed in the Growth Enterprise Market of
Hong Kong on 7 March 2002.

In April 2008, NCM entered into the funeral business in the PRC
by acquiring the entire share capital of Beijing Zhong Min An
Yuan Investment Co., Ltd. and its eight companies dealing in
cemetery in Jinzhou City in Liaoning Province, Hangzhou City in
Zhejiang Province, Urumchi City in Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous
Region, Hohhot City in Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region, Xining
City in Qinghai Province, Xi'an City in Shaanxi Province, Taiyuan
City in Shanxi Province, and Dongying City in Shandong Province.
The Group believes that funeral business has a prosperous future
and it is expected that NCM will bring considerable investment

returns for the Group.

In October 2007, the Group disposed its 51% equity interest of
Dehua Guang An Natural Gas Co., Ltd. (“Dehua Guang An"), its
wholly-owned subsidiary, at a cash consideration of
RMB28,600,000 (approximately HK$31,789,000). After the
disposal, the Group retained 49% equity interest in Dehua Guang
An. The proceeds is used for investment into other businesses
with higher profitability and for the Group's general working

capital.
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In December 2007, the Group disposed 100% of its equity interest
of Hefei Tian An Trading Co., Ltd. (“Tian An Trading ), its wholly-
owned subsidiary. Since Tian An did not have any physical business
operation, the disposal did not have any material effect on the

operating income and cash flow of the Group.

Since Yan Bian Hua Xin Oil Exploitation Company Limited (”Yan
Bian Hua Xin"”) has not yet operated its businesses, no income
has contributed to the Group. In January 2008, the Group disposed
its 50% equity interest in Yan Bian Hua Xin at a total consideration
of HK$30,000,000. The proceeds is used for investment into other
businesses with higher profitability and for the Group’s general

working capital.

For the year ended 31 March 2008, the overall gross profit margin
of the Group was 23%, representing a decrease of 10% as
compared with 33% of gross profit margin in the corresponding
period last year, the gross profit also declined by 17.4%. The
decrease of gross profit margin and gross profit was mainly

attributable to the following reasons:

(1) the change in income structure of the Group, namely the
business of piped gas fuel with higher in gross profit margin
accounted for the turnover of the year has decreased
substantially to 68.7%, as compared to 91.9% of the

corresponding period last year, meanwhile the income from

LPG sales with lower in gross profit margin accounted for

the turnover of the year has increased to 31.3%, as

compared to 6.3% of the corresponding period last year.

The gross profit margin was diluted accordingly.
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(2) the purchase cost of gas fuel greatly raised this year when
compared with the beginning of the year. The increase in
cost not only limits the sale of gas fuel, but also affects the
number of connection to new customers. It is estimated
that this situation will be improved after Inshore of Indonesia
LNG in 2009.

As at 31 March 2008, the total assets of the Group was
approximately HK$1,365,454,000, and current liabilities, long term
liabilities, shareholders’ equity and minority interests
were approximately HK$389,888,000, HK$258,581,000,

HK$650,896,000 and HK$66,089,000 respectively.

As at 31 March 2008, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
amounted to approximately HK$170,318,000 (2007: approximately
HK$184,031,000) and the total borrowings amounted to
approximately HK$384,219,000 (2007: approximately
HK$643,374,000). The debt-to-capitalisation ratio, representing
the ratio of total borrowings to equity (excluding minority
interests), was 37.1% (2007: 56.1%).
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US$20,000,000 2% Convertible notes due in 2008

On 7 September 2005, the Company issued US$20,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$156,000,000) 2% convertible
notes due in 2008 to Equator View Capital (an independent third
party which is indirectly owned as to 49% by Oasis Management
Holdings LLC, an international investment fund). During the year
ended 31 March 2008, the convertible notes with remaining
principal amount of US$5,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$38,900,000) were converted into 126,706,488 ordinary shares
of the Company. As of 31 March 2008, the convertible notes
with full amount of US$20,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$156,000,000) were fully converted into 484,675,486 ordinary
shares of the Company.

US$40,000,000 2% Convertible notes due in 2009

On 30 May 2006, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement (the “Subscription Agreement”) with Indopark Holdings
Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Merrill Lynch &
Co., Inc., in respect of the issue of US$40,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$310,000,000) 2% convertible notes due in
2009. Pursuant to the terms of the Subscription Agreement, the
convertible notes can be converted into shares at a conversion
price of HK$0.60 per share (subject to adjustment). Unless
previously redeemed, converted or purchased and cancelled, the
convertible notes shall be redeemed by the Company at 106% of
their principal amount at the third anniversary of the issue date.
The convertible notes carried interest from the issue date at the
rate of 2% per annum of the principal amount. During the year
ended 31 March 2008, convertible notes with an amount of
US$20,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$155,000,000)
have been converted into 258,333,332 ordinary shares of the
Company. As of 31 March 2008, the convertible notes with an
amount of US$20,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$155,000,000) remained outstanding. The conversion price was
reset in accordance to Reset Reference Price as stated in
Subscription Agreement to HK$0.50 in July 2008.
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As at 31 March 2008, the total borrowings of the Group
was approximately HK$384,219,000 (2007: approximately
HK$643,374,000), which included interest-bearing convertible
notes with a fair value of approximately HK$157,878,000, while
the balance comprised domestic bank loans denominated in
Renminbi of the project companies in the PRC. Other than the
convertible notes with fixed interest, bank loans, which were
applied to gas pipeline construction, general working capital and
for operating expenses, carried interest at floating fixed rates or
the interest rate announced by PBOC. Apart from the loans with
an amount equivalent to approximately HK$148,536,000 were
pledged with certain assets with carrying amount of approximately
HK$92,883,000, other were unsecured. Short-term bank loans
amounted to approximately HK$147,629,000, while others were
due after 1 year. For details of pledge of assets, please refer to

note 43 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group’s long-term capital comprises shareholders’ equity and
debt, which includes the bank borrowings and convertible notes,
that is confirmed by the sound debt-to-capitalisation ratio
discussed in the section headed “Liquidity and capital resources”

above.

All of the Group’s operation are carried out in the PRC and
substantially all of its income and expenses were denominated in
RMB. During the year ended 31 March 2008, the continuous
appreciation of RMB has been favourable to the Group as a whole.
The Group will closely monitor the market interest rates and make

appropriate adjustment when necessary.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEB W R DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Capital commitments

As at 31 March 2008, the Group’s capital commitment amounted
to approximately HK$332,783,000, mainly attributable to the
major engineering works of the Fujian Province LNG terminals
project. Please refer to note 42 to the consolidated financial

statements for further details.

Contingent liabilities
As at 31 March 2008, the Group had no material contingent

liabilities.
EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2008, the Group had approximately 1,100
employees, most of them are stationed in the PRC. The
remuneration policy and package of the Group’s employees are
reviewed and approved by the Board after consulting the
Remuneration Committee. Apart from pension funds, individual
employees may be granted discretionary bonus and share options
as rewards for the outstanding performance. The Group may

provide training for employees when necessary.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REPURCHASE OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or repurchased any of the Company’s listed securities during the

year.
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On 12 May 2008, a 8.0 magnitude of Richter Scale earthquake
took place in Wenchuan County of Sichuan Province. The
earthquake has caused members of the Group located in Chuanyu
County and the adjacent areas suffered from various degree of
damages, causing severe disruption to the supply of gas fuel
business and there were casualties among the staff and families.
Such companies include Mian Zhu City Hong Sen Natural Gas
Co., Ltd., Mian Zhu City Long Teng Gas Installation Co., Ltd.,
Longxing (Yan Ting) Natural Gas Co., Ltd., Bei Chuan County
Zhongmin Gas Co., Ltd., Mian Zhu City Han Wang Natural Gas
Co., Ltd., Chongging Zhongmin Gas Co., Ltd and Xi’an Zhongmin
Gas Co., Ltd. Based on our assessment, the direct economic loss
of such subsidiaries in the affected area amounted to
approximately HK$279,922,000, including damages/impairment
of property, plant and equipment, inventories, available-for-sale
investments, trade and other receivables as well as impairment of
intangible assets such as prepaid lease payments and goodwill.
The Group has accounted such losses as impairment loss in respect
of earthquake for the year ended 31 March 2008. Please refer to

note 44 to the consolidated financial statements for further details.

Due to heavy casualties of the local urban population, severe
destruction of urban buildings and infrastructures, the operating
results from the supply of piped gas fuel of our subsidiaries in
the affected area will definitely drop in the short run. Given the
Group’s subsidiaries within the area used to have significant
contributions to the operating results of the Group, accounting
for approximately 23.3% of the Group turnover for the year ended
31 March 2008 and 53.9% of the results from the provision of
piped gas fuel under the segment results of the Group, “5.12
Wenchuan Earthquake” will adversely influence the operating

results of the Group in the short run.
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With the sustainable, stable and sound development of the
economy of China, the accelerating industrialization and
urbanization, as well as the introduction of multiple supply of gas
promoted by gas transmission from West to East and coastal LNG
projects, supports from the national energy policy, the operation

of piped gas fuel supply is expected to undergo rapid development.

The gas fuel business of the Group is operating in densely
populated areas where industry and commerce are flourishing,
while great demand for piped gas fuel. The Indonesia LNG will be
introduced to Fujian Province in early 2009. Compared with the
high and rising oil and LPG in current prices, the Indonesia LNG is
relatively cheap. This will definitely induce substantial change on
the pattern of present energy consumption in Fujian Province,
and the household, commercial and industrial customers who
consumed LPG and oil in the past will shift to use LNG, bringing
an increase in the consumption volume from LNG customers as
well. It is expected that our number of customers connected with
piped gas fuel and our sales volume in Fujian area will increase
substantially, thus creating sufficient returns and cash flow for

the Group.

On 8 June 2008, the PRC government issued “Regulation on
Restoration and Reconstruction of Wenchuan after Earthquake”.
Pursuant to the regulation, the state will offer financial supports
and tax allowance for the reconstruction of the earthquake area,
and the restoration and reconstruction of basic needs and public
services has the high priority in the suffered area. Benefiting from
the reconstruction policies announced by the state and following
the works on re-building, removal and new building for the disaster
cities, there is enormous room for growth to the subsidiaries of
the Group located in the disaster areas during the process of the
construction of new cities and towns. Future development of
piped gas fuel supply of our subsidiaries in the area are still

promising.
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Natural gas resources is deficient in southwest areas in China
such as Yunnan Province, Guizhou Province, southwest of Hunan
Province, thus such areas rely principally on the import of LPG
from other provinces. The supply in consumer market is relatively
limit and the prices are relatively high. The lack of natural gas
resources in the southwest China continuous for a certain period
of time. For areas where natural gas is unavailable, LPG will be a
prime choice for the local citizens. Thus, there is a favorable

market prospect.

According to statistics, sales revenues of lottery of the state in
2007 in the PRC reached RMB101.6 billion, an increase of 24.2%
over last year. Total sales of welfare lottery reached RMB63.2
billion, accounting for 62.2% of the total sales of lottery of the
state, representing an increase of RMB13.6 billion over
corresponding period of last year, an increase by 27.4%. In March
2008, China Legal Affairs Office of the State Council promulgated
“Regulation on Management of Lottery (Draft for comment)”,
asking for suggestions from different social sectors, being a step
forward for the construction of legal system for lottery industry.
With the sustainable growth of China economy, the per capita
income and consumption power of the domestic citizens will be
driven up in general. It is forecasted that the lottery market in
China will have sustainable, fast and sound development. The
lottery business of the Group, on its approval and launching, will
surely bring remarkable returns and abundant cash flow for the

Group.
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Look forward to the future, the Group will continue to develop
the piped gas fuel business, on the one hand, actively expand the
gas fuel markets where the Group operates its business, put more
effort in the construction of urban pipeline network, and steadily
increase the number of customers connected with piped gas fuel
and the sales volume; on the other hand, continuously expand
new and quality gas fuel project. At the same time, we will keep
on investing in our LPG business and expanding the scale of our
LPG business. The Group will actively explore business which could
generate much profits and cash returns, with the aim to establish
an integrated holding enterprise and acquiring much values and

returns for all shareholders.

Mr. Jin Song

Managing Director and Executive Director

Beijing, 25 July 2008
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Mr. Xu Ruixin, aged 67, is the honourable chairman of our
board of directors (“Board”) and an executive director, he joined
our Company since 11 April 2005. Mr. Xu is currently the chairman
of the China Association of Social Workers. Mr. Xu was a vice
minister and committee member of the Ministry of Civil Affairs of
China. Mr. Xu is not appointed for a specific term with our
Company but is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
in accordance with the provision of our Company’s bye-laws. Mr.
Xu has no interest in the shares and/or underlying shares of our
Company or its associated corporations within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO").

Dr. Mo Shikang, aged 50, is the chairman of our Board and an
executive director, Dr. Mo joined our Company since 30 April
2004. Dr. Mo is currently a member of our Remuneration
Committee and the chairman of the Board of Beijing Zhongmin
Gas Co., Ltd. ([ mRFRMRI[ER 2T ] ), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of our Company. Dr. Mo hold a Bachelor degree in
Sciences from Tianjin Education University, a Master degree in
Economics from Tianjin University of Finance & Economics and a
Doctor degree in Economic from Nankai University in China. Dr. Mo
has substantial experiences in the development and management
of natural gas projects in China. Dr. Mo is not appointed for a
specific term with our Company but is subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election in accordance with the provision of our
Company’s bye-laws. Dr. Mo has interest in the shares and/or
underlying shares of our Company or its associated corporations
within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO, details of which is
disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ Interest in Shares,
Underlying Shares or Debentures” under Directors’ Report in this

annual report.
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Mr. Zhang Hesheng, aged 54, is a deputy chairman of our
Board and an executive director, he joined our Company since 21
March 2005. Mr. Zhang is currently the chairman of our
Remuneration Committee and a director of Fujian Province An
Ran Gas Investment Co., Ltd. ([BR AL ARMBILEBR A A]),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of our Group. Mr. Zhang holds a MBA
degree from the Latrobe University in Australia. In late 1980s,
Mr. Zhang joined the initial financial securities industry in China,
he has been engaged in provision of securities company businesses
relating to securities and financial investment; securities
brokerages; investment banking; financial research and analysis
for Wanguo Holdings Limited, Guotai Securities Company Limited
and Guotai Junan Securities Company Limited and acted as senior
operation officer. Mr. Zhang has extensive experiences in financial
and capital markets. Mr. Zhang is not appointed for a specific
term with our Company but is subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election in accordance with the provision of our Company’s
bye-laws. Mr. Zhang has interest in the shares and/or underlying
shares of our Company or its associated corporations within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO, details of which is disclosed in
the section headed “Directors’ Interest in Shares, Underlying Shares

or Debentures” under Directors’ Report in this annual report.
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Mr. Zhu Peifeng, aged 51, is a deputy chairman of our Board
and an executive director, he joined our Company since 21 March
2005. Mr. Zhu holds a Bachelor degree in Sciences from Shanghai
Maritime University and a Master degree in Economic from
Shanghai Tongji University in China. Mr. Zhu joined the financial
securities industry in 1992 with over 10 years experiences in
relevant industries, during which he worked for Bank of
Communication and Guotai's group and acted as a branch general
manager of Shenzhen Guotai Securities Company Limited; as a
general manager (under the head offices of International Business
and Institutional Customer Services) of Guotai Junan Securities
Company Limited; as an executive director of Guotai Junan
Financial Holdings Company Limited; as a director of Guotai Junan
Securities (Hong Kong) Company Limited and Guotai Junan Assets
Management (Asia) Limited and as the chairman of Harvest China
Equities Investment Company Limited. He has extensive practical
experiences in the capital markets of China and Hong Kong.
Mr. Zhu is not appointed for a specific term with our Company
but is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in
accordance with the provision of our Company’s bye-laws. Mr. Zhu
has interest in the shares and/or underlying shares of our Company
or its associated corporations within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO, details of which is disclosed in the section headed
“Directors’ Interest in Shares, Underlying Shares or Debentures”

under Directors’ Report in this annual report.
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Mr. Jin Song, aged 37, is our managing director and an executive
director, he joined our Company since 11 April 2005. Mr. Jin is
currently a director and president of Beijing Zhongmin Gas Co.,
Ld. ([t A RMAEBR DA ), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
our Company, he is responsible for the investment, merger and
acquisition businesses. Mr. Jin holds a MBA degree from Oklahoma
City University in United States. Mr. Jin has substantial experiences
in investment banking as well as merger and acquisition of gas
enterprises in China. He was engaged in marketing and project
management by Shenzhen Huawei Technologies Co., Ltd., and
worked for years in investment banking business with Guangzhou
Security Company Limited and Huatai Securities Co., Ltd. Mr. Jin
is not appointed for a specific term with our Company but is
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance
with the provision of our Company’s bye-laws. Mr. Jin has interest
in the shares and/or underlying shares of our company or its
associated corporations within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO, details of which is disclosed in the section headed “Directors’
Interest in Shares, Underlying Shares or Debentures” under

Directors’ Report in this annual report.

HMEE BRE3Tm REAMARESHLRE
FHRITES FHR2005F481MANBRMA
Al EERNAEMEEMNBARILERPR
MEERAAEETHREH RAFTRE &0
RBBEB - FEERBERARRNATHA
BREIHEEBELBM - FRPREIRER
TEBRRRCENBFIFEREELELR B
BRRYEARMAR AR ENIHEIRIE
BERIE REMNEFBERAFRERES
BRARINRERERTEBSF - FELENE
HREMARZRBFR EERBRMAF
MANREREREE -RESH RAEKRMEXV
R E R AR B MR RS EEEER 2
Bk, SEBERHPEEER FAERE
RAFREZEREEZTRRM -EERS
REFP IR 2 —SHAEE-

29



30

Mr. Wong Ching, aged 43, is our executive director, he joined
our Company since 23 December 2006. Mr. Wong was graduated
from Department of Automation under Tsinghua University in
China. He was deputy chief executive officer of Beijing Zhong
Zheng Hai Financial Consultancy Company Limited (1t 3= & B /&
AR AR AR and chief executive officer of Beijing Xin You
Shi Tong Financial Consultancy Company Limited (1t 512 B t 3@
HEBEMAMRAT). Mr. Wong has arranged Rui Zhong Risk
Investment Seminar (¥ A & K 3% & W 5 € ) with foreign big
financial institutions, including UBS Warburg and venture capital
funds corporation. Mr. Wong was engaged by Dreamer d3y Group

Z MK d3y%E @), he has experiences in network industry and
has introduced venture capital funds management. Mr. Wong
was United State Fantasy Entertainment Group Company’s
executive director and chief executive officer and also acted as
Shanghai, Guangzhou, Chengdu and Wuhan United State Fantasy
Park's (E B & 2] %4 & ) executive director and chief executive
officer. He was responsible for the investment and management
of the large chain theme park in China which was funded by
United State’s companies. He has participated in the setting up
various enterprises and has extensive experiences in business
operation and management, trading, financing and related markets
and acted as the PRC consultant for many foreign investment
institutions. Mr. Wong is not appointed for a specific term with
our Company but is subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election in accordance with the provision of our Company’s
bye-laws. Mr. Wong has interest in the shares and/or underlying
shares of our company or its associated corporations within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO, details of which is disclosed in
the section headed “Directors’ Interest in Shares, Underlying Shares

or Debentures” under Directors’ Report in this annual report.
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Dr. Liu Junmin, aged 58, is our independent non-executive
director, Dr. Liu joined our Company since 11 April 2005. Dr. Liu
is currently a member of our Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee. Dr. Liu holds a Bachelor degree, a Master degree and
a PhD degree in Economics from Nankai University in China, in
which Mr. Liu is a professor of the School of Economics and an
officer of the Virtual Economics & Management Research Center.
Dr. Liu is also the president of Tianjin branch of China Foreign
Economics Research Association (FEINH L EBHEL); a
member of Tianjin Academic Degree Committee and an
independent director of Tianjin Faw Xiali Automobile Co. (stock
code: 000927), a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.
Dr. Liu has awarded “Sun Yefang Economics Prize ( [ #&)A 35 48 %
E2#%|) " Dr. Liu has entered into a service contract with our
Company for three years but is subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election in accordance with the provision of our Company’s
bye-laws. Dr. Liu has interest in the shares and/or underlying
shares of our Company or its associated corporations within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO, details of which is disclosed in
the section headed “Directors’ Interest in Shares, Underlying Shares

or Debentures” under Directors’ Report in this annual report.

Mr. Tan Qinglian, aged 70, is our independent non-executive
director, he joined our Company since 11 April 2005. He is
currently a member of our Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee. He is the member of the 10th National Committee of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference and
President of China Civil Engineering Society. He was the vice
minister of the Ministry of Construction of China. Mr. Tan has
entered into a service contract with our Company for three years
but is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in
accordance with the provision of our Company’s bye-laws. Mr. Tan
has no interest in the shares and/or underlying shares of our
Company or its associated corporations within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO.
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Mr. Sin Ka Man, aged 41, is our independent non-executive
director, Mr. Sin joined our Company since 23 December 2006
and he is also the chairman and a member of our Audit Committee
and Remuneration Committee, respectively. Mr. Sin has over 17
years of professional experience in auditing, accounting and
financial management for both private and listed corporations.
Mr. Sin is an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member of The Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and a certified practicing
accountant of the CPA in Australia. Mr. Sin is currently an vice-
president of China Agri-Products Exchange Limited (stock code:
00149), a company listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, he is responsible for the
accounting and financial management. Mr. Sin holds a Bachelor
degree in Social Sciences from the University of Hong Kong, a
Master degree in Finance from the University of Strathclyde in
the United Kingdom and a Master degree in accounting from
Curtin University of Technology in Australia. Mr. Sin is an
independent non-executive director of LeRoi Holdings Limited
(stock code: 00221) and Xtep International Holdings Limited (stock
code: 01368) (both companies are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited) and Sino Haijing
Holdings Limited (stock code: 08065) (a company listed on Growth
Enterprise Market), was an independent non-executive director of
China Leason Investment Group Company Limited (stock code:
08270) (company listed on Growth Enterprise Market). Mr. Sin
has entered into a service contract with our Company for three
years but is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in
accordance with the provision of our Company’s bye-laws. Mr.
Sin has interest in the shares and/or underlying shares of our
Company or its associated corporations within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO, details of which is disclosed in the section
headed “Directors’ Interest in Shares, Underlying Shares or

Debentures” under Directors’ Report in this annual report.
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are pleased to
present their annual report and the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (together the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2008.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The Group
is principally engaged in the provision of gas fuel and gas pipeline
connection, transportation and distribution of LPG and retail of
bottled liquefied petroleum gas ("LPG") and supply of video lottery
operating system and bottled equipment in the PRC. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries as at 31 March 2008 are set out in
note 47 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual

report.

In order to reflect the current and future development of the
scope and base of operations, on 27 September 2007, the
shareholders of the Company at the annual general meeting
approved the change of the Company’s name to “Chinese People
Holdings Company Limited” and the adoption of “A R{Zi& & R
A |]" as the Chinese name of the Company. The new name and
new Chinese name of the Company, for identification purpose
only, are effective commencing from 12 October 2007 and 15

November 2007 respectively.

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the

consolidated income statement of this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2008 (2007: Nil).
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Report of the Directors
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movement in property, plant and equipment and
investment properties of the Group during the year are set out in
notes 17 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements of this

annual report respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movement in the share capital of the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2008 are set out in note 34 to

the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

RESERVES

Details of the movement in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in page 79 and note 46 to
the consolidated financial statements of this annual report

respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2008, the Company did not have any distributable

reserves.

Chinese People Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2007-2008
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During the year ended 31 March 2008, the aggregate sales
attributable to the Group's largest customer and the five largest
customers taken together accounted for 6.4% and 19.5% of the

Group's total turnover for the year.

During the year ended 31 March 2008, the aggregate purchase
attributable to the Group's largest supplier and the five largest
suppliers taken together accounted for 20% and 56% of the

Group's total purchase for the year.

None of the Directors, their respective associates or, so far as the
Directors are aware, any shareholder who owns more than 5% of
the issued share capital of the Company has any interest in any of

the said top five customers and suppliers of the Group for the year.

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date

of this report were:

Mr. Xu Ruixin (Honourable Chairman)
Mr. Liu Jing (Chairman)

(resigned on 31 December 2007)
Dr. Mo Shikang (Chairman)
Mr. Zhang Hesheng (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Zhu Peifeng (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Jin Song (Managing Director)
Mr. Wong Ching

Dr. Liu Junmin
Mr. Tan Qinglian
Mr. Sin Ka Man
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The biographical details of the Director are set out on page 26 to

page 32 of this annual report.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into
a service contract with the Company for a term of 3 years but
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance

with the Company’s Bye-laws.

In accordance with Bye-Laws 99 of the Company, Mr. Zhang
Hesheng, Mr. Zhu Peifeng, Dr. Liu Junmin and Mr. Tan Qinglian
will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting
but, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company will enter into a 3 years service contract with Dr.
Liu Junmin and Mr. Tan Qinglian, both independent non-executive
Directors, following their re-election in the forthcoming annual
general meeting, respectively, but subject to retirement by rotation

and re-election in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

Other than disclosed above, none of the Directors has entered or
has proposed to enter into any service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries which is not expiring or determinable by
the employing company within one year without payment of

compensation other than statutory compensation.
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Report of the Directors
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RE-POSITION OF THE BOARD

Immediately following the resignation of Mr. Liu Jing as the
Chairman and an executive Director of the Company on 31
December 2007, Dr. Mo Shikang, an executive Director and the
managing Director of the Company, has been promoted as the
Chairman of the Company to replace the resignation of Mr. Liu
Jing on the same date. Simultaneously, on that date, Mr. Jin
Song, an executive Director of the Company, has also been

promoted as the managing Director of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENT

Details of Directors’ emoluments on a named basis are set out in
note 10(a) to the consolidated financial statements of this annual

report.

ANNUAL CONFIRMATION FROM
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company had received written confirmation from each of
the independent non-executive Directors of their independence
pursuant to the rule 3.13 of the rules governing the listing of
securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) and the Board considered all independent non-

executive Directors are independent.
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As at 31 March 2008, the interests of the Directors in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) (the “Associated
Corporations”) as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for

Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model

Code") were as follows:

Name of Director

Dr. Mo Shikang
Mr. Zhang Hesheng
Mr. Zhu Peifeng
Mr. Jin Song

Mr. Wong Ching
Dr. Liu Junmin

Mr. Sin Ka Man

38

EExEH

BEEEL
RAAE KA
REREE
KL
TR
AEREL
KEERE

Personal
interests
AR

3,710,000°
2,600,000°

Number of shares

BHEE
Family
interests

EQY:

Corporate
interests

AL £

1,000,798,538'

Number of
underlying
shares held
under equity

R2008F3A31H REFHFLBEGKDE
2R RBEATFTHRE 2 ERMATRE S iR
BEMBITAESHE

TEFRHZIZEST A

derivatives

BRAFTETIR
BTHEZ Total
HERAEE ay
1,410,000 1,002,208,538
10,000,000 13,710,000
10,000,0002 12,600,000
10,000,0002 10,000,000
10,000,000 10,000,000
3,600,000 3,600,000
3,600,000 3,600,000

([BZEFR]) BERERARREBBER S
ARG ([BRF]) BHEEENARAFH
HAEMAEER (X RBFHRBAEEANEXV
) ([HEEOEE]) 2 RG% - ABERHD REHF
ZHETIE

Percentage
of aggregate
interests to
total number
of shares
in issue *
ERAH
HE#TRE
BEgEA L
%

24.55
0.34
0.31
0.24
0.24
0.09
0.09



Notes:

1. This represents interests held by Dr. Mo Shikang (“Dr. Mo") through
Asian Allied Limited (“Asian Allied”), which holds 1,000,798,538
shares of the Company registered under the name of Super Win
Development Limited (“Super Win"), its wholly-owned subsidiary.
Dr. Mo has 42.75% interest in Asian Allied, he is therefore deemed
to be interested in 1,000,798,538 shares of the Company.

2. This represents interests in share option held by the relevant Directors
as beneficial owner to subscribe for the relevant underlying shares
granted by the Company under the 2006 Share Option Scheme,
details of which is set out in the section headed “Share Option”

under Directors’ Report in this annual report.

3. This represents interests held by the relevant Directors as beneficial
owner.
* The percentage has been adjusted based on the total number of

shares of the Company in issue as at 31 March 2008 (i.e.
4,082,324,554 shares).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2008, none of the
Directors had any other interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
Associated Corporations which had been entered in the register
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange

pursuant to the Model Code.
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No contract of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries or its holding companies was a party and in which a
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,

subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

As at 31 March 2008, the number of outstanding option shares
granted by the Company under the 1997 Share Option Scheme
and the 2006 Share Option Scheme (defined under section headed
“Share Option” below) for the Directors to subscribe the shares
of the Company, as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code is
set out in the section headed “Share Option” under Directors’

Report of this annual report.

Apart from the aforesaid, at no time during the year was the
Company, its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding
companies a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or

debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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As at 31 March 2008, the interests of those persons (other than
the Directors) in the shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336

of the SFO were as follows:

Name

=%

Super Win'

Asian Allied’

Merrill Lynch & Co., Inc.?

Capacity in which Number of
shares were held shares
BERGZEH i gvig < §=|
Beneficial owner 1,000,798,538(L)
EnEEA

Interest of controlled 1,000,798,538(L)
corporation

XESABER

Interest of controlled -
corporation

HES AR

(L) = long positionf#F & (S) = short position/& &

R2008F3A31H REFHFLBEGKDE
BIFARNRIFIEE 2 EM ZEAL (BRE
EHNBEAEARRBRMD 2T

Number of

underlying Percentage of

shares held shares to

under equity total number

derivatives of shares
BARSTET A in issue *

ETHEZ LEBRTRAG
HERGHA BYFI L

%

- 24.52

- 24.52

264,609,815(S) 6.48
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Notes:

1. This represents interests held by Dr. Mo through Asian Allied, which
holds 1,000,798,538 shares of the Company registered under the
name of Super Win, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Asian Allied. Dr.
Mo has 42.75% interest in Asian Allied, he is therefore deemed to
be interested in 1,000,798,538 shares of the Company.

2. This represents interests held by Merrill Lynch & Co., Inc. (“Merrill
Lynch”) through Indopark Holdings Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Merrill Lynch, which holds 264,609,815 underlying shares of the
Company. Merrill Lynch is therefore deemed to be interested in

264,609,815 underlying shares of the Company.

* The percentage has been adjusted based on the total number of
shares of the Company in issue as at 31 March 2008 (i.e.
4,082,324,554 shares).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2008, the Company had
not been notified of any interests and short positions in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company which had been recorded

in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

None of the Directors or substantial shareholders of the Company
or any of their respective associates has engaged in any business
that competes or may compete with the business of the Group or

has any other conflict of interests with the Group.

o :
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Lynch] ) & B E 2 & K B 2 7 Indopark
Holdings Ltd.F B 2 # & ®iIFHE AKX Q A
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Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
as at the date of this annual report and within the knowledge of
the Directors, there was sufficiency of public float of the

Company'’s securities as required under the Listing Rules.

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-Laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing

shareholders.

On 3 October 2006, the shareholders of the Company approved
the termination (to the effect that no further options shall be
offered) of the share option scheme adopted by the Company on
4 April 1997 (the “1997 Share Option Scheme”) and the adoption
of a new share option scheme (the “2006 Share Option Scheme”).
On 27 September 2007, the shareholders of the Company
approved the resolution for refreshment of 10% limit on the

grant of options under the 2006 Share Option Scheme.

As at 31 March 2008 and up to the date of this annual report,
370,052,000 option shares were outstanding under the 2006 Share
Option Scheme and all option shares granted under the 1997

Share Option Scheme were fully exercised.
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The following is a summary of the principal terms of these two

share option schemes (for the 1997 Share Option Scheme, only

those terms applying to the outstanding option shares are set

out).

Purpose

Participants

Exercise Price of

Shares Options

Provides incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success

of the Group’s operations.

Any full time employees (including

executive Directors) of the Group.

Determined by the Board and will be the
higher of:

(@) a price being not less than 80% of
the average of the closing price of
the share of the Company on the
Stock Exchange for the five trading
days immediately preceding the offer

date; and

(b)  the nominal value of the share of

the Company.
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Period within which
the securities
must be taken up

under the option

Minimum period
for which

an option must
be held before

it can be exercised

Amount payable

on acceptance

Period within which
calls/loans must

be made/repaid

Remaining life of

the scheme

Subject to the discretion by the Board
and in any event such period of time

whichever is the earlier:

(@)  shall not exceed a period of 3 years
commencing on the expiry of 6
months after the commencement
date (i.e. the date on which the
option is accepted) and expiring on

the last day of such period; or

(b) 3 April 2007.

Subject to the discretion by the Board
and the expiry of 6 months after the
commencement date (i.e. the date on

which the option is accepted).

HK$1.00 paid on acceptance of the

offer.

Not applicable.

This scheme was terminated on 3
October 2006 by the shareholder of the
Company and as at 31 March 2008 and
up to the date of this annual report, all
option share granted under this scheme

were fully exercised.
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Purpose

Participants

Price of Shares

Provide incentives to the eligible persons
to contribute to the Group, to enable the
Group to recruit and retain quality
employees to serve the Group on a long-
term basis and to attract human resources

that are valuable to the Group.

Eligible person include any executive,
employee, Director (including non-
executive Director and independent non-
executive Director), consultant, adviser and/
or agent of the Company or any of its
subsidiary at the time when an option is

granted to such person.

Determined by the Board and shall at least
be the highest of:

(a) the nominal value of the share of

the Company;

(b)  the closing price of the share of the
Company as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on
the date of offer, which must be a

trading day; and

(c)  the average closing price of the share
of the Company as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of

offer.
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Total number of
shares available
for issue and

the percentage of
the issued share
capital that it
represents as

at the date of

this annual report

Maximum
entitlement of

each participant

Period within which

the securities
must be taken up

under the option

Minimum period
for which

an option must
be held before

it can be exercised

296,007,405 shares, being approximately
7.25% of the issued share capital
of the Company.

Not exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue in any 12-month

period.

Subject to the discretion by the Board,
provided that such period:

(a) shall not commence until after the
Minimum Moratorium Period

(defined below); and

(b)  shall not expire after the business
day preceding the tenth anniversary
of 5 October 2006.

Subject to the discretion by the Board
and must be held a period of six
months from the date of acceptance
of the offer (the “Minimum Moratorium
Period").
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Amount payable

on acceptance

Period within which
calls/loans must

be made/repaid

Remaining life of

the scheme

No amount is payable on acceptance

of an offer.

Not applicable.

The scheme will be valid and effective
until 5 October 2016, after which no
further options will be granted, but in all
other respects the provisions of this scheme
shall remain in full force and effect in
respect of any option granted prior to the
termination of this scheme and any such
option shall continue to be exercisable in

accordance with their terms of issue.
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Movements of the option shares, which were granted under

the 1997 Share Option Scheme, during the year ended 31

March 2008 are listed below in accordance with rule 17.07

of the Listing Rules:

Category
5l

Directors

Bz

Mr. Liu Jing?
B A2

Dr. Mo
Rt

Mr. Zhang Hesheng
RHRAELE

Mr. Jin Song
ikt

Continuous
Contracts
Employee

BEANHES

Total

&

As at R
01.04.2007

26,000,000°

2,600,000°

2,600,000°

26,000,000°

5,000,000?

5,000,000¢

67,200,000

Granted
i

During the year
R

Exercised

{4

(26,000,000)

(2,600,000)

(2,600,000)

(26,000,000)

(5,000,000)

(5,000,000)

(67,200,000)

Lapsed/
cancelled

KM/

B FHEBIE17.0716 RE E20084F
3A31B L FERE1997F B R ET 2

B zERE,E
As at A
31.03.2008

HEIMT
Exercise Exercise
price period’
THEE THES
HK$
BT
0.365 12.10.2005-
03.04.2007
0.365 12.10.2005-
03.04.2007
0.365 12.10.2005-
03.04.2007
0.365 12.10.2005-
03.04.2007
0.365 12.10.2005-
03.04.2007
0.400 17.05.2006-
03.04.2007
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Notes:

it

1. The vesting period for all the option granted is six months 1. FERLBREZEHRRERARD

from the date of acceptance of the offer.

BHIREE REA -

2. Mr. Liu Jing resigned as Director of the Company on 31 2. BIREEER2007F12A3THEEAR
December 2007. RESE—He-

3. The option was granted on 13 April 2005. 3. ZEBREMR2005F4813BE E -

4. The option was granted on 18 November 2005. 4. ZEREMN2005F11A18AKE -

Movements of the option shares, which were granted under
the 2006 Share Option Scheme, during the year ended 31

March 2008 are listed below in accordance with rule 17.07

of the Listing Rules:

Category Date of grant
5l BREBH
Directors
=
Mr. Liu Jing® 02.04.2007
B 5 4

15.10.2007
Dr. Mo 02.04.2007
REtL

15.10.2007

Mr. Zhang Hesheng  02.04.2007
RAEKE

15.10.2007

As at R
01.04.2007

RbzERES
During the year
FR
Lapsed/
Granted Exercised cancelled* As at i
Bl T k¥ E&* 31.03.2008
7,500,000 - - 7,500,000
2,500,000 - - 2,500,000
10,000,000
750,000 - - 750,000
660,000 - - 660,000
1,410,000
7,500,000 - - 7,500,000
2,500,000 - - 2,500,000
10,000,000

Exercise
price'
g

HK$

B

0.530

0.514

0.530

0.514

0.530

0.514

B FHEBI$17.0716 RE E20084F
3A318 It FERE2006F H AR T2
EIUNNE

Exercise
period?

T

18.10.2007-
01.10.2010

01.05.2008-
14.04.2011

18.10.2007-
01.10.2010

01.05.2008-
14.04.2011

18.10.2007-
01.10.2010

01.05.2008-
14.04.2011



Report of the Directors
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SHARE OPTION (Continued)
BERE(R)
(b) 2006 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

20065 B I RE T & ()

During the year

£R
Lapsed/ Exercise Exercise
Category Date of grant As at Granted Exercised cancelled* As at price’ period?
<yl BEAH  01.04.2007 B f1E R¥/EHE* 31.03.2008 RE! A
HK$
BT
Mr. Zhu Peifeng 02.04.2007 - 7,500,000 - - 7,500,000 0.530 18.10.2007-
KERLE 01.10.2010
15.10.2007 - 2,500,000 - - 2,500,000 0.514 01.05.2008-
14.04.2011
10,000,000
Mr. Jin Song 02.04.2007 - 7,500,000 - - 7,500,000 0.530 18.10.2007-
FkxE 01.10.2010
15.10.2007 - 2,500,000 - - 2,500,000 0.514 01.05.2008-
14.04.2011
10,000,000
Mr. Wong Ching 02.04.2007 - 7,500,000 - - 7,500,000 0.530 18.10.2007-
THEE 01.10.2010
15.10.2007 - 2,500,000 - - 2,500,000 0.514 01.05.2008-
14.04.2011
10,000,000
Dr. Liu Junmin 02.04.2007 - 2,700,000 - - 2,700,000 0.530 18.10.2007-
HEREL 01.10.2010
15.10.2007 - 900,000 - - 900,000 0.514 01.05.2008-
14.04.2011
3,600,000
Mr. Sin Ka Man 02.04.2007 - 2,700,000 - - 2,700,000 0.530 18.10.2007-
RAFRGEE 01.10.2010
15.10.2007 - 900,000 - - 900,000 0.514 01.05.2008-
14.04.2011
3,600,000
Subtotal - 58,610,000 - - 58,610,000

It
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Report of the Directors
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SHARE OPTION (Continued)
BRE (&)
(b) 2006 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

20065 B I RE T & ()

During the year
£R
Lapsed/ Exercise Exercise
Category Date of grant As at Granted Exercised cancelled* As at price’ period?
3l BHEAH 01042007 B it K% /E#* 31.03.2008 @ T
HK$
BT
Continuous 02.04.2007 - 97,270,000 - (6,240,000)* 91,030,000 0.530 18.10.2007-
Contracts 01.10.2010
Employee
FEEHHESR 15.10.2007 - 39,700,000 - (1,120,000 38,580,000 0.514 01.05.2008-
14.04.2011
02.11.2007 - 1,300,000 - - 1,300,000 0.632 10.05.2008-
01.05.2011
04.01.2008 - 20,000,000 - - 20,000,000 0.382 17.07.2008-
03.07.2011
Subtotal - 158,270,000 - (7,360,0000 150,910,000
Nt
Consultants 11.10.2006 56,000,000 - (10,000,000) - 46,000,000 0.385 11.04.2007-
B 10.04.2010
02.04.2007 - 47,382,000 - (3,000,000* 44,382,000 0.530 18.10.2007-
01.10.2010
15.10.2007 - 13,750,000 - - 13,750,000 0.514 01.05.2008-
14.04.2011
Subtotal 56,000,000 61,132,000 (10,000,000) (3,000,000) 104,132,000
Nt
Agents 02.04.2007 - 27,760,000 - (1,220,000)* 26,540,000 0.530 18.10.2007-
RE 01.10.2010
15.10.2007 - 10,000,000 - (240,000)* 9,760,000 0.514 01.05.2008-
14.04.2011
Subtotal - 37,760,000 - (1,460,000) 36,300,000
Nt
Advisors 02.04.2007 - 16,090,000 - (1,130,000 14,960,000 0.530 18.10.2007-
EE N 01.10.2010
15.10.2007 - 5,510,000 - (370,000)* 5,140,000 0.514 01.05.2008-
14.04.2011
Subtotal - 21,600,000 - (1,500,000) 20,100,000
Nt
Total 56,000,000 337,372,000  (10,000,000) (13,320,000) 370,052,000
&
=]
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Notes:

1. The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment
in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes

in the Company’s share capital.

2. The vesting period is six months from the date of acceptance
of the offer.

3. Mr. Liu Jing resigned as Director on 31 December 2007.

The fair value Company’s shares at the date of issue of
share options during the year is HK$0.53 on 2 April 2007;
HK$0.45 on 15 October 2007; HK$0.57 on 2 November
2007 and HK$0.38 on 4 January 2008 respectively.

The estimated fair value of share option granted on during
the year estimated at the date of grant were calculated
using the Black-Scholes Pricing Model and Binomial Lattic
Model together with the assumptions used are set out in
the note 35 to the consolidated financial statements of this

annual report.

The pension schemes of the Company and its subsidiaries are
primary in form of contributions to Hong Kong’s Mandatory
Provident Funds and the China statutory public welfare fund

respectively.

3
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Report of the Directors
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company did not have any connected
transactions which were subject to the requirements of the Listing

Rules.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions are set out in note 40 to

consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole and any substantial part of the business of the Company

were entered into or existed during the year.

CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Board adopted the Model Code. All Directors have confirmed
their compliance with the required standard set out in the Model
Code during the year ended 31 March 2008.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
sold, or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 March 2008.
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Details of significant events occurring after the balance sheet
date as set out in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements

of this annual report.

On 3 November 2006, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (the
“Deloitte”), who acted as auditors for the period from 1 April
2004 to 31 March 2006, resigned and SHINEWING (HK) CPA
Limited (the “SHINEWING") was appointed as auditors of the
Company on 6 November 2006 to fill the causal vacancy
occasioned by the resignation of Deloitte and to hold office until
the conclusion of the 2007 annual general meeting (the “2007
AGM") of the Company.

A shareholder of the Company, pursuant to section 89(3) of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, has given the Company a notice
of intention to nominate SHINEWING as the auditors of the
Company in the 2007 AGM. Accordingly, an ordinary resolution
in respect of the appointment of SHINEWING as the auditors of
the Company was duly passed at the 2007 AGM accordingly.

SHINEWING will retire and, being eligible offer, offer themselves
for re-appointment in forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company. A resolution for the re-appointment of SHINEWING as
auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming

annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Jin Song

Managing and Executive Director

Beijing, 25 July 2008
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The Company has committed to perform a high standard of
corporate governance practices in enhancing the confidence of
shareholders, investors, employees, creditors and business partners
and also the growth of its business. The Company’s corporate
governance practices are based on the principles and the code
provisions (the “Code Provisions”) as set out in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (the "CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
(the “Listing Rules”). As far as the CG Code is concerned, during
the year and up to the date of this annual report, the Company

complies with all aspect of the Code Provisions.

Adoption of Model Code

The board of directors (the “Board”) has adopted the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code"”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules as its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the directors of the Company (the

“Directors”).
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Confirmation on Compliance

Specific respectively enquiry has been made to all the
Directors regarding any non-compliance with the Model Code
during the year ended 31 March 2008 and up to the date
of this annual report, they all confirmed that they have fully
complied with the required standard set out in the Model

Code during the year.

Written Guideline for Relevant Employees

In addition, the Company has also adopted provisions of
the Model Code as written guidelines for relevant employees
in respect of their dealings in the securities of the Company.
Such relevant employees shall abide by the provisions of the
Model Code.

Composition

The composition of the Board ensures a balance of skills
and experiences appropriate to the requirements of the
businesses of the Company and to the exercising of
independent. None of the members of the Board is related

to one another.
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Composition (Continued)
The Directors who held office during the year and up to the

date of this report were:

Executive directors:
Mr. Xu Ruixin (Honourable Chairman)
Mr. Liu Jing (Chairman)

(resigned on 31 December 2007)
Dr. Mo Shikang (Chairman)
Mr. Zhang Hesheng (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Zhu Peifeng (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Jin Song (Managing Director)
Mr. Wong Ching

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Tan Qinglian

Dr. Liu Junmin

Mr. Sin Ka Man

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on page

26 to page 32 of this annual report.
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Re-position of the Board

Immediately following the resignation of Mr. Liu Jing as the
Chairman and executive Director of the Company on 31
December 2007, Dr. Mo Shikang, an executive Director and
the managing Director of the Company, has been promoted
as the Chairman of the Company to replace the resignation
of Mr. Liu Jing on the same date. Simultaneously, on that
date, Mr. Jin Song, an executive Director of the Company,
has been promoted as the managing Director of the

Company.

Number of Meetings Held and Attendance

The Board normally has four (4) scheduled meetings a year
and meets at other times as and when required to review
financial, internal control, risk management, company
strategy and operating performance of the Group. During
the year ended 31 March 2008, a total number of eight (8)
regular Board meetings, two (2) Audit Committee meetings
and six (6) Remuneration Committee meetings were held.
Minutes of these meetings are kept by the Company
Secretary of the Company and are open for inspection by

the Directors.
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Number of Meetings Held and Attendance
(Continued)

The individual attendance records of each Director, on a
named basis, at the meetings of the Board, Audit Committee
and Remuneration Committee during the year ended 31

March 2008 are set out below:

Name of Directors Esps

Mr. Xu Ruixin RIS
Mr. Liu Jing* BIR e~
Dr. Mo Shikang Rt EE+
Mr. Zhang Hesheng o A4 58 A
Mr. Zhu Peifeng KEBR LA
Mr. Jin Song N E

Mr. Wong Ching FEEAE

Mr. Tan Qinglian EEBESLE
Dr. Liu Junmin BBEREL
Mr. Sin Ka Man TR BT HE

* Resigned on 31 December 2007. E /20074 12 A31H B -

ERRERHER (H)

NE E2008FE3A31HILFE SEEH
FEEESS ERZEeRFHNEES
SHEZLR(BKEMED ) HHlm
—F:

Attendance/Number of
Meetings entitled to attend
HEE EREEEEZHE

Audit Remuneration

Board Committee Committee

Exg EREES YMEES

8/8 - -
717 - -
8/8 - 6/6
8/8 - 6/6
8/8 - -
8/8 - -
8/8 - -
8/8 2/2 6/6
8/8 2/2 6/6
8/8 2/2 6/6



Responsible of the Board

The Company has a division of functions reserved to the
Board and delegated to the management. The Board provides
leadership and approves strategic polices and plans with a
view to enhance shareholders’ interests while the day-to-day
operations of the Company are delegated to the
management. The Board has full support of the managing

Director and the management to discharge its responsibilities.

The Board reserves for its decisions all major matters of the
Company, including the approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and
risk management systems, material transactions (in particular
those may involve conflict of interests), financial information,
appointment of directors and other significant financial and

operational matters.

Responsible of the Directors

Each executive Director is delegated individual responsibility
to oversee and monitor the operations of the specific
business unit and to implement the strategies and polices
set by the Board. Each Director may seek for independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the

Company’s expense, upon making request to the Board.

EEgcEfR
AAFBHEECHERBEREEAS
EEEEEER - EEERBEAEACR
ERFRRERTE BRIESREE
BOUWEEETEBEREAQAR R BEE.
EEQRGESLHLBREBAEBSSN
TEOUBITHEBRE-

EZSRBEARAMBEREERTE
B ERNERER —YIBREE B
RS R RIAE A BPEE M E R B I A
BBEARS (FREAETREMEEHR
ZRP) UBEN EFEwREME
ARG REEEH

ExcEE
BERTEFETENAEEESE RERY
EEBBEUZEENRETESEH T
RELBR-REEBAT BRESH
MBEFGRLER SKBEVEEER
ERAARRQR
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Responsible of the Directors (Continued)

The day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Company are delegated to the managing Director
and the management. The delegated functions and work
tasks are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained
from the Board prior to any significant transactions entered

into by the above mentioned officers.

Annual Confirmation from Independent
Non-executive Directors

The Company has received, from each independent
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Board considers all of the independent non-executive

Directors are independent.

Terms of Non-executive Directors

Each independent non-executive Directors of the Company
has entered into a services contract with the Company for
specific term of 3 years, but subject to retirement by rotation

and re-election in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

EECEE (H)

ARFEFEE - TTRREESTERESE
SREENEEBRIE-ARRREZE
ERITEeEHETRN EEATEAR
RETERBEARZA LERSEES
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BRI R =F 2 RBEL BEARER
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Role of Chairman

The Company fully supports the division of responsibility
between the Chairman of the Board and the managing
Director, who performs similar role as chief executive officer,
to ensure a balance of power and authority. The respective
responsibilities of the Chairman and the managing Director
are clearly defined and set out in writing. The Chairman
provides leadership and is responsible for the effective
functioning of the Board in accordance with good corporate
governance practice. With the support of the management,
the Chairman is also responsible for ensuring that the
Directors receive adequate information and appropriate
briefing on issues arising at Board meetings. The position of
the Chairman is held by Dr. Mo Shikang.

Role of Chief Executive Officer

The managing Director focuses on implementing objectives,
policies and strategies approved and delegated by the Board.
He is in charge of the Company’s day-to-day management
and operations. The managing Director is also responsible
for developing strategic plans and formulating the
organizational structure, control systems and internal
procedures and processes for the Board’s approval. The

position of the managing Director is held by Mr. Jin Song.
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EFHKETIRARHTTRESTSHME
LE#EZBR BEMRE -REEAR
AlzARERREFE-EFRKETAR
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The Board has established a remuneration committee (“RC")
with written terms of reference as suggested under the Code
Provision under the Code. The RC comprises the following

five members,

(i)  Mr. Zhang Hesheng, chairman of RC

(executive Directors)

(i) Dr. Mo Shikang (executive Director)

(iii)  Mr. Tan Qinglian (independent non-executive Director)

(iv)  Dr. Liu Junmin (independent non-executive Director)

(v)  Mr. Sin Ka Man (independent non-executive Director)

The RC meets at least once a year to determine the
remuneration policy for the Directors and senior management.
During the year ended 31 March 2008, a total number of six
(6) meetings were held to determine the remuneration policy,
bonus and/or share option for the Directors and/or senior
management. The attendance records of the RC, on a named
basis, are set out under section of “Number of Meetings
Held and Attendance” under the Corporate Governance

Report, on page 60, of this annual report.

ETECORUFMEZE S WIRRTAT
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The RC has primary responsibility for making recommendations

on and approving the remuneration policy and structure and

remuneration packages of the executive Directors and the

executives after consultation with the Chairman/managing

Director and accessed to professional advice, at the Company’s

expenses, when necessary. The major responsibilities of the

remuneration committee are:

)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company'’s policy and structure for all remuneration of
Directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal transparent procedure for

developing policy on such remuneration;

to determine which individual or individuals constitute
senior management;
to review and approve performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and

objectives resolved by the Board from time to time;

to review and approve the compensation payable to
executive Directors and senior management in

connection with any loss or termination of their office;

to review and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of Directors for

misconduct; and

to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is

involved in deciding his own remuneration;

FHERSIRRAEEAATIRE EF
BEEER URBEFHAEXER
(BRBARRARE) R RHFHBERER
RENKTEZTRTRABZHMES
FHEBRLER -FTHEEETERER

¥

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)
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During the year, the Board approved all the recommendations
of the RC. Details of the amount of Directors’ emoluments
during the financial year ended 31 March 2008 are set out
in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements of this

annual report.

The Board has established an audit committee (“AC") with
written terms of reference as suggested under the Code
Provision under the Code. The AC comprises the following

three members, all independent non-executive Directors:

(i) Mr. Sin Ka Man; chairman of AC

(i)  Mr. Tan Qinglian

(iii)  Dr. Liu Junmin

The AC meets at least twice a year to review and approve
the Group's financial reporting process and internal control
system. During the year ended 31 March 2008, a total
number of two (2) meetings were held. The attendance
records of the AC, on a named basis, are set out under
section of “Number of Meetings Held and Attendance” under

the Corporate Governance, on page 60, of this annual report.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERBE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
(Continued)

(e) Audit Committee (Continued)

The major responsibilities of the AC are:

(i)  to review the financial statements and reports and
consider any significant or unusual items raised by the
gualified accountant, compliance officer (if any) or

external auditors before submission to the Board.

(i)  to review the relationship with the external auditors
by reference to the work performed by the auditors,
their fees and terms of engagement, and make
recommendation to the Board on the appointment and

removal of external auditors.

The Group's annual results for the year ended 31 March
2008 have been reviewed by the AC.

ERZBETERER:
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Auditor’s Remuneration
During the year ended 31 March 2008, the fees paid/payable
to auditors in respect of audit services and non-audit services

provided by the auditor to the Group were as follows:

Nature of services BR 7% £ &
Types of Services Ak 75 & 48
Audit for the year FEEZ

The Company does not have Nomination Committee. The
Board as a whole is responsible for the procedure for
agreeing to the appointment of its members and for
nominating appropriate person for election by shareholders
of the Company at the annual general meeting either to fill

a casual vacancy or as an addition to the existing Directors.

B E

REZE2008F3831H IEFE  HiZ AT
AN 5k BB R 2 A BOARS R I BOAR TS
i /R zEBREINMT:

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET R BETIT

2,800 3,500
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The Board has overall responsibilities for the system of
internal controls of the Company and for reviewing its
effectiveness. The Board is committed to implementing an
effective and sound internal controls system to safeguard
the interests of shareholders and the assets of the Group.
During the year, the Board, through the RC, has reviewed
the implementation of the system of internal controls and
reviewing of all relevant financial, operational, compliance
controls and risk management functions. A review will be
conducted at least annually on the effectiveness of the

system of internal controls.

The Company is committed to maintain an open and effective
investor relation policy and to update investors on relevant
information/developments in a timely manner, subject to
relevant regulatory requirements. Briefings and meetings with
institutional investors and analysts are conducted from time
to time. The Company also replied the enquiries from
shareholders timely. The Directors host the annual general
meeting each year to meet the shareholders and answer

their enquiry.

The Company’s website at www.681hk.com contains
important corporate information, biographical details of
Directors, organization structure, annual and interim report,
major historical developments with comprehensive and
user-friendly information about the Group, as well as
announcements and circulars issued by the Company in order
to enable the Company’s shareholders and the investor
community to have timely access to updated information

about the Company and the Group.
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The rights of shareholders and the procedures for demanding
a poll on resolutions at shareholders’ meetings are contained
in the Company’s Bye-Laws. Details of such rights and
procedures are included in all circulars to shareholders
convening shareholders’ meetings and will be explained
during the proceedings of meetings. Whenever voting by
the way of a poll is required, the detailed procedures for

conducting a poll will be explained in meeting.

Poll results will be posted on the website of the Stock
Exchange and the Company’s website (www.681hk.com) on
the business day following the shareholders’ meeting. The
general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for communication between the shareholders and the Board.
The Chairman of the Board as well as chairman of the RC
and the AC, or in their absence, other members of the
respective committees, and where applicable, the
independent Board committee, are available to answer

questions at the shareholders’ meetings.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

CHINESE PEOPLE HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS CHINESE PEOPLE GAS HOLDINGS
COMPANY LIMITED)

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements
of Chinese People Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 76 to 215, which comprise the consolidated balance
sheet as at 31 March 2008, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

notes.

The directors are responsible for the preparation and the true
and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing
and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the

circumstances.
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Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Except for the limitation in
the scope of our work as explained below, we conducted our
audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement. However, because of the matters described
in the basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraph, we were not
able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a

basis for an audit opinion.

As described in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements,
there was an earthquake with a magnitude of 8.0 on the Richter
scale struck Wenchuan area of Sichuan Province of the People’s
Republic of China (“Wenchuan”) on 12 May 2008. Certain of the
Group's subsidiaries, namely, Mian Zhu City Han Wang Natural
Gas Company Limited, Mian Zhu City Hong Sen Natural Gas
Company Limited, Mian Zhu City Long Teng Gas Installation
Company Limited, Longxing (Yan Ting) Natural Gas Company
Limited (“Longxing”) and Bei Chuan County Zhongmin Gas
Company Limited (collectively referred to as the “Sichuan
Companies”) located in Wenchuan were severely affected. A
considerable portion of assets and operating facilities of the
Sichuan Companies have been suffered from serious damage.
The accounting books and records of the Sichuan Companies
except Longxing were destroyed and not be able to be recovered.
The operations of the Sichuan Companies have been forced to be

suspended for the time being.
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As a result of the lack of certain accounting books and records
for inspection caused by the earthquake, we were unable to carry
out audit procedures to satisfy ourselves as to whether the
following balances relating to the Sichuan Companies except
Longxing, which have been included in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group, are valid, complete, have been accurately
recorded and properly accounted for in the consolidated financial

statements:

Income and expenses for the year ended 31 March 2008:
HK$144,311,000
HK$104,355,000
HK$1,749,000
HK$8,959,000
HK$210,000
HK$3,090,000

Turnover

Cost of sales

Other operating income
Administrative expenses
Finance costs

Income tax expenses

Assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2008 (in gross amount):
HK$123,374,000
HK$11,985,000
HK$3,353,000
HK$27,659,000
HK$455,000
HK$19,499,000
HK$22,677,000
HK$18,150,000
HK$6,447,000

Property, plant and equipment
Available-for-sale investment
Prepaid lease payments

Bank balances and cash
Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Trade and other payables
Income tax payables

Bank borrowings

H P 3 R A K HO BR D & R AR A R AR Bk R 2K - 3R
PMELETEREFURERSE E5EK
EMEmERPIIAGE (BREHESN) WATE
ERGAN ZB AEAEERAVBHRE
PERCENEEEX:

HE2008F3A31TBIEFEZWA R :

=5 & 75 #144,311,0007T
85 & A AR 7 % 104,355,000
H b 48 & A 75 ¥ 1,749,0007T
THRX 75 #8,959,0007T
B 5 B AR 7 #210,0007T
FriS i 7 #3,090,0007T

MR2008F3A3MHZEEREBE (%)
R =S 75 #123,374,0007T

AHEERE 75 #11,985,0007T
BREE 75 #3,353,0007T
IRTTAEBR RS &5 #27,659,0007T
BE 75 455,0007T
B 5 Rk E b Y FRIE 75 #19,499,0007T
B 5 Kk E b &~ 5RIE 75 #22,677,0007T
&S P13 Bt 75 18,150,0007C
RITEE 7 #6,447,0007T
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In view of the significance of the damage on the Sichuan
Companies’ assets caused by the earthquake and its impact on
the continuous operation of the Sichuan Companies, as well as
the uncertainty about the recovery and resumption of the Sichuan
Companies’ business operation, the directors of the Company are
of the opinion that assets of and goodwill attributable to the
Sichuan Companies have been significantly impaired and an
impairment loss with respect to the assets and goodwill of the
Sichuan Companies of HK$223,424,000 in aggregate, as set out
in more detail in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements,
is accordingly recognised and charged to the consolidated income
statement for the year ended 31 March 2008.

As a result of the limitation of scope in our work with respect to
the Sichuan Companies as mentioned above, we were unable to
assess whether the provision for such impairment of assets and
goodwill has been properly made and whether the amount of the

impairment is adequate.

We were also unable to obtain sufficient reliable evidence to
satisfy ourselves as to whether the Group has any significant
contingent liabilities and commitment in respect of the Sichuan
Companies arising as a result of the earthquake that need to be

adjusted for or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements.
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There were no other satisfactory audit procedures that we could
adopt to obtain sufficient evidence regarding the abovementioned
matters. Accordingly, we have not been able to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion.
Any adjustment to these figures may have a consequential
significant effect on the loss for the year and net assets at 31
March 2008.

Because of the significance of the matters described in the basis
for disclaimer of opinion paragraph, we do not express an opinion
on the consolidated financial statements as to whether they give
a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s affairs as at 31
March 2008 and of its loss and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards. In all other respects, in our opinion the consolidated
financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Pang Wai Hang

Practising Certificate Number: P05044

Hong Kong
25 July 2008
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2008 2007

76

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 3 BET T BT T
Turnover R 6 619,676 522,804
Cost of sales 8 & B AR (477,310) (350,397)
Gross profit E 142,366 172,407
Other operating income H b g 2 e A 8 9,569 16,167
Administrative expenses TR X (118,469) (109,794)
Discount on acquisition of additional  UgE& Bﬁ%”& )
interests in subsidiaries BIMER < ITiE - 9,240
Gain/(loss) on disposal of subsidiaries HEWEB AR 2z, (EE) 37 2,675 (10,143)
Loss on disposal of an associate HEBENTER (2,324) =
Change in fair value of convertible notes A # i% Z & A I & & & (61,789) (19,797)
Convertible notes issue expenses Al # HXZKTJ% 17 F'fﬂ ¥ - (13,122)
Share-based payment expenses LA XD BEM A A X (31,551) (5,677)
Impairment loss in respect of 2R EEE
earthquake 44 (279,922) -
Impairment loss in respect of goodwill FE&EEEIE (8,397) (91)
Share of results of associates FE (LB & 7%Z$ (10,369) 25,299
Change in fair value of financial assets Tﬁﬂifﬁ T B Z
at fair value through profit or loss TREEATESE 71,998 =
Finance costs B 75 B AR 1M (14,448) (16,740)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRELAT (B58) i A 9 (300,661) 47,749
Taxation H1a 12 (8,739) (15,208)
(Loss)/profit for the year from AFEEHBELTEERS
continuing operations >z (E8) //ﬁnf‘ (309,400) 32,541
Profit for the year from REEFDRIEKE
discontinued operation 2 EE 2 m A 15 - 923
(Loss)/profit for the year REE (BE) &5 F (309,400) 33,464
Attributable to: T3 A
Equity holders of the Company RARERFTFAA (309,456) 22,123
Minority interests LR EER 56 11,341
(309,400) 33,464
Dividend & =2 14 - -
16
From continuing and discontinued REFERDKRIE
operations & = > %i‘x
Basic (cents per share) ﬁ$ (FRRAM) (7.87) 0.69
Diluted (cents per share) 28 (8RB W) n/afiE A 0.69
From continuing operations RERFBEEEED
Basic (cents per share) HAK (tﬂx/% i) (7.87) 0.67
Diluted (cents per share) #E (iAW) n/af & A 0.67
From discontinued operation KA K IEER
Basic (cents per share) BEAR (BRE) n/afiER 0.02
Diluted (cents per share) g (B n/afiER 0.02



2008 2007

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5 BT T BT T
Non-current assets FEMEBEE
Property, plant and equipment M -HE LB 17 541,777 615,764
Investment properties WEYEHE 18 8,370 7,237
Prepaid lease payments FENEE 19 29,591 27,470
Goodwill kS 20 167,192 225,050
Intangible assets mEEE 21 142,582 122,570
Interests in associates B & N B HE 22 53,711 84,138
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 23 6,627 11,601
Deposit paid on acquisition of U B — R BT BB & &) EE S
additional interest in a subsidiary Eano ke 24 2,223 =
952,073 1,093,830
Current assets mEEE
Inventories FE 25 23,560 23,562
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E A EWHKIE 26 116,845 118,696
Amounts due from associates JFE W Bt & R B B 22 = 16,150
Prepaid lease payments EREE 19 616 594
Financial assets at fair value BAFEFABRRZZ
through profit or loss SREE 27 102,042 =
Bank balances and cash RITERER® 28 170,318 184,031
413,381 343,033
Current liabilities VL IR=RE
Trade and other payables B 5 & H b & 508 29 166,217 149,550
Taxation payable JE 35 18 55,345 39,542
Amounts due to associates JE {1 Bk 2 & R RIE 22 20,697 =
Bank borrowings —F Wi‘J,HﬁZ
— due within one year RITEE 30 147,629 106,238
Convertible notes G & 31 - 62,658
389,888 357,988
Net current assets/(liabilities) TmEEE/ () FE 23,493 (14,955)

Total assets less current liabilities BEERREBER 975,566 1,078,875



78

Capital and reserves R A R {6 4
Share capital N
Reserves {1
Equity attributable to equity holders RARERFFA
of the Company JE A5 7 25
Minority interests LERE S
Total equity B
Non-current liabilities EREBAE
Bank borrowings —FREBE
— due after one year RITEE
Convertible notes EE: T ¥
Other payables —FREBE
— due after one year H b & < 3R IR
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEE &

Notes

Bt 5

34

30
31

32
33

2008
HK$'000
BET T

285,763
365,133

650,896
66,089

716,985

78,712
157,878

21,991

258,581

975,566

The financial statements on pages 76 to 215 were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 25 July 2008

and are signed on its behalf by:

Dr. Mo Shikang
DIRECTOR
BEtEE L+
BF

2007
HK$'000
AETIT

253,406
250,115

503,521
66,033

569,554

126,162
348,316

7,066
27,777

509,321

1,078,875

HNFETI6E2IE B RREEEFTER
2008F 7H25A#E R TERETT WHA TR

REZF:
Mr. Jin Song
DIRECTOR
FMmEE
EF



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GARREBE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
B = 2008F 3A 318 It F &

Attributable
to equity
Surplus Share-based holders of
Share Share Capital  Contributed reserve Capital  compensation Exchange  Accumulated the Minority
capital premium reserve surplus fund  contribution reserve reserve losses Company interests Total
R pOL
2% iz BEEA 2 |
Bx RHEE BERRER HARH ARe EAEE Hefh EifER R ER it kRS &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EBTT EBTT EBTT EBTT EETR EETR EETR EETR EETR EETR EBTT A8
(Note ) (Note &) (Note b)
(Wit (Hita) (Hi3tb)
At 1 April 2006 R2006F4A18 201,989 164,699 2,182 89,800 2,629 7,482 7,056 3,113 (206,475) 272,475 4,713 277,188
Exchange difference BB RBHEE
arising on translation pdi3%:3:1
of foreign operations - - - - - - - 20,567 - 20,567 - 20,567
Profit for the year REERF - - - - - - - - 2,123 2,123 11,341 33,464
Total recognised income TEEERANALE
for the year - - - - - - - 20,567 22,123 42,690 1,341 54,031
Issue of shares upon il P
exercise of share options BARG 28,798 23,091 - - - - (1,821) - - 50,068 - 50,068
Issue of shares on conversion A AR T EE
of convertible notes FETRG 8,619 43,992 - - - - - - - 52,611 - 52,611
Issue of shares for acquisition YU iE M B 2 A6
of subsidiaries e 14,000 66,000 - - - - - - - 80,000 - 80,000
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B AR - - - - - - - - - - 72,771 72,771
Capital contribution by PEREEE
minority shareholders - - - - - - - - - - 12,036 12,036
Acquisition of additional W B AR
interests in subsidiaries B - - - - (947) - - - 947 - (34,828) (34,828)
Appropriations R - - - - 2,801 - - - (2,801) - - -
Recognition of equity-settled BRUER L
share-based payments R%lﬁZﬁM - = = = = = 5,677 = = 5,677 = 5,677
At 31 March 2007 and R2007834318 R
1 April 2007 2007F4A18 253,406 297,782 2,182 89,800 4,483 7,482 10,912 23,680 (186,206) 503,521 66,033 569,554
Exchange difference BERNEBMEL
arising on translation pdi 3 %31
of foreign operations - - - - - - - 81,842 - 81,842 - 81,842
Loss for the year rERER - - - - - - - - (309,456)  (309,456) 56 (309,400)
Total recognised income FERERIRAR
and expense for the year FxesE - - - - - - - 81,842 (309,456)  (227,614) 56 (227,558)
Issue of shares upon exercise {7 {f B AR HEES
of share options BIRH 5,404 29,812 - - - - (6,663) - - 28,553 - 28,553
Issue of shares on conversion AT AZER
of convertible notes sl 26,953 287,932 - - - - - - - 314,885 - 314,885
Appropriations - - - - 4,610 - - - (4,610) - - -
Recognition of equity-settled EnEERY
share-based payments E%@Zﬁ*ﬂ - - - - - - 31,551 - - 31,551 - 31,551
Share options forfeited Rk ERE - - - - - - (1,425) - 1,425 - - -
At 31 March 2008 #2008%63A318 285,763 615,526 2,182 89,800 9,093 7,482 34,375 105,522 (498,847) 650,896 66,089 716,985

FREBRERAT 2007-2008F H
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Notes:

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal value of the Company’s share capital issued
as consideration in exchange for the nominal value of the issued
share capital of the subsidiaries acquired at the time of the

Company'’s listing in 1997.

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for foreign
investment enterprises in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"),
the Company’s PRC subsidiaries are required to maintain a statutory
surplus reserve fund and a discretionary surplus reserve fund, which
are non-distributable. Appropriations to such reserves are made
out of profit after taxation of the statutory financial statements of
the PRC subsidiaries while the amount and allocation basis are
decided by their board of directors annually. The statutory surplus
reserve fund can be used to make up their prior year losses, if any,
and can be applied in conversion into capital by means of

capitalisation issue.

The amount represents a revaluation surplus which was recognised
as a result of the acquisition of an additional interest in Xin Hua
Resources Investment Limited (“Xin Hua") (previously an associate)
which resulted in Xin Hua becoming a subsidiary. Xin Hua was
deregistered in year 2006 and its assets and liabilities were

transferred to the Company.

AEBZBABREARFDARERKER
19974 L i1 B P We BB 2 P /B8 2 B T B2 1T 2 &
RRRAEE HZEHNERAREBTRAR
BzZ%-

IR EARLME ([HFE])IEREZR
BERIOEDIFBE ARG ZTEME AR
ARBETRRAESREEERLES (B
PHDIK) - ZERBIBBAXRBTENMER
BUREMBIMRP ZBRBEEN MeBRD
RELENAZENBRARNEETEEFEE X
ERABABRSARFEHELFEZER (W
) UEBREREBEITERBBRA-

% B35 A WA Xin Hua Resources Investment
Limited ([ Xin Hual ) (A5 B & 8 2 B & 2 7))
EBHMERS (BERXin Huafk AN S B B2 F)
MR 2 BB & Xin HuaB R 2006 F 31 84
HEERBBEEEBREARARA



(Loss)/profit before taxation from
continuing operations

Profit before taxation from
discontinued operation

(Loss)/profit before taxation
Adjustments for:

Amortisation of intangible assets

Amortisation of prepaid
lease payments

Change in fair value of
convertible notes

Change in fair value of financial
assets at fair value though
profit or loss

Convertible notes issue expenses

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

Discount on acquisition of additional
interests in subsidiaries

Impairment loss in respect of
earthquake

Impairment loss of goodwill

Impairment loss on trade and
other receivables

Trade and other receivables
written off

Finance costs

Interest income

Loss on disposal of available-for-sale
investments

Loss on disposal of prepaid
lease payments

Loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment

(Gain)/loss on disposal of subsidiaries

Loss on disposal of an associate

Increase in fair value of investment
properties

Share of results of associates

Equity-settled share-based
payment expenses

Notes

Bt

KERBERERHLZ
BREiAT (B518) & A
KEERIEREELZ
B % B gt A

BrEiAT (B1E) a8 A
gL NSIIAE (E AR
BB EE
EEENES

R R i A T

A FEH AREZ
SRAEATEES

ABRRREETHX

Yo B8 Tt /B8 2 A
BRSME 25T B
=R E & B
44
mERERE
B 5 N CH e W R R
BB E 18

B 5 N CE e MR IR 2 i 3

1 75 BAR
2 WA
HEAHESKREESE

HEBNESER

LEDE -HER

REEE
HEWNBARZ

(z) /B8 37
HER & A FEIE
"EYHE 2 N FEE

iR RN
At mEE D
RERZNHFAX

2008
HK$'000
BET T

(300,661)

(300,661)
4,401
671

61,789

(71,998)

21,257

279,922
8,397

759
5,189

14,448
(4,414)

623

(2,675)
2,324

(377)
10,369

31,551

2007
HK$'000
AETIT
47,749

1,632

49,381
3,605
498

19,797

13,122
17,257

(9,240)

1,120

1,445

16,771
(8,232)

79

303

13,758

10,143
(455)

(25,299)

5,677

81
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Operating cash flows before
movements in working capital

Increase in inventories

Decrease in trade and other
receivables

Increase/(decrease) in trade and
other payables

Cash generated from operations
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid

Net cash generated from
operating activities

Acquisition of subsidiaries
(net of cash and cash
equivalents acquired)

Acquisition of additional interests
in subsidiaries

Acquisition of available-for-sale
investments

Acquisition of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

Addition of prepaid lease payments

Addition of intangible assets

Decrease/(increase) in amounts due
from/to associates

Disposal of subsidiaries

Investment in associates

Interest received

Purchase of property, plant and

equipment and investment properties

Proceed from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Proceed from disposal of prepaid
lease payments

Proceed from disposal of
available-for-sale investments

Net cash used in investing activities

Notes

Bt 5

LB
PN i
ook M my

N
A

m Rt
\r

Nl
pus
&
w
=
el
i)
S?k

B 5N E N FRIE
#gan CiA)

REXBEERE
BNFPBEEERMER

RETHELRESFHE

Yo B BT B8 1~ m] (A0 BR P UL 8
ZREeRBREEEER)
38
YR P B A R BRI o

WEAIHEERE

KWEERATEFABRSZ
TRMEE

EinEMEE

ENEREEE

FE W B < Bk X R FRIB
WA (g m)

HE W E LA 37

REE RE 2R E

=R ERIPS!

Eﬁﬁ%% B K 5% 1
LA T 3% & 1) %

HEME BE R
RETENRIE

& B £ P15 RIE

& AT h E R E PSR

REERDMAREIFER

2008
HK$000
BET T

61,575
(1,129)

22,200

11,998

94,644
(4,495)

90,149

(30,044)
(4,475)
(8,947)

45,009
28,035

4,414
(164,266)

94

(130,180)

2007
HK$'000
AW T T

109,821
(3,881)

48,116

(73,765)

80,291
(4,477)

75,814

(123,840)
(33,432)
(5,322)

(1,947)

(16,150)
2,521

(49,645)
8,232

(127,041)
44,902

127

17

(301,478)



Contribution from minority
shareholders

Issue of convertible notes

Repayment of bank borrowings

New bank borrowings raised

Share options conversion

Expenses incurred in connection
with issue of convertible notes

Interest paid

Net cash generated from

financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year

Effect of foreign currency

rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at
the end of the year, represented

bank balances and cash

LEBRFEE
BITABMERRE
EERITEE
FrEFMIRITER

SR E AR
BTABMBERBEEZHAX

ENHME
MEEHMELERSFR
RekHeEEEB ORd) S

12 %8
FYNRERALSHEER

HINEE BB SR A ) Y 2

FRASRBASSHEER
BRI EIRE

2008
HK$'000
BRI T

(111,619)
110,950
28,553

(15,706)

12,178

(27,853)

184,031

14,140

170,318

2007
HK$'000
AETIT

2,214
310,000
(187,320)
117,139

50,068

(13,122)
(15,238)

263,741

38,077

132,986

12,968

184,031

83
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Chinese People Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”),
formerly known as Chinese People Gas Holdings Company
Limited, is an exempted company with limited liability
incorporated in Bermuda on 13 November 1996. On 24
April 1997, the Company’s shares were listed on the main
board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The address of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in
the section headed “Corporate Information” of the Annual

Report.

The Company is an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the sale and
distribution of natural gas and liquefied petroleum gas
("LPG") (collectively referred to as “Gas Fuel”) in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC") including the sale of LPG in
bulk and in cylinders, the provision of piped LPG and natural
gas, construction of gas pipelines, the operation of city gas
pipeline network, the sale of LPG and natural gas household

appliances and supply of video lottery system and equipment.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”), the parent and the ultimate holding company
of the Company is Super Win Development Limited and
Asian Allied Limited respectively, which are both incorporated

in British Virgin Islands.

HRIZERAEBRAA ([RAFE]) (AIEHR
RRRZERBRAA) PA19965F 11713
BREREFMRIEEREERAA-
M1997F 4248 - KRB 2R R EH
BMAERSHARAR ([BRAT]) ERE
Mo ARA MM ERERETELEMS 2
IR ARFRZ [ARIEH ] —BHRE

o

ARBR—HREZERARF EH B AR
TEEREARKME ([HE]) EEH
ERDHRAREBRCA MR (MR
) BRESEEMAERCAHR
RHUEERCABARRERAR BEEZRR
BE RERTMREEBRR HERL
AMRARRARR AL U RHER A

ARAER([EF]) RRERRFZER
Al R & B IER A Al 5 Al A& Super Win
Development Limited X Asian Allied
Limited - MEHREBR X H ST MK

-~
VAR



These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"”) and all values are rounded to
the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated. The
reason for selecting HK$ as its presentation currency is
because the Company is a public company incorporated in
Bermuda with the shares listed on the Stock Exchange, where

most of its investors are located in Hong Kong.

In order to reflect its current and further development of
business scope and base of operations of the Company, the
general meeting of the Company approved the change of
the Company’s name from “Chinese People Gas Holdings
Company Limited” to “Chinese People Holdings Company
Limited” and the adoption of " RIZ AR A A" as the
Chinese name of the Company on 27 September 2007. The
new name and the new Chinese name of the Company, for
identification purpose only, are effective commencing from
12 October 2007 and 15 November 2007 respectively.

BRIER NG AR BRI AR A M RKRS
UATES MAEEEIFEREIN
TR -ARBEBAETREZNEER 2B
B AARBDRBREETMERLZ AR
DA H Ry B AT T T E KB
KREEBUNEE-

RRBREARBRERRKREG B R E
BEERONBR AQXABRRRER
20075 9R 27 EB R AR B WA
[ Chinese People Gas Holdings Company
Limited| 22 & [ Chinese People Holdings
Company Limited] * A R £ 4% [ FF B #22 A%
BERAFBIRARAR AT (EHE
) ARRABZHHERRIF T XEED 7
20079 10H 12H %2007 11 A 15H
AR
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In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first

time, the following new standard, amendment and

interpretations (“new HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA™), which

are effective for the Group’s financial year beginning 1 April

2007.

Hong Kong Accounting

Standard (“HKAS") 1

(Amendment)

HKFRS 7

HK(IFRIC) — Interpretation

(ulntu) 8

HK(IFRIC) — Int 9

HK(IFRIC) - Int 10

HK(FRIC) — Int 11

Capital Disclosures

Financial Instruments:
Disclosures
Scope of HKFRS 2

Reassessment of Embedded

Derivatives

Interim Financial Reporting

and Impairment

HKFRS2 — Group and

Treasury Share Transaction

The adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material effect on

how the results and financial position for the current or

prior accounting periods have been prepared and presented.

Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has been required.

RAFE AEBEERRAUTHEESE
SRR ([BERAGHMAE]) BAR
2007F 4V ARG 2 AR EM B EE 4
WM FER BT EB R 2R ([FEB
B 2RI ) o

B AR BEAREE
([BBE&

A ]) B

CHEN)
EREMBKHRELEN S@MIA KR
EWL
5% (BRUBERE BAMBRELE

2BZEY) B 25k 2 € &
-2 ([2E])
FE 8

5% (ERUB®RE RAXITETLA
2EZ8g) Z B A
—REFER

B (BBRVBSRE PHMERER
REZEY) B
—R2EF105%

BE (BRVKSRE BEMBERELE
2EBZ8Yg) AIE25% — & B
—ZEENR REBEFRMD

2

RO BEV B RELAHAFER
BESTFEXERMBARARZERR
2T AMBEATE -t BAEH
BEFEHE



REEBERN I Fh7 6 W HKR P HRA
AT ERAME®RERZHET REER]
FEREMBRELER BT RRE-

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, amendment and interpretations that have been

issued but are not yet effective, in these consolidated

financial statements.

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial EEgER Mmi 2 25
Statements' 5% (KIEET)
HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs' BB T AR fBEER A
5235 (BERT)
HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate FE AL e MBI
Financial Statements? E275% (&1E3ET) K2
HKAS 1 & HKAS 32 Puttable Financial Instruments R e ER MHESMTA
(Amendment) and Obligations Arising on FE15 R E329 NEBRELEZ
Liquidation’ CHEN) BE
HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Vesting Conditions and AEAUBREREL HEEMHREHE
Cancellations' F25 (BT A)
HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations? BRI ELER EBE G2
35 (K125
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments' BEAEVBmEEN KLHH
E 8%
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HK(IFRIC) = Int 12 Service Concession
Arrangements*

HK(IFRIC) — Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes?

HK(IFRIC) = Int 14 HKAS 19 — The Limit on a

Defined Benefit Asset,
Minimum Funding
Requirements and their

Interaction*

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2009.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2008.

The Directors anticipate that the application of these new
and revised standards or interpretations will have no material

impact on the results and the financial position of the Group.

&% (BB ®RE
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The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis, except for certain properties
and financial instruments, which are measured at fair values,
as explained in the accounting policies set out below. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where
the Company has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from
its activities. The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to
the effective date of disposal, as appropriate. Where
necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line
with those used by other members of the Group. All intra-
group transactions, balances, income and expenses are

eliminated on consolidation.

BETYWERSR I AN T ETHER
BTt LA RSB 2N RS B Bk A
RS2 R AR R e B 2 B o AR BT
BERDRBEAGTMAGHMZER
Eﬁ‘%ﬁﬁi‘;&ﬁ'ﬂﬁié"ﬁtﬂ“mﬁ Eﬁ‘%i&
REOEBIAELF ELTRAREER
BRBIRE 2 EREKE-

REMBERRBEARNRB RARAME
Hl2ER(EMEAR) 2MBHRKR A
RAERNEE - HERIUMBREE
BRARE RGP RGH s IEEAR
EHI-REFERRBHHE 2B AR
ORI HEEEAMAMEXBELEL
MAMIE (WER) ARG RERA
MAEFRE SEHE AR B RRET
FHE NEESFTERERSEET Eib
RERBIFAERE B -MESREARARQT
M2 F R WARRAXERGR KR
ERoEFk
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Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated
subsidiaries are identified separately from the Group's equity
therein. Minority interests in the net assets consist of the
amount of those interests at the date of the original business
combination and the minority's share of changes in equity
since the date of the combination. Losses applicable to the
minority in excess of the minority's interest in the subsidiary’s
equity are allocated against the interests of the Group except
to the extent that the minority has a binding obligation and

is able to make an additional investment to cover the losses.

The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using
purchase method. The cost of acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of
assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity
instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control of
the acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable to the
business combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the conditions
for recognition under HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations” are
recognised at their fair values at the acquisition date, except
for non-current assets (or disposal groups) that are classified
as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-Current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations”, which

are recognised and measured at fair value less costs to sell.

REHZHBAREEFERNZ LEK
RESERAKEZRETEBEI -
BEFETZVBEREZBERRR
EGAHERZRGERESBEUAREAR
HEEDBBRMEZEGEEE-FE
ROBERERDER NBBEENS
REZEIERED FRIFRFLBRREAR
BHRD 2 BEEREAE MR E AR
FRBAX CAARBHZEREEAL
SEAE-

Wo B Bt B8 2 ] (8 PR MR BB DA D BR - W BB A R
BASERRIE B SRMFIEEHE
HIEMBENEE ELSRENRER
BITHOBRAT AN A FEAR S NEH
BHEENEMERKATE RN E
ENAHREE ABERIARE BT
EEEVMBRELAFEINRXHE 6]
M RER R AN B R IR E QP ERE
RERBEEVHRELERESH [
FHERRIEXBHIIERBDEE| DR
FREFELEZERDEE (RHEMA
&) ThLA R FAE R 6 B AN BE 2B e T
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Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset
and initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost
of the business combination over the Group’s interest in the
net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities recognised. If, after assessment, the
Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities, and contingent liabilities exceeds
the cost of the business combination, the excess is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is initially
measured at the minority’s proportion of the net fair value

of the assets, liabilities, and contingent liabilities recognised.

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating
policies the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to

obtain benefits from its activities.
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An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company
has significant influence, but not control or joint control,
over its management, including participation in the financial

and operating policy decisions.

The results and assets and liabilities of the associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method,
investment in an associate is carried in the consolidated
balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes
in the Group's share of the profit or loss and of changes in
equity of the associate, less any identified impairment loss.
When the Group’s share of losses of an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in that associate (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. An
additional share of losses is provided for and a liability is
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf

of that associate.

L DB EEANEBRARA R AEE
EEHEREEAFENCER %/A
HP B REERR BTSN

wEEIRE

o

BENRZEE EEMBBEREREA
ANREEMBERRA-LRERE BERQ

;

AIZRERBUARRKBRAEEE
B MRS 2 B BN A& R
BERINGAEERBERA -HAKHE
B ERAZERENNBHAEE
#WM“TﬁﬁZ%”( EEBERAE
BHBERRFREZEMRSER)
AEEREFLERREZE-FTEBEIR-HE
SAEEBEZBERBEZERBRIRR
AEBAAELRIEEE TR
NCIES R QN (S e



Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the associate recognised at the date
of acquisition is recognised as goodwill. The goodwill is
included within the carrying amount of the investment and

is assessed for impairment as part of the investment.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the

Group’s interest in the relevant associate.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to 1 April
2005

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary for which
the agreement date is before 1 April 2005 represents the
excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest in
the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the

relevant subsidiary at the date of acquisition.
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Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to 1 April
2005 (Continued)

For previously capitalised goodwill arising on acquisitions
prior to 1 April 2005, the Group has discontinued
amortisation from 1 April 2005 onwards, and such goodwill
is tested for impairment annually, and whenever there is an
indication that the cash generating unit to which the
goodwill relates may be impaired (see the accounting policy

below).

Goodwill arising on acquisitions on or after 1
April 2005

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary represents
the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest
in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the subsidiary or associate recognised
at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is initially recognised as
an asset at cost and is subsequently measured at cost less

any accumulated impairment losses.

Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition of subsidiaries

is presented separately in the consolidated balance sheet.
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Goodwill arising on acquisitions on or after 1
April 2005 (Continued)

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that
are expected to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition.
Cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently
whenever there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial
year, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill have been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that
financial year. If the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit,
the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then
to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in the consolidated
income statement. An impairment loss recognised for

goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable
amount of goodwill capitalised are included in the

determination of the amounts of profit or loss on disposal.
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Excess of an acquirer’s interest in the net fair
value of an acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities over cost
(“discount on acquisition”)

A discount on acquisition arising on an acquisition of a
subsidiary or an associate for which an agreement date is
on or after 1 April 2005 represents the excess of the net
fair value of an acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over the cost of the business
combination. Discount on acquisition is recognised
immediately in profit or loss. A discount on acquisition arising
on an acquisition of an associate (which is accounted for
using the equity method) is included as income in the
determination of the investor’s share of results of the

associates in the period in which the investment is acquired.

Property, plant and equipment other than construction in
progress are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation

and any identified impairment losses.
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The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to the consolidated income statement
in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where it
can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted
in an increase in the future economic benefits expected to
be obtained from the use of an item of property, plant and
equipment, and where the cost of the item can be measured
reliably, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost

of that asset or as a replacement.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment

to its residual value over its estimated useful life.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and the
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if

appropriate, at each balance sheet date.
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An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal
arising on derecognition of the assets is included in the
consolidated income statement in the year in which the

asset is derecognised.

Construction in progress represents pipelines, plant and
machinery and other fixed assets under construction, which
is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not
depreciated. Cost comprises direct cost of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during
the period of construction. Construction in progress is
reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant

and equipment when completed and ready for use.

Investment properties are properties held to earn rental or

for capital appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
measured using the fair value model. Gains or losses arising
from changes in the fair value of investment property are

included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.
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Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
identified and recognised separately from goodwill where
they satisfy the definition of an intangible asset and their
fair values can be measured reliably. The cost of such

intangible assets is their fair value at the acquisition date.

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with finite
useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on a

straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are tested for
impairment when there is an indication that an asset may
be impaired (see the accounting policies in respect of

impairment losses below).

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful
lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on a

straight line basis over their estimated useful lives.

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the leases transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessees. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.
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The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the

lease term.

The Group as lessee

Rentals applicable to operating leases net of any incentives
received from the leasing company are charged to the
consolidated income statement on straight-line basis over

the lease term.

Prepaid land lease premium under operating leases are up-
front payments to acquire long-term interests in lessee-
occupied properties. Prepaid land lease premium are stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation and any impairment
and are amortised over the remaining lease terms on a

straight-line basis to the consolidated income statement.
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At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets (other than
goodwill which is disclosed above) to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an

impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.
Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices in
the ordinary course of business less estimated costs to
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the

sale.
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Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on
the consolidated balance sheet when a group entity becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction cost that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are mainly loans and receivables,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")
and available-for-sale investments. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the time frame established by regulation of
convention in the marketplace. The accounting policies

adopted are set out as below.
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Loans and receivables

Loan and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. At each balance sheet date subsequent to
initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade and
other receivables, amounts due from associates and bank
balances) are carried at amortised cost using the effective

interest method, less any identified impairment losses.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if:

- it has been acquired principally for the purpose of

selling in the near future; or

- it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has

a recent actual pattern of short term profit-making; or

- it is a derivate that is not designed and effective as a

hedging instrument

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition,
financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value recognised directly in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise. The net gain or loss recognised
in profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on

the financial assets.

EREEWKRE

ERREERERTRRIZER 2T 5
P % (B 1 Ff 7 B E =k AT & E S R 2 FE DT
i%ﬁ'ﬂﬁ?oﬁ’\\%u\ﬁ% R2BEEERE
CERREUHRE (BRES REME
LISZ RIR - & WHSE 2 B SRR R SRTTAE B )
58 P B IR R SR OK 4% 8 5 B AN R AE o] AT A
pallldy R1=N Eis RN

BAVEFABGZESHEE

R TIER SREETRBERRE

EERE:

- IEEROHALER
%

wmm A

- RASBAREEZEWMITARE
HEZ—#o REAEHENER
# V-4

- R BETEERMmMIEEERENA
fESHR T Ao

RERERRZEHEER BAFETA
BEZeMEENEATEAE AT
BZEHTRELNRERNBR TR
B RBRPERFWaHERLTE
ReMEEZEMREIMBMZAE -

103



104

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as financial assets at FVTPL,
loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investments. At
each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition,
available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value.
Changes in fair value are recognised in equity, until the
financial asset is disposed of or is determined to be impaired,
at which time, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in equity is removed from equity and recognised

in profit or loss.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
guoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are
linked to and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted
equity instruments, they are measured at cost less any
identified impairment losses at each balance sheet date

subsequent to initial recognition.
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Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees on points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset or, where appropriate, a shorter

period.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt

instruments.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at
each balance sheet date. Financial assets are impaired where
there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the

financial assets have been impacted.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below

its cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

B A RE

ERMETEDNFESREEZHBENAN
R BRRAEED N BRAZ T E BR
METFE BRREWA (BRERAAX
NHURMMBEXRERERNEZERR
MR Z(E X BN R B A AT B 4 B S
B ReREECBREREH (BE
i (A8 BRITR ZF X

LEBTAMNS WARERR LR

7
e

TRMEEZRE

Hﬁﬁi%fﬁ%mglﬁ’\%ﬂ*ﬁﬁm ZEME
ERBELEZ BRZEEHAMIITE
B-BISZeMEERAME

?ﬁﬂfﬁmﬁﬁﬁk&ﬁﬁﬁ?'%ﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁz
NFEEBETRFEERNER A BIH
RAEREBEZZBEE-

105



106

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of

impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or

counterparty; or

. default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;

or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a
portfolio of receivables could include the Group's past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the credit period
of 30 to 90 days, observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on

receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment
loss is recognised in the consolidated income statement when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash

flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.
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Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade and other receivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When trade and other
receivables are considered uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to consolidated

income statement.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the

impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not be reversed in consolidated income statement in
subsequent periods. Any increase in fair value subsequent

to impairment loss is recognised directly in equity.
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Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions

of a financial liability and equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. The Group's financial liabilities are generally
classified into financial liabilities at FVTPL and other financial
liabilities. The accounting policies adopted in respect of

financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities at FVTPL has two subcategories, including
financial liabilities held for trading and those designated at
FVTPL on initial recognition. At each balance sheet date
subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities at FVTPL
are measured at fair value, with changes in fair value
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which

they arise.
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Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities, including trade and other payables,
amounts due to associates and bank borrowings, are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective

interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at

the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Convertible notes

Convertible notes issued by the Company (including related
embedded derviates) are designated as financial liabilities at
FVTPL on initial recognition. At each balance sheet date
subsequent to initial recognition, the entire convertible notes
are measured at fair value, with changes in fair value
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which

they arise.
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Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments through the expected life of the financial liability

or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets.
On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised directly in equity is recognised in

consolidated income statement.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid

and payable is recognised in consolidated income statement.
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Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the
consolidated income statement because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years, and it further excludes income statement items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is recognised using tax rates that have been

enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable
on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is
accounted for using the balance sheet liability method.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, and deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill (or negative
goodwill) or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the

accounting profit.
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be

available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to the
consolidated income statement, except when it relates to
items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case

the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that
the Group will be required to settle that obligation. Provisions
are measured at the Directors’ best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the obligation at the balance
sheet date, and are discounted to present value if the effect

is material.
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Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods and services in the normal course of business, net

of discounts and sales related taxes.

Sales of Gas Fuel (including natural gas and LPG), and gas
appliances are recognised when goods are delivered and

title has passed.

Gas connection revenue is recognised upon completion of
pipeline construction which according to industry practice

in the region coincides with the “fire ignition ceremony”.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life
of the financial assets to the net carrying amount of that

financial assets.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the

period of the relevant lease terms.
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In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in
the respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a

foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise,
except for exchange differences arising on a monetary item
that forms part of the Company’s net investment in a foreign
operation, in which case, such exchange differences are
recognised in equity in the consolidated financial statements.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or
loss for the period except for differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains
and losses are recognised directly in equity, in which cases,

the exchange difference are also recognised directly in equity.
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For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the balance sheet date, and their income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for
the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised as a separate component of
equity (the exchange reserve). Such exchange differences
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the

foreign operation is disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on
or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities
of that foreign operation and translated at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date. Exchange

differences arising are recognised in the exchange reserve.

Government subsidy is recognised as income over the periods
necessary to match them with the related costs. Subsidy
related to depreciable assets are presented as deferred
income and are released to income over the useful lives of

the assets.
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Borrowing cost directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets are capitalised
as part of the assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs
ceases when these qualifying assets are substantially ready

for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as expenses in the

period in which they are incurred.

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are charged as
expenses when employees have rendered service entitling

them to the contributions.

Share options granted to employees on or before
7 November 2002, or granted after 7 November
2002 and vested before 1 January 2005

The financial impact of share options granted is not recorded
in the consolidated financial statements until such time as
the options are exercised, and no charge is recognised in
the consolidated income statement in respect of the value
of options granted. Upon the exercise of the share options,
the resulting shares issued are recorded as additional share
capital at the nominal value of the shares, and the excess of
the exercise price per share over the nominal value of the
shares is recorded as share premium. Options which lapse
or are cancelled prior to their exercise date are deleted from

the register of outstanding options.
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Share options granted to employees after 7
November 2002 and vested before 1 January
2005

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date
is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period
with a corresponding increase in equity (”“Share-based

compensation reserve”).

At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to ultimately
vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if
any, is recognised in profit or loss over the remaining vesting
period, with a corresponding adjustment to Share-based

compensation reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in Share-based compensation
reserve will be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in Share-based compensation reserve will be

transferred to retained profits.
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Share options granted to consultants/agents/
advisors

Share options issued in exchange for goods or services are
measured at the fair values of the goods or services received,
unless that fair value cannot be reliably measured, in which
case the goods or services received are measured by reference
to the fair value of the share options granted. The fair values
of the goods or services received are recognised as expenses
immediately, unless the goods or services qualify for
recognition as assets. Corresponding adjustment has been

made to equity (Share-based compensation reserve).

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the reporting date.
However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities

affected in the future.
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As detailed in note 44 to the consolidated financial
statements, an earthquake with a magnitude of 8.0 on the
Richter scale stuck Wenchuan area of Sichuan Province on
12 May 2008 and certain of the Group’s subsidiaries were
affected. Impairment loss of approximately HK$279,922,000
was recognised on certain assets of the subsidiaries affected
in the consolidated income statement during the year ended
31 March 2008. This requires an estimation of the
recoverable amount of the affected assets which involved a

great level of judgement.

In assessing the extent of impairment of and the
recoverability of the affected assets, the management made
use of information from different sources, both public and
generated internally. The management is required to exercise
judgement in applying such information to the Group's
business. The management’s interpretation of such
information has a direct impact on the amount of impairment
losses recognised. Any material deviation of the actual
amount of impairment proved to be necessary in the future
from such estimation would lead to an adjustment to the

profit or loss in future accounting periods.
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The Group tests annually whether property, plant and
equipment and prepaid lease payments have suffered any
impairment in accordance with the accounting policy stated
in note 3. The recoverable amounts have been determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations require
the use of estimates such as the future revenue and discount

rates.

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units
to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected,

a material impairment loss may arise.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives, after taking into
account the estimated residual value. The Group assesses
annually the residual value and the useful life of the property,
plant and equipment and if the expectation differs from the
original estimates, such differences from the original
estimates will impact the depreciation charges in the year in

which the estimates change.
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The Group makes impairment of trade and other receivables
based on an assessment of the recoverability of receivables.
Impairment loss are applied to trade and other receivables
where events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
balances may not be collectible or when the net present
value of the receivable is less than the carrying amount of
the receivable. The identification of impairment loss requires
the use of judgement and estimates. Where the expectation
on the recoverability of trade and other receivables is
different from the original estimate, such difference will
impact the carrying value of trade and other receivables and
the impairment in the periods in which such estimate has
been changed. At 31 March 2008, the carrying amount of
trade and other receivables is HK$116,845,000 (2007:
HK$118,696,000). Details of movement in impairment on
trade and other receivables are set out in note 26 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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As described in note 5(b), the Directors use their judgement
in selecting an appropriate valuation technique for financial
instruments not quoted in an active market. Valuation
technigues commonly used by market practitioners are
applied. For derivate financial instruments, assumption are
made based on quoted market rate adjusted for specific
features of the instruments. Other financial instruments are
valued using a discounted cash flow analysis based on
assumptions supported, where possible, by observable market
prices or rates. The estimation of fair value of unlisted equity
instruments includes some assumptions not supported by
observable market prices or rates. The carrying amount of
the available-for-sale investments is HK$6,627,000 (2007:
HK$11,601,000).

The fair values of the convertible notes were calculated using
the Binomial Model and the Monte Carlo Simulation Model.
The models involve assumptions on the Company’s credit
spread, discount rate, expected credit rating and future cash
flows. Should these assumptions change, there would be

material changes to the valuation.
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Determining income tax provisions involves judgement on
the future tax treatment of certain transactions. The Group
carefully evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax
provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of such
transactions is reconsidered periodically to take into account
all changes in tax legislations. Where the final tax outcome
of these transactions is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provisions in the year in which

such determination is made.

As at 31 March 2008, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately HK$9,586,000 available for offset against
future profits. No deferred tax asset in relation to unused
tax losses has been recognised in the Group’s consolidated
balance sheet due to unpredictability of future profit streams.
In cases where there are future profits generated to utilise
the tax losses, a material deferred tax assets may arise, which
would be recognised in the consolidated income statement

for the period in which such future profits are recorded.

The share-based payment expenses are subject to the
limitations of the Black-Scholes option pricing model and
Binominal Lattic Model respectively and the uncertainty in
estimates used by management in the assumptions. The
estimates include limited early exercise behaviour, expected
interval and frequency of open exercise periods in the share
option life, and other relevant parameters of the share option

models.

BETMSHBERSEHETRRZK
R RIE (E H HIH - AR BEREFER
HZBMBEE EMELRBERE - ZF
RHZHBRESEHEMSL UNERBAE
BORAZIER] M FR 5 2 ST RR LT
FRBRETR MZEEREXEFLE
BT FERNIMERMEEH B

M20085F3A31H AEE 2 KBARY
518 4 & 7% % 9,586,0007T AT FA {E 1K 84
R 5 F o B3 B K BB b BT R 2R 2 0 F) - i
WERRDAREEERAEB K6
EEBBERTHEAECHBEE-MAR
BSATAREEREER & ERA
BEHBRBERNEERBEE WERESE L
MARRBRFEBAR 2 76 K RER

A RERNRFEXDRIZAEN R -
HRATMEEERAR —HARTRA
BR ) X B B2 B IO R AR P M A fh R 2 T
EUmTE ZERTRRERERTR
TR BREEMAANRRAAFHITE IR
ZERERE AR BREE N 2 K i
M2

123



124

The primary objective of the Group’s capital
management is to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholder value through the optimisation

of the debt and equity.

The management reviews the capital structure by
considering the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. In view of this, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through new
share issues as well as raise of new borrowings or
repayment of existing borrowings. The Group's
approach to capital management remains unchanged
throughout the year. The Group has no covenant with

banks for the banking facilities granted.

AEBEEAEREZABRARE
AEBEEMEERBRERLEEE
g MEBREERABLE #
MEREBEREBEBCER RE

2 EERSRRE®K

EEEERABEEAAMIEN
AR R EMBHAEANGEE S
M AKREKBEBETHRRER
MEEXEERAEE FTHEE
BEANGEB - AEEZEAEREN
HRFARBTIE -AKEL EH
HERZBRITEERRTIAETM
Rk



The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which

is net debt divided by the total capital plus net debt.

The Group’s policy is to maintain a stable gearing ratio.

Net debt includes bank borrowings, trade and other

payables, amounts due to associates, less cash and

cash equivalents. Capital includes convertible notes and

equity attributable to equity holders of the Company.

The gearing ratios as at the balance sheet dates were

as follows:

Bank borrowings
Trade and other payables
Amounts due to associates

Less: Bank balances and cash

Net debt

Convertible notes
Equity attributable to equity

holders

Total capital

Total net debt and capital

Gearing ratio
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The Group’s major financial instruments include
available-for-sale investments, financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, trade and other receivables,
amounts due from/to associates, bank borrowings,
convertible notes, trade and other payables and bank
balances. Details of the financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market risk (interest
rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are

implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Interest rate

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily
to variable-rate bank deposits and variable-rate
borrowings (see note 30 for details of these
borrowings). It is the Group’'s policy to keep its
borrowings at floating rate of interests so as to

minimise the fair value interest rate risk.
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Interest rate (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-
derivative instruments at the balance sheet date. For
variable-rate borrowings, the analysis is prepared
assuming the amount of liability outstanding at the
balance sheet date was outstanding for the whole year.
A 100 basis point increase or decrease in interest rate
is used when reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible

change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 100 basis points higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
loss for the year ended 31 March 2008 would decrease/
increase by approximately HK$68,000 (2007: profit
increase/decrease by approximately HK$19,000). This
is mainly attributable to the Group's exposure to interest

rates on its variable rate borrowings.

M= (&)

AT 2 8RE 5 ﬁﬁ)ﬂﬁ%ﬁ%mil

ARBEEAZFEERARENE
E,%&Eﬂi{gﬁ' RBIE
SHBRNEEE  REBARE

SHERE EWB?HQ;@ &\ A
FTEEBABERIERARSESH
FIZE DR 10018 E 25 - i TR KRB
BH R ERAEBEAEEEH 2T e

i 7 = A = FA K 10018 2 26 M At
BEMAZERERTE KEH
HE2008F3A3MAILEEZEHRE
# R N 4 7 % 68,0007T
(20074 = 33 FI 38 hn /7 6k > 49 78 &
19,0007T) ' F ER A AR KB AE
FEREEEZME
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Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investment in listed equity securities. The management
manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risk and return profiles. The
Group’s equity price risk is mainly concentrated on
equity securities operating in industry sectors quoted

in the Stock Exchange.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risk at the

reporting date.

2008 20084

EEEAR

AEERERER EHRAESFM
HHBRAERRR - EEEEBHE
FTRARRERFzREASE K
mEZ RGN EE 2 RAER
RREBESTREBMIARE T
EDRER 2 BRARE 77

AT ZBRED T TIRBARE R
H P T 2 P AN (B AR L B T BB E o

Decrease/
(increase)

in loss for
the year
FEBER
WA, (g m)
HK$'000
BAETT

If equity prices had been 10% higher IR AEHRE ER10% 10,204
If equity prices had been 10% lower MR ABEE T/E10% (10,204)



Currency risk

The Group's exposure to currency risk is attributable to
the bank balances and cash and deposits of the Group
which are denominated in foreign currencies of RMB
(see note 28 for details). The functional currency of
the relevant group entities is RMB. The Group currently
does not have a foreign currency hedging policy in
respect of foreign currency exposure since HK$ is
pegged to the US$ and majority transactions are
conducted in functional currency of relevant group
entities, management considers the Group’s exposure
to currency risk is minimal. However, management
monitors the related foreign currency exposure closely
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency

exposure should the need arise.

Credit risk

The credit risk on liquid fund is limited because the

counterparties are banks with high credit standing.

ERER

AEEmE 2 EERARTTHARALE
BZRITEREIRSEBERUAAR
BN ERFHEMR (FRE RN
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Credit risk (Continued)

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. The Group’s trading terms with its
customers are mainly on credit, except for new
customers, where payment in advance is normally
required. The normal credit period is generally for a
period of 30 days to 90 days and extending up to 180
days for major customers. Each customer has a
maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management.
In view of the aforementioned and the fact that the
Group's trade receivables relate to a large number of
diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. Further quantitative data
in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising
from trade and other receivables are disclosed in note

26 to the consolidated financial statements.

Liquidity risk

To manage the liquidity risk, the Group reviews the
level of cash and cash equivalents to ensure their
adequacy to finance the Group’s operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuation in cash flows. The
Group also review the utilisation of borrowings and
ensures the compliance of loan covenants. The Group
relies on bank borrowings as a significant source of

liquidity.

FERR (&)
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Liquidity risk (Continued) REBEEER (E&)

The following table details the Group’s remaining TREIAEBFITESRARTR
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial BRENB Bz FB LR IBER
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the SENEEERERNFKZA &
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based MEEZAMBRREREMAR-
on the earliest date on which the Group can be required hEBEMNEREAERERE-

to pay. The table includes both interest and principal

cash flows.
Total
undis-
Within Within the Within the Within the Within the counted
One year second year third year forth year fifth year cash flow
BB
—-ER E-ER EZER EMER ZRERN BERELE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
At 31 March 2008 R2008F3A31H
Trade and other payables B 5 R Eft
eI IE 164,721 - - - - 164,721
Amounts due to associates  fE (Tt & 1A 7]
B
20,697 - - - - 20,697
Bank borrowings RITEE 157,348 32,736 53,220 961 - 244,265
Convertible notes THRRER 3,100 165,075 - - = 168,175
345,866 197,811 53,220 961 - 597,858
At 31 March 2007 2007437318
Trade and other payables Z SR Ef
JER HE 148,076 7,066 - - = 155,142
Bank borrowings RITEE 119,156 59,773 31,882 48,342 1,057 260,210
Convertible notes THRREE 6,978 45,554 330,150 - = 382,682
274,210 112,393 362,032 48,342 1,057 798,034
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Liquidity risk (Continued)

Categories and fair value of financial

instruments

The carrying amounts of each of the following

categories of financial assets and financial liabilities at

the balance sheet date are set out as follows:

Financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Loans and receivables (including

cash and cash equivalents)

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities stated
at amortised cost
Financial liabilities designated
as fair value through

profit or loss

TRMEE
AL EEREE
BAVFEAABRRZ
TRMEE
ERREERFRE (BERE
kREFEERB)

A =N
REHK AT B 2
TRAR
BEREBXFERTA
BRZeRMEE

RBHREERE ()

EHMTAZTER X FE

DTFEERSBEERSBA ER

RERZREERT:

2008 2007

HK$"000 HK$'000

BET T BETT

6,627 11,601

102,042 -

283,073 315,906

411,759 387,542

157,878 410,974



The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

are determined as follows:

- The fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities (including derivative instruments) with
standard terms and conditions and trade on active
liquid markets are determined with reference to
quoted market bid prices and ask prices

respectively; and

- The fair value of other financial assets and
financial liabilities (including derivate instruments)
are determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis using prices or rates from observable
current market transactions as inputs. For an
option-based derivate, the fair value is estimated
using option pricing model (for example, the

binomial model).

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements

approximate their fair values.

TREENERABZAFERT
575 NEE -

TREERERABEZIAYF
BE(BEITETIR) AERE
fifR TR R A 1 R 70 VR BB R B T
LEENEREENTREA
B - HoMN2ERRTSER

Hte@MEERSBMAE (8
BOTAETER) 2R FETRE
BRERENMZAREE
B ERABERAKTSEE
TRHERIBEEE M
BIUTET AR HETEER
A (W=BER) EEt A FE-

EERANEA BB RE A

RAANERZEREERERAEL

FREEREATFEMES-
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Turnover represents the fair value of the consideration

received or receivable and represents amounts receivable

for goods and services in the normal course of business, net

of discounts and sales related taxes. An analysis of the

Group's turnover, for both continuing and discontinued

operations, is as follows:

Continuing operations
Provision of piped Gas Fuel
Transportation and distribution of
LPG and retail of bottled LPG

Discontinued operation

Glass products

FERERK
HEEBRR
MR B R E B

DHERMETE

B IEER
I E o

LERBEROUIEUREZAFESE
RREMBEIT IO RHEERBAHRENA
BEBRET ZE M RREEEFIE-A
SECEXE (BERBELERKLER

%)W

2008
HK$000
BETT

425,846

193,830

619,676

619,676

2007

HK$°000

BETT

489,115

33,689

522,804

9,613

532,417



Segment information is required by HKAS 14 “Segment
Reporting” to be presented by way of two segment formats:
(i) on a primary segment reporting basis, which the Group
has determined to be by business segment; and (ii) on a
secondary segment reporting basis, which the Group has

determined to be by geographical segment.

For management purposes the Group is currently organised
into two operating divisions:
Provision of piped —  construction of gas pipeline
Gas Fuel networks, provision of piped
natural gas and LPG

Transportation and —  the sale of LPG in bulk to
distribution of LPG wholesale customers and the
and retail of retail of bottled LPG to end
bottled LPG user households, industrial

and commercial customers

The Group had glass products segment which was
discontinued during year ended 31 March 2007. The details
is disclosed in note 15 to the consolidated financial

statements.

In determining the Group's geographical segments, revenues
and results are attributed to the segments based on the
location of the customers, and assets are attributed to the
segments based on the location of the assets. As the Group’s
major operations and markets are located in the PRC, no

further geographical segment information is provided.

DEERBREBEEEGTEAE 14K [H
WIZHREUMBESEHBRFH ()
HDERBAR (REEETEAEKE
DEWER)  RNVXEDEHEREIFH
(FEBEBEENMEE S D BER) o
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AL A AR — EH B RLEA
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AEBZEBERDBEREZE20074F
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REEAREE MRS EE IRAREET)
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EMEUESE ARAEB T ELE
RS AMA SR F - 085K 5 i
DEERZF@AD -

135



136

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and contribution by

business segment during the year is as follows:

For the year ended 31 March

Turnover
Segment results

Unallocated other
operating income

Change in fair value of
convertible notes

Convertible notes issue
expenses

Change in fair value of
financial assets at fair
value through profit
or loss

Gain/(loss) on disposal of
subsidiaries

Unallocated amount

Loss on disposal of
an associate
Discount on acquisition of
additional interests in
subsidiaries
Impairment loss in respect
of earthquake (Note 44)
Unallocated amount

Impairment loss in respect
of goodwill

Unallocated corporate
expenses

Finance costs

Share of results of
associates

Unallocated amount

(Loss)/profit before
taxation
Taxation

(Loss)/profit for the year

s

ES
e

AOREME
LN
THRRRE
ATEEY
THRRRE
BT
BRFEFARR
ZEREE
ZRTERY

Dk

B

HEHBRAZ
W/ (E#R)
AOREE

HEBE DR
BB
WEKBAF
BIMER
rig
R ESE
(P E44)
AAOREE

BHEREBE
ROREERX

HHHA
FEME B & DA
ES
ADEHE

B Bi Al
(BR) /&7
A

KEE
(B#8) /&7

Continuing operations

RER:

HZEIANBILEE

BRASERY BRIEXK

Provision of piped

Gas Fuel
HEEERR
2008 2007

HK$'000  HK$'000
BETT AT
425,846 489,115
58,640 97,784
2,675 -
(240,939) -
(2,130) 26,930

Transportation and
distribution of
LPG and retail of

bottled LPG Total Glass Products
BILARRER-
PHERBEZE &t HEER

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

HKS$’000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BT AETT A%Tn AETT E%Tn AR

193,830 33,689 619,676 522,804 - 9,613
9,626 (744) 68,266 97,040 = 1,663

- = 2,675 = - (9.900)

- - (240,939) - - -

- - (2,130) 26,930 = =

Discontinued operation

TRENAEEFAREB DB WA

Consolidation

A

2008 2007
HK$'000  HK$'000
BRI AETr
619,676 532,417
68,266 98,703
4,956 8,601
(61,789)  (19,797)
- (13,122)

71,998 =
2,675 (9,900)
= (243)
2,675  (10,143)
(2,324) =

= 9,240
(240,939) =
(38,983) -
(279,922) =
(8,397) (91)
(71,307)  (32,538)
(14,448)  (16,771)
(2,130) 26,930
(8239)  (1,631)
(10,369) 25299
(300,661) 49,381
(8,739)  (15,917)
(309,400) 33,464



As at 31 March

Segment assets
Interests in associates
Unallocated amount

Amounts due from
associates

Goodwill

Unallocated assets

Total assets

Segment liabilities
Amounts due to associates
Convertible notes
Unallocated liabilities

Total liabilities

For the year ended
31 March

Other information

Depreciation

Unallocated amount

Loss on disposal of
property, plant and
equipment

Unallocated amount

Amortisation of
intangible assets
Impairment loss in respect of
earthquake (Note 44)
Unallocated amount

Revaluation gain on
investment properties
Capital expenditure
Property, plant and
equipment, through
acquisition of
subsidiaries
Unallocated amount

Property, plant and
equipment
by the group itself
Unallocated amount

DHAE
INGENGIE:

AOREE
JFE W B 2 % R OB

GE
KOREE

BERE

DHEE
JE A B 1N R OB
EE3ES
AAEEE

RELE

E23A318
LEE
AR
il
ROEHE

HENZE FE R
REZER

AP EHE

BHEEVAE

HWERNEER
(Bt 3£ 44)
AOREE

REMEERKE

AR
BBRENBRT
0% BE

&

AR EHE

AEEAGR
VEN:
Rk

AR EHE

MW3A31H

Continuing operations
FESERHK
Transportation and
distribution of

Provision of piped LPG and retail of

Gas Fuel bottled LPG Total
BIEAHRES-

HEEERE FHRBETE Ch
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
B¥In BETr  B%Tn  BBTr  B¥Tn  EETn
756,593 919,228 137,755 101,496 894,348 1,020,724
51,501 36,238 - - 51,501 36,238
159,341 217,920 7,851 7,130 167,192 225,050
116,993 100,242 17,387 18,878 134,380 119,120
20,697 - - - 20,697 -
17,198 15,214 2,196 514 19,394 15,728
505 13,712 - - 505 13,712
4,401 3,605 - - 4,401 3,605
240,939 - - - 240,939 -
(377) (455) - = (377) (455)
- 344,996 - - - 344,99
128,331 80,629 34,625 32,713 162,956 113,342

Discontinued operation

BRIEXK

Glass Products

BEER
2008 2007
HK$'000  HK$'000
E¥TR  ERETR
- 447
- 3,559

Consolidation

Ele)

2008
HK$'000
BRI
894,348
51,501
2,210
53,711

167,192
250,203

1,365,454

134,380

20,697
157,878
335,514

648,469

19,394
1,863

21,257

505
18

623
4,401
240,939
47,380
288,319

(377)

162,956
1,310
164,266

164,266

2007
HK$'000
BETR

1,020,724
36,238
47,900
84,138

16,150
225,050
90,801

1,436,863
119,120

410,974
337,215

867,309

16,175
1,082

17,257

13,712
46

13,758

3,605

344,996
3,668
348,664

116,901
19,615
136,516

485,180
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Continuing operations

Bank and other interest income
Exchange gain
Rental income, net of outgoings
Repair and maintenance income
Revaluation gain on investment
properties
Storage income
Subsidy and compensation income
Water supply and sales of
gas appliance
- Income

— Cost of sales

LPG cylinders trains rental,
net of outgoings
Others

Discontinued operation

Subsidy income
Bank and other interest income
Others

Total

BFRCERE

RAT R B A A B A
BEE 5 K 25

WA kR
miERERERA
BREWEEE WS

ffé 77 U A
il B & B B A
HARRHEMRRE

— A
—HEKAK

LPGH# Bk HE &
ME RMAX
Hib

BERIEER

il B WA
RAT R E A A B A
H A

st

2008
HK$'000
BET T

4,414
120
267
721

377
1,112

3,098
(2,606)
492

1,217
849

9,569

9,569

2007
HK$'000
AETT
8,228
4,777

89

1,010
455

110
20

1,793
(1,420)
373

315
790

16,167

1,103

1,108

17,275



(Loss)/profit before taxation has been

the following:

Staff costs, including
directors’ and
supervisors' emoluments
- Salaries, wages,

allowances and
benefits in kind
- Retirement benefits

scheme contributions

- Share-based payment
expense

Cost of inventories sold
Auditor's remuneration
- current year provision
- underprovision in
prior years
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Amortisation of prepaid
lease payments
Amortisation of
intangible assets
Loss on disposal of
property, plant and
equipment
Loss on disposal of
prepaid lease payments
Loss on disposal of
available-for-sale
investments
Impairment loss on trade
and other receivables
Trade and other
receivables written off
Share of tax of associates
(included in share of
results of associates)

BIRA B
EXxREEMe

-¥2 148 28
REWA G

— RN 3
3%

— ARk fn A E R
MRFAX

BERERA
72 il
-AERER
-BEFRIR

nx BER
RENE
ErErEe

BHEVAE

HENE FE R
REHE

LERRHEEER

HEMHHE
REBR

B RAMENE
ZREBR
ESRAEMER
IR M
B E ARHE
(BEAEM B
NGESY

arrived after charging

Continuing operations

BREEEXE
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$:000
BRI BT
42,068 33,803
2,221 1,730
19,657 5,677
63,946 41,210
477,310 350,397
2,800 3,500
- 293
21,257 16,810
671 485
4,401 3,605
623 13,758
- 303
- 79
759 1,120
5,189 1,445
3,024 13,704

BrBial (B18) 8 ENBRTHSE:

Discontinued operation
BRIEER
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT

- 19

= 8,531

Consolidated

2008
HK$'000
BB

42,068

2,221

19,657
63,946

471,310

2,800

21,257

671

4,401

623

759

5,189

3,024

o)
2007
HK$'000
BETL

33,956
1,749

5,677
41,382

358,928
3,500
293
17,257
498

3,605

13,758

303

79
1,120

1,445

13,704
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The remuneration of the Directors for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock
Exchange and Section 161 of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance, is analysed as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2008

Salaries,
allowances
Directors’ and benefits
fee in kind
He 28
EENe REHAE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Executive directors HOEZR
Xu Ruixin BRI - -
Liu Jing 2R
- resigned on —R2007F
31 December 12A31H
2007 BHIE - 1,370
Mo Shikang Rt - 1,844
Zhang Hesheng RANA& - 1,918
Zhu Peifeng RIER - 1,836
Jin Song RN - 612
Wong Ching IR - 910
Independent BUEHTES
non-executive
directors
Liu Junmin %R 130 -
Tan Qinglian EEH = =
Sin Ka Man R 140 -
270 8,490

BB mES EmARR(TEWR
A1) kBB R B EDISE 16116
B EERNAFEZMEFBOT:

HZ2008F3A31HILLFE

Share-based
payment
BB 5

Bl 2%
HK$'000
BETR

1,005

125
1,005
1,005
1,005
1,005

362

362

5,874

Retirement
benefit
scheme

contributions
RKEF
HE LN
HK$'000
BETR

28
30
30
26

114

Total
emoluments

Y
HK$'000
i R

2,375
1,997
2,953
2,871
1,643
1,915

492

502

14,748



For the year ended 31 March 2007

Executive directors HITER
Xu Ruixin RInE
Liu Jing 2R
Mo Shikang R fR
Zhang Hesheng RAAE
Zhu Peifeng K@,
Jin Song B
Yan Wing Cheung Bk
- resigned on — 20065
23 December 12B23A B F
2006
Wong Ching IR
- appointed on — R 2006%F
23 December 12238 %1
2006
Independent BUFNITES
non-executive
directors
Liu Junmin AEBR
Tan Qinglian ZEu
Wong Shing Kay, HEAE
Oliver
- resigned on — R 2006%F
3 October 2006 10A3B&E
Chan Chuk Cheung, — BR##
Ivan
- appointed on — 20065
3 October 2006 10838
and resigned on KR 20065
23 December 12A23H
2006 BT
Sin Ka Man ER
- appointed on — 20065
23 December 12A23H
2006 2

Directors’
fee

Ezxne
HK$'000
ik e

68

32

33

264

Salaries,
allowances
and benefits
in kind
&2
REYFR
HK$'000
BET T

1,620
1,833
1,828
1,828
435

686

230

8,460

HZE2007F3A31HLLFE

Retirement
benefit
Share-based scheme Total
payment contributions emoluments
URGH RAKBF
ER AR SEMR ame
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BETR BETT
- - 1,620
- 23 1,856
- 30 1,858
- 30 1,858
- 20 455
505 9 1,200
- - 230
= - 131
- - 68
- - 32
- - 33
505 112 9,341
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None of the Directors waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments paid by the Group and no incentive
payment for joining the Group or compensation for
loss of office was paid or payable to any director of
the Company during the two years ended 31 March
2008 and 2007.

During the years ended 31 March 2008 and 2007,
certain Directors were granted share options, in respect
of their services to the Group, under the share option
schemes of the Company, further details of which are
set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements. The fair value of such options, which has
been charged to the consolidated income statement,
was determined as at the date of grant and included

in the above Directors’ remuneration disclosures.

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments,
all (2007: all) are Directors whose emoluments are

disclosed in note 10(a).

During the two years ended 31 March 2008 and 2007,
no emoluments were paid to the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining

the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

FH E 200838318 &200743A4
BTEIEMEFE EFMEMRESK
REREETANAEEZN S
2 &= B B S T S IR T AE
AARREEERNBREER 2 42
BB & kB B A (E

A E20084F &200743A31H Lk
FE-RBEAARBRETS &T
EERERAAEBIRHE 2 REER
THERE BHEFBRANGEME
RT3 - ZEEREZATE
(BERERE MR MBR) RIRE A
HEF UTBERALEEHE 2

Az (2007F : 23) = HMA L
HEEE EMeE #HERMH
F10(@)A e

L Z=2008F % 2007F3A31H LM
BEE rAEEHEZAMEe TR
UEmFMAT EAMBEARAEE
2 REN S AERBE BT E



Interest on convertible notes
Interest on bank loans and
overdrafts wholly repayable

within five years

Less: amount capitalised
in construction

in progress (note)

Attributable to:
Continuing operations

Discontinued operation

Note: The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate of
7.48% — 9.69% per annum. (2007: 9.1% to 10.93%).

2008

HK$’'000
BT T
AR Eg 2 F A 4,289
BRSFANBREBEEZ
RITERREZF B
18,238
22,527
WoERIRAENE
& %8 (M5E)
(8,079)
14,448
T & 1k
SIE IR RS 14,448
BRIEER -
14,448

2007
HK$'000
AETIT

6,277

18,275

24,552

(7,781)

16,771

16,740
31

16,771

M EENABIESFT748%E9.69%
(2007 :9.1% % 10.93%) BA& (k-
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Current tax: BN HA 15 -

Hong Kong Profits tax BEENIFH

PRC Enterprise Income Tax RE SR

Overprovision for prior years BOEFERBBERE
Deferred tax: IR I

Credit for the year (Note 33) NEFZE A (KHEE33)
Attributable to: T3 FEfh

Continuing operations FECEET

Discontinued operation ERIEED

Hong Kong Profits tax is calculated at 17.5% (2007: nil) of
the estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxation arising
in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in

the relevant jurisdictions.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC,
the statutory PRC Enterprise Income Tax rate of 25% (2007:
33%) is applied to the Group entities except for entities
that are entitled to different concessionary tax rates as

disclosed below.

2008 2007

HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI T AETIT
5,042 -
11,837 20,180
(37) (4,263)
(8,103) -
8,739 15,917
8,739 15,208

- 709

8,739 15,917

BENEHIDRBEAFE G ERTE
M2 17.5%H & (20074 : £&) < H A ADE
BRZHMBEERADEER ZRTHE

| e
ATE-

BBEFPREEEEERER RTIXHEE
FETREERE BRI AEEBE
BHRPBECEEZEMBH E25%
(20074 :33%) Bh 49 Fi1g o



Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC,
certain PRC subsidiaries of the Company are entitled to an
exemption from the PRC Enterprise Income Tax for the first
two years commencing from their first profit-making year of
operation and thereafter, these PRC subsidiaries will be
entitled to a 50% relief from the PRC Enterprise Income Tax
for the following three years (“2+3" tax preference). The
PRC Enterprise Income Tax rates applicable to these
subsidiaries range from 15% to 33% and the reduced tax
rates for the relief period range from 7.5% to 16.5%. The
charge of the PRC Enterprise Income Tax for the years has
been provided for after taking these tax incentives into
account. The tax benefit will expire during the period from
year 2008 to 2012.

On 16 March 2007, the PRC promulgated the Law of the
PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “New Law"”) by Order
No. 63 of the President of the PRC. On 6 December 2007,
the State Council of the PRC issued Implementation
Regulations of the New Law. The new PRC Enterprise Income
Tax rate for domestic and foreign enterprises was unified to
25% effective from 1 January 2008 under the New Law and

Implementation Regulations.

On 26 December 2007, the State Council of the PRC issued
a Circular on the implementation of transitional preferential
policies for the PRC Enterprise Income Tax. Entities that are
currently entitled to preferential tax rates of 15% under the
old PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law can gradually transit to
the new tax rate of 25% within 5 years after the enforcement
of the New Law at a tax rate of 18%, 20%, 22%, 24% and
25% in year 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012 respectively.
Entities that originally enjoy the “2+3" tax preference can
continue enjoying the tax preference based on the original
tax rate until after the expiration of the tax preference.
Entities that did not start “2+3" tax preference before 2008
because they were still in loss position shall start the “2+3"

tax preference from 2008.

BEBEFEEEEERER RNARETH
BB AR ERESBLEHEENSE
EREREHBMNPECEMSHME M
HE="FzZF+TENBARNBEER
REMS0%F B BEREH ([243] B
BH) BARZEMBARZHEME
TR ERI15%E33% 5 i 25 A
ZEREHRENTIS%NE16.5%  RF
Wz F BB EMGEH X That AL S
BB LB - B EE A H 2008
FZE2012F B B B

7200753 R 168 - R B A E#E AR %
MBEELFEIRHBECEMSHE
(T#£011) - R 2007F 12468 R EEH
76 B A8 A0 ¥ B B e 1R 91« AR 3R A 01l %
B iRf] A RIS EZFETPE M
XS HESE —A25% ' F2008F 171
B AR

2007 12 A 268  # B B 15 B 5t B 1
Hh B 1 25 P15 B0 3R M 1B B ISR B B
Bl -ERBEEREMEBEMNT
BRIGERREBRB EI15%HHN 2 B8
REEFERERFRNER L BEZHNM
% 25% + F£20084F - 20094 - 20104 -
200N FE R2012FZMEHHI R18% -
20% ~ 22% * 24% K 25% ° RAFEH
[2+3] BB BECEEARERERX
BEZRATGER BEEEEHRAL-
B 2k L JE F M £ 2008 BT R B A B 1T
[2+3] BB BENEE §7E20085F M
BET2+3] BTG ER-

145



The deferred tax balance has been adjusted to reflect the

tax rates that are expected to apply to the respective periods

when the asset is realised or the liability is settled.

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the (loss)/

profit per the consolidated income statements as follows:

(Loss)/profit before taxation

Tax at the respective
applicable rate

Tax effect of share of
result of associates

Tax effect of income not taxable
in determining taxable profit

Tax effect of expenses not
deductible for tax purpose

Tax loss not recognised

Tax loss utilised

Tax effect of 50% income tax
relief granted to subsidiaries

Tax effect of exemption
granted to subsidiaries

Effect of different tax rate of
subsidiaries

Overprovision for prior years

Taxation for the year

BRuia (B8 E A

BEBEMAKRE
DIEBMERRFEIRBEE

fEE IRk A
BEAFRBAZHRBEEE
THIB Hz2 R E

RERZHAER

T I8 &5 18 A A

¥ B X R & 4X 50%
SHERZRBRE
MBARERRR I RETE
MEBARTRAMEZEE
BEFEBERERE

REEZEHIR

ELERBEREROEH AR URREBEHAR
BESRXFERECARYEEANER

ZHRE

mekaEke (BR) (SN ERFEZ

MRS R T :
2008

HK$'000
BETT

(300,661)

(75,166)

2,592

(16,812)

105,598

2,259

(4,393)

(1,495)

(3.807)
(37)

8,739

2007
HK$'000
BETT

49,381

16,296

(8,349)

(2,580)

15,443

9,126

(4,552)

(2,410)

(2,794)
(4,263)

15,917



Loss attributable to shareholders dealt with in the income
statements of the Company is HK$46,891,000 (2007:
HK$58,889,000).

No dividend had been paid or declared by the Company
during the year (2007: nil).

During the year ended 31 March 2007, the Group
discontinued its glass products business upon the deemed
disposal of its controlling interest in Mian Zhu City Hongsen
Glass Products Company Limited (the “Glass Products”). The
Glass Products was a 70% owned subsidiary of the Group
as at 31 March 2006. The Group acquired the remaining
30% of equity interest from the minority shareholder
effective on 31 May 2006 at a total consideration of
HK$1,009,000. Discount on acquisition of additional interest
in subsidiary of HK$1,751,000 was resulted. The acquisition
has resulted in Glass Products becoming a wholly-owned

subsidiary of the Group.

RARRIWBZRPOERE 2 REEN
&5 18 & 7 15 46,891,000 (20074 : 7B
58,889,0007T) °

RER AR2AMELNHE
(20074 : 48) o

& BB

REZE2007F3A831ALFE AEER
EHEERBITMAKREEERERA
Al (IHBER]) 2ERERBKRIERERE
WEMERK-N20066F3A310 FHHEE
MAREBERIO% B AR ANEH
VA #1,009,0007T 2 BB M DB R
W g 82 TS 30% A #E - 722006 5F5 A31H &
BB B A REINER 2 TR RAE
1,751,0007C ° 5Z W B B BUK B = @K B
AEE2EHRBEHMBRA
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The Glass Products later reconstructed its property, plant
and equipment after moving to a new location and increased
its registered capital from HK$1,009,000 (RMB1,000,000)
to HK$17,159,000 (RMB17,000,000) for additional general
working capital purpose. However, the Group has not made
further investment in Glass Products with a view to focusing
its resources in developing core business. New investors were
introduced to make up the increased capital. The Group’s
interest in the Glass Products was decreased from 100% to
19% upon the completion of such increase in registered
capital and the Glass Products ceased to be a subsidiary of
the Company. The discontinued operation results in a loss
of approximately HK$9,900,000 included in the consolidated

income statement for the year ended 31 March 2007.

BEEMRRBENULE EEEWE.
BMELREZEBELHEEIMEABHE
#1,009,0007T (A K% 1,000,0007T) &
EE 17,159,000 ( A R ¥
17,000,00070) fEAB # & EE Ak
A AEBRTEPERZOER K
BE—SPRAEANEEED Bits| AFK
B & LA N E AN o 5 58 BK 38 0 = i AR AN
B NEERKEBE DK EZITE100%
WP E19%  MEBERTNBARARZ
MEBAG ERIEEBEEEBRNBE
9,900,0007T * B 5 A& E 20074 3 A 31
BIEFEEZHGEERER



Turnover

Cost of sales

Gross profit
Other operating income
Administrative expenses

Finance costs

Profit before taxation

Taxation

Profit for the year from

discontinued operation

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company

Minority interests

Cash flows from discontinued operation:
Net cash from operating activities
Net cash used in investing activities

Net cash from financing activities

1

hii

= R R
HE KA

EH
iy

EH

Hid &2l A
TR B2

B 75 B A

Bx 7t A it )
R

ERIERBZFE A

TFI R :
AABEDRFEAR A
DB RS

ERIEXEBZATRE:
REBHEEZREFHR
REEBDMAZERESFHE
MERDELEZRESFR

From 1 April 2006
to 31 July 2006
H2006F4H 1B E
20065 7HA31H
HK$°000

BT T

9,613

(8,531)

1,082
1,108

(527)

31

1,632

(709)

923

712

211

923

5,326
(3,559)

1,767



The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share is based on BREAR(FB) /BRI ZENRER

the (loss)/profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity RARERERFEARBGEFE (BE)
holders of the Company, and the weighted average number a A A R F BT 2 m AR N i
of ordinary shares in issue during the year. BHEEHE-
The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per BEREAREE (BB BRTET
share are based on the following data: BB E
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
(Loss)/earnings (F5#8) &R
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable KARERFEEARBEEE
to equity holders of the Company (B18) & F (309,456) 22,123
Profit for the year from discontinued RAGEZFEA
operation attributable to equity EEERIEEB ZFE R
holders of the Company - (712)

(Loss)/profit used in the calculation of  FA{EIEXREAFBELLEB 2

basic (loss)/earnings per share from BRERX (BB) Bz
continuing operations (E18) & F (309,456) 21,411
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Number of shares

REEA
2008 2007
Share gy
Weighted average number of STEERERN (BB S
ordinary shares in issue during BAMERAZFABE BT
the year used in the basic T AR N4 T
(loss)/earnings per share calculation 3,934,388,455 3,190,879,300
Effect of dilution — weighted BMEER v BEELRR Y
average of number of potential MmEEHH e
ordinary shares:
— share options — B 46,920,793 18,331,867
Weighted average number of EsREE (B1E)
ordinary shares in issue during BANMERAZFABE BT
the year used in the diluted Tm AR N T

(loss)/earnings per share calculation

The computation of diluted (loss)/earnings per share for the
years ended 31 March 2008 and 2007 does not assume the
conversion of the Company’s outstanding convertible notes
since their exercise would result in a decrease in loss per
share and an increase in earnings per share from continuing

operations.

Diluted loss per share for year ended 31 March 2008 has

not be presented as the effect of any dilution is anti-dilutive.

3,981,309,248 3,209,211,167

H E2008F K2007F3A31HILFES
RE (B18) R ZTETERSR
AREBREAEBR AT RRER BT

RREEEERRARBELEEBLZ
BRAF LM

B EREEYEYNBEN RESEE K
HE2008F3A3MHILFEALERZ Y&
R #EE s R -
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Cost
At 1 April 2006
Exchange realignment
Acquisition of subsidiaries
Deemed disposal of

a subsidiary
Additions
Transfer
Transfer to prepaid expenses
Disposals

At 31 March 2007 and

1 April 2007
Exchange realignment
Additions
Transfer
Transfer to prepaid expenses
Disposal of subsidiaries
Disposals

At 31 March 2008

Accumulated depreciation
and impairment loss
At 1 April 2006
Exchange realignment
Provided for the year
Deemed disposal of
a subsidiary
Eliminated on disposal

At 31 March 2007 and

1 April 2007
Exchange realignment
Provided for the year
Disposal of subsidiaries
Eliminated on disposal
Impairment loss - Note 44

At 31 March 2008

Carrying value
At 31 March 2008

At 31 March 2007

RE
200654718
BHAE
WENHBAR
RELE

—ARBAF
RE
23
EREMRX
&

#2007E3A318 &
200744418
R

RE

g3
ERENEX
HENBAR

HE

7 2008%3A318

RHHER
HEEE

1 2006% 4R 18
EHAZ
REERE
RELE
—BKEAH
L E R

#2007E3A318 &
1200754518
BEHAZ
KEERE
HENBAR

L ER
HEBE- T

7200853 A31H

REE
1 2008%3A318

7 200743A318

Buildings in
PRC for own
use under
medium lease
PHAERT
URAE
BRET
HK$'000
BETT

14,788
634
33,309

(2,328)
22,072
649

(1,176)

67,948
6,869
1,215
5,033

(8,341)
(84)

72,640

1342
2,497
(1,083)
(84)
12,116

15,07

57,569

66,606

Leasehold
improvements

RENR

%8
HK$'000
BETT

427

427

21

85

191

236

321

Furniture,

fixtures
and office
equipment

B KER
BAERR
HK$'000
EBTT

1,325
48
1,405

(45)
2,764

(74;)

4,753
439
1,503

(74)
(169)

6,452

235
27
666

601
101
933
(40)
(127)
195

1,663

4,789

4,152

Plant,
machinery
and pipeline

BE #eE
kEE
HK$'000
BETT

213,440
9,135
144,498

(13,546)
26,094
124,501

(34,021)

470,101
47,334
5,235
81,497

(46,460)
(26)

557,681

7,301
667
13,382

(1,737)
(1,998)

17,615
2,629
14,191
(6,970)
(19
183,589

211,035

346,646

452,486

Transportation
vehicles

BREH
HK$'000
BETT

4,846
160
4,081

6,036

(886)

14,243
1,530
15,787

(329)
(498)

30,733

515
48
1,541

(49;)

1,610
318

3,551
(116)
(317)

1,626

6,672

24,061

12,633

Construction
in progress

HRIR
HK$'000
BETT

1,699
73
165,371

(3,294)
79,550
(125,150

(13,219
(25,464)

129,551

108,476

79,566

Total

@t
HK$'000
ARTT

236,525
10,050
348,664

(19,213)
136,516

(13,219
(62,285)

637,038
64,190
164,266

(9,079)
(57,667)
(1,264)

797,484

8,701
811
17,257

(1,870)
(3,625)

21,274
3,331
21,257
(8,209)
(547)
218,601

255,707

541,777

615,764



The official property title certificates for certain of the Group’s

buildings with carrying amounts of approximately
HK$9,895,000 (2007: HK$13,675,000) in aggregate have

not yet been issued by the relevant local government

authorities. The Directors are of the opinion that the Group’s

right and interest in such buildings will not be therefore

severely prejudiced.

The above items of property, plant and equipment are

depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates

per annum:

Buildings

Leasehold improvements

Furniture, fixtures and
office equipment
Plant, machinery and

pipeline

Transportation vehicles

Over the shorter of 40 years or
the operation period of the
relevant company

Over the shorter of the terms

of the leases, or 5 years

20%

2.5% - 20%

12.5% - 20%

AEERETEFZHREESHOER
9,895,0007T (20074 : # ¥ 13,675,000
70) R E AR R B 44 B8 3% th IE S\ )
XERES-EFRR AKERRSTET
ENEESTERANZIRERE-

EdmE BERRERE DABERER

THERFE:

HEMEREKE

BR-EKER
NN

R HEs M EE

BB ER

AFHBERARZ
REMR (AR
RERE)

HEHRNIF
(ABEER
%)

20%

2.5%%20%

12.5%%220%
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Investment properties, stated IR EINEZREME

at fair value

At 1 April R4A1H
Exchange realignment bE 3, 3 28
Acquisition of subsidiaries 1 B BT /B A A
Disposal of subsidiaries i & BB A &
Additions A=

Increase in fair value NFEIE N
At 31 March M3H31H

Detail of geographical locations REWEZHBEME R
and tenure of investment FHFBOT:

properties were:

PRC — leases between FE—-FEH
10 and 50 years B 105 £50%F

2008
HK$'000
BETRT

7,237
756

377

8,370

8,370

2007
HK$'000
AETIT

6,984
4,221
(6,984)

2,561
455

7,237

7,237



The fair value of the Group's investment properties at 31
March 2008 have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation
carried out on that day by Asset Appraisal Limited,
independent qualified professional valuers not connected
with the Group. Asset Appraisal Limited is a member of the
Institutes of Valuers, and have appropriate qualifications and
recent experience in the valuation of similar properties in
the relevant locations. The valuation, which conforms to
International Valuation Standards, was arrived at by reference
to market evidence of transaction prices for similar

properties.

The Group leases out certain investment properties under
operating leases, for an initial period of three to seven years,

with an option to renew on renegotiated terms.

At 31 March 2008, the Group's investment properties
amounting to HK$8,370,000 (2007: HK$1,756,000) were
pledged to secure bank loans granted to the Group (Note
43).

None of the leases include contingent rentals. During the
year ended 31 March 2008, the gross rental income from
investment properties amounted to approximately
HK$152,000 (2007: HK$89,000).

2008 3A31H AEEBEREME LR
FEDIBREBIAERIXGHERBE
ENEERERAR (BAEE W EH
E)EZBETZHESL -EENER
FBERARAEANEMEG 288 I
EHEEEARRENABMAEBAE 21
U EETHE REER G EERIELT
ZEE TTR2ZRUMEZZFEERZ
mSERES DL

AEERBLKLEHEHEETHREME
RNBPARB="FELF EEREND

= IRRE S

F2008F3A3 1A REBZIREMER
7 ¥ 8,370,0007C ( 20074 : & #&
1,756,0007T) E THIFERBE TAEH
RITERZ R (FFF43) -

BECHNAELEX AT - REZE
2008F3HA3MRILFE REREMEZ
& WA 478 ¥ 152,0007T (20074
75 #89,0007T) °
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Cost

At 1 April

Exchange realignment

Acquisition of subsidiaries

Additions

Disposal of subsidiaries

Disposals

At 31 March

Amortisation and impairment loss

At 1 April

Exchange realignment
Charge for the year
Disposal of subsidiaries

Impairment loss recognised

(Note 44)

Eliminated on disposal

At 31 March

Carrying amount

At 31 March

Analysed for reporting

purposes as:

Current portion

Non-current portion

gD N
R4R1RH

BE 3 AR

U B T B8 A 7]
NE
HEHBA R
&

M3H31H

BH NORERB R

R4R1RH
BE 3 AR
REEZ MR
k=)= PN

ERRZBERER

(B 7E44)
O B 4

M3A31H

FREE

M3H31H

BEARE WD

B A 8 47
FEBNER B 1

2008
HK$'000
BRI T

28,638
2,903

4,475

36,016

574
105
671

4,459

5,809

30,207

616
29,591

30,207

2007
HK$'000

BT

9,222
385
11,748
9,672
(1,953)
(436)

28,638

574

28,064

594
27,470

28,064



The amounts represented medium-term land use rights in
the PRC and are amortised over the terms of the respective

land use rights on a straight-line basis.

The Group's prepaid lease payments with carrying values of
approximately HK$4,921,000 (2007: HK$793,000) represent
interest in land use rights in respect of which official land
use certificate have not yet been issued by relevant local
government authorities. The Directors are of the opinion
that the Group’s rights and interest in respect of such land

lots will not be therefore severely prejudiced.

At 31 March 2008, the Group’s prepaid lease payments
amounting to approximately HK$17,860,000 (2007:
HK$11,184,000) were pledged to secure bank loans granted
to the Group (Note 43).

ZETEENTENT R ERE AL
NE#HRR L ERENABEESNT
A B 55 -

ANEBERMEEA A 4,921,0007T (2007
&8 ¥793,000T) 2 ENHEREXR
T 5 AR A 2 M R - b AR BA BT A R AT
ABELERERA L HFEAEIZ - EFR
B AEBRZER BN RERTE
AlZHEEEE-

2008 3A31H AEE ZFEMNERAL
75 % 17,860,0007T (20074 : B ¥
11,184,0007T) B T HEIFIEA R T AL R
RITERZ BR (H5E43) -
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Cost

At 1 April

Arising on acquisition of
subsidiaries

Arising on acquisition of
additional interests
in subsidiaries

Disposal of subsidiaries
- Note 37

Exchange realignment

At 31 March

Impairment

At 1 April

Impairment recognised

during the year — Note 44

At 31 March

Carrying value

At 31 March

impaired.

XA

R4A1H
A Y B BT B X B i E A

B e B8 P BB )RR 41
amELE

HE M B~ R — 37

ng

D 5 38 B

M3A31H

BB

R471H

F AR E— 44

M3HA31H

FREE

MW3A31H

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment or more

frequently if there are indications that goodwill might be

2008 2007
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BEFR  BETR
225,141 44,725

- 165,256

- 14,910

(19,785) =

10,683 250

216,039 225,141

91 =

48,756 91

48,847 91

167,192 225,050
ARESTRAUBBAE KUEDRE

NEEAREERME BIE SAE Rl R E -



The management considers each subsidiary represents a
separate cash generating unit (“CGU") for the purpose of
goodwill impairment testing. At the balance sheet date, the

carrying amount of goodwill mainly represents goodwill

Mian Zhu City Han Wang Natural
Gas Co., Ltd.
Relevant Gas Fuel assets in
Bei Chuan County
Chongging Zhongmin Gas Co., Ltd.
Xin Hua Resources Investment Limited
Gas Fuel business in
Yan Liang District, Xi'an City
Fujian Province An Ran Gas
Investment Company Limited
and its subsidiaries (collectively
as “Fujian An Ran”)
Yunnan Zhongmin Gas
Co., Ltd.
Dehua Guang An Natural Gas
Co., Ltd. ("Dehua Guang An")
Others

mTTEERARER QA

EINERERREE

EETRMRERAA]

Xin Hua Resources Investment Limited

2 RER 2 MRER

BRELAMARKEERRA R

HMBLA (BEIRELA])

ERFRMAERAT

BILBLZRARBRAA

(MEftEZ])
H At

2008
HK$000
BETT

159,341

7,851

167,192

e
“HE

EEERR REERENANE 8K
MBARRKR BB REELEM
(TREELBM]) -
HEFrZ2ERAUBETIMNBRAREE L

arising from the acquisition of following subsidiaries: EEE

B BEZK

2007
HK$'000
BETT

2,384
1,853
1,664

38,895

2,884

162,372

7,130

7,689
179

225,050
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The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined from
value in use calculations based on the cashflow forecast of
the relevant CGUs. The key assumptions for the value in use
calculations are those regarding the discount rates, growth
rates and expected changes to selling price and direct costs
during the period. Management estimates discount rates
using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
CGUs. The growth rates are based on industry growth
forecasts. Changes in selling prices and direct costs are based
on past practices and expectation of future changes in the
market.

Mian Zhu City Han Wang Natural Gas Co., Ltd., relevant
Gas Fuel assets in Bei Chuan County, Chongging Zhongmin
Gas Co., Ltd. and Xiu Hua Resources Investment Limited,
natural gas business in Yan Liang District, Xi‘an City, were
affected by the earthquake in Wenchuan area of Sichuan
Province with a magnitude of 8.0 on the Richter scale. A
considerable portion of assets and operating facilities of
these companies have been suffered from serious damage.
Accordingly, the Directors consider that no future economic
benefits would be generated from such goodwill and
impairment loss of approximately HK$48,756,000 (Note 44)
have been recognised.

Except for the Sichuan Companies (as defined in note 44),
the Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the
most recent financial budgets approved by management for
the next 5 years on an estimated growth pattern at growth
rates between 6% to 59% (2007: 1.5% to 170%) and a
discount rate of 12% (2007: 12%). The financial budgets
and growth rates are estimated according to the stage of
each operation with reference to the development curve of
the Gas Fuel industry in the PRC region. This pattern is
consistent with the track record of the Group’s projects.

ReEABNZAEESBEDIEREH
ReEABUZREREZFEERE
EMET -TRERBEMRAZEIER
BRRAPAZSHAIHRAR - BREX-E
EREERAZ B2 -EEENMAA
RRTIZHEREEEBEZFHARR
& B A B2 E B B B BR B A A R 3R
fAETRER KB R KR AIRITRIE RIS
HAE-EBNEERERAZEAES LG
EEHRERT S 2 AREHHEE-

MUTTMERERARBRAA LIERR
HEEE EEPRERMEABERA A Xin
Hua Resources Investment Limited } 78
ZHEREZMREBIZIM)IEX
JII 3 [ 5% A 9 22 5e RF Il 8.0k b B AT &7
B-ZERNAMBRED 2 EEME E R
BREBEE Bt EFRAEENZED
MRIEEEERRKLENG HOABK
48,756,0007T 2 BB E D R (M &
44) -

BRI AR (RKTE44RTE) I AEE
DIRBEERERARAFEN 2 &F
HBT BB - A R E6%ZE59% (2007
F:1.5%F170%) & 12%84835 % (2007
F12%) 2 EEEARRESRE
Rl -MBREEREREBESER 2B
B g2EhBtERRITEZEEHG
ER et e R NEAREEBR 2 FE—
@(o



Cost

At 1 April 2006

Acquisition of subsidiaries

At 31 March 2007 and
1 April 2007
Additions

Exchange realignment

At 31 March 2008

Amortisation and impairment
At 1 April 2006
Charge for the year

Exchange realignment

At 31 March 2007 and
1 April 2007
Charge for the year

Exchange realignment

At 31 March 2008

Carrying value
At 31 March 2008

At 31 March 2007

XA

7200654 A 1H
W BB B 2 B

200793 H31H
K 2007F4H1H

20083 H31H

35 SR B

R 2006F481H
AF Mk
bE X %

72007 3H31H
200748 1H

RNEFE MR

M 5, 38 &

720085 3H31H

FREE

2008 3H31H

200743 A31H

Exclusive
rights of
purchase
BX
REER
HK$ 000
BETT
(Note a)
(Mtsra)

12,282

12,282

12,282

Exclusive
rights of
operations
BX
REER
HK$°000
BETT
(Note b)
(P 3ED)

126,271

126,271

12,399

138,670

3,605
96

3,701
4,401
268

8,370

130,300

122,570

Total

&3t
HK$°000
BT

126,271

126,271
12,282
12,399

150,952

3,605
96

3,701
4,401
268

8,370

142,582

122,570
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Notes:

During the year ended 31 March 2008, the Group acquired
an exclusive rights of purchase of natural gas explored in
Yanji Basin, which is located in Yanji, Long Jing and Long
City of Yan Bian Korean Nation Autonomous Area in the
eastern part of Jilin Province, from an ex-associate — Yan Bian
Hua Xin Oil Exploitation Company Limited at a consideration
of HK$12,282,000. At present, Yanji Basin is in the phase of
exploration. The rights have therefore not yet commenced to

be amortised.

The Group tests the intangible assets annually for impairment
or more frequently if there are indications that the intangible
assets might be impaired. At 31 March 2008, the management
reviewed the recoverable amounts of the rights of purchase
by an estimation of the value in use of the subsidiary holding
such rights as a separate cash generating unit (“CGU") based
on a valuation report issued by Asset Appraisal Limited, a
qualified valuer not connected with the Group. The valuation
has been carried out utilising the discounted cash flow
technique based on a 5-year operating budget of the relevant
CGU, as approved by the management of the Group, which
adopted an estimated annual growth rate in revenue up to

86% and a discount rate of 12%.

During the year ended 31 March 2007, the addition arose
from the acquisition of subsidiaries that was granted with
exclusive rights to operate in gas pipeline infrastructure and
provision of piped Gas Fuel by local government in various

cities in the PRC for a period of 10 to 60 years.

All of the exclusive rights of operation and purchase are amortised

on a straight-line basis over the operation period of 10 to 60 years.

M i

RE Z2008F3A31BLEFE A%EHE
AR B %% 12,282,0007T [A) B B &
—EEMNEABREER A BWE—
BRI & A R EBRE 2 BB IR B R M AT
HFEARERABHMARE I RARRNE
KRB FI| o 3T 5 2 b 35 B 1F 12 HYHR B
B-HULABEN MR BIE#E-

NG

AEBEGFUABEREERE HME
DRETEREEJRE B E
¥ AT -N2008F3A31H EEESR
BIEREE R 2 AT Bl & % FEH IR E
HEENEERERAR (HEAEEL
mEAE A ERMGERE) BTN E
HE FEZEMNZMBRRAERZ &
BERSELSEMN ([ReELBEM])
ZIEEEENNAHAEEERER
# AT BB 86 % 2 W A 18 F E 1
RERN2%BMRE - BEEARESESE
BUvAFHEBECHBRERER
il e

REZ2007F3A31BLEFE ENE
B8 Ty A W B B R A R FTEE A 0 T sk S B
B A AR BE T T T BT TS
EMREEERZBRIBHARZBER
R BEI102605F -

PEBRKEENRRBEMNMIOEF 2
KEMNABEREERY-



Cost of unlisted investment

Share of post-acquisitions
profits and losses

Impairment loss of goodwill

Exchange realignment

Amounts due from associates

Amounts due to associates

FEMREMAN

25 1 5 18 02 M) Rk /&5 1R

BB EEE
BE 54 58 2

quﬂ J\/ AIFE

JFE 5B & R | OB

Amounts due from/(to) associates are unsecured, interest-

free and repayable on demand.

2008
HK$'000
BETRT

37,845

15,582

(8,397)

8,681

53,711

(20,697)

i () B B

REREARERBEE-

2007
HK$'000
AETIT

57,355

25,951

832

84,138

16,150

REAREER
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Movements in carrying amount of interests in associates

during the year are shown as follows:

At the beginning of the year
Acquisition of subsidiaries
Acquisition of associates
Deemed acquisition of
an associate as a result of
dilution in interest in
a former subsidiary (Note 37)
Disposal of an associate
Impairment loss recognised on
goodwill
Exchange realignment
Share of results of associates

for the year

R

WK E A A

J_W ﬁ% ZZL/‘\

FRREIR NS NGIE
i 4% 1 U B8 B
(P 5E37)

%y
NG

& — B QA
REERAZREER

B 5, 58 &
AERBEBZERREE

2 %
- &
o
\
EI
=

2008
HK$000
BETT

84,138

13,935
(33,445)

(8,397)
7,849

(10,369)

53,711

2m < PREERFAZEE

2007
HK$'000
BETT

3,564
4,806
49,645

824

25,299

84,138



Details of the Group’s associates as at 31 March 2008 are 20085 3A31H  AEE 2B & N RIFF

as follow: ER NS
Place of
Form of  establishment Group
business and effective Principal
Name of company structure operation interest activities
IR rEE

NAEEH EBEBEAX REFTE M BERER FTEXHK
RINPRUARBREAF] Limited liability PRC 50%  Sales and distribution
("Yin Chuan Zhongmin company of Gas Fuel and gas
Gas Co., Ltd.”) pipeline construction
BEREMERA X 50% 8HE R o tH AR R
MREBRE
BlLER Limited liability PRC 49%  Sales and distribution
Dehua Guang An company of Gas Fuel and gas
pipeline construction
BEREMERA H 49% 8HE & o tH AR R
MREBRE
BNEZAEEERRZERRA A Limited liability PRC 49%  Sales and distribution
("Fuzhou An Ran Ju Pipeline company of Gas Fuel and gas
Gas Co., Ltd.”) pipeline construction
BEREMERA H 49% 8HE R 9 tH AR R
MREBREE
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Name of company

NCIEE

EfZLZRRERAT
("Xiamen Jia An Gas
Co., Ltd.")

PRER (JR) BRER
BB A A (“Zhongmin Zai
Xian (Beijing) Technology

Development Limited”)

Form of
business

structure

EBERBERX

Limited liability

company

EREERA

Limited liability

company

BEREERA

Place of
establishment
and
operation
MR
REFEM

PRC

T

PRC

o

Group
effective
interest
rEE
HRER

49%

49%

40%

40%

Principal

activities

EFEER

Sales and distribution
of Gas Fuel and gas
pipeline construction

HERDHRRR

MREERE

Participate in supply of
video lottery operating

system and equipment

in the PRC
R ERE M
RABFR B

R REm



Included in the cost of investment in associates is goodwill
of HK$1,583,000 (2007: HK$39,376,000). This goodwill is
attributable to the anticipated profitability of (1) sales and
distribution of Gas Fuel and related products and (2) the
gas pipeline construction operations and (3) the participation
in supply of video lottery operating system and equipments

respectively. The movement of goodwill is set out below.

At 1 April R4A1H
Exchange realignment BE W, B

Arising on acquisition of associates

ERERZRERERE

Impairment loss recognised

Disposal of an associate nl=g: R /N]
At 31 March M3H31H

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment or more
frequently if there are indications that goodwill might be

impaired.

The recoverable amounts of interests in associates are
determined from value in use calculations. The value in use
of the investment represents the Group's dividends from the
associates. The amount of future dividends depends on the

profitability and the availability of cash of the associates.

A EE 2 2R mELE

HE LR REXNABREREEE
1,583,0007T (20074 : # % 39,376,000
) LA BDEERMBEERDHERR
REBER RQMAEEERES &
BLREMERBELERFARBERSE
TRHATE N HEZEHHINAT:

2008 2007

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT 0 T 5T

39,376 1,379

3,883 59

- 37,938

(8.397) -

(33,279) -

1,583 39,376

AEES R BRE B TRE
REABTEENE NEATRNE-
BB A 2 R 28 2 7 M (0] B A58 PR M
ﬁ&ﬁg»&ﬁZﬁ%@ﬁmﬁsmﬁ%

D EVER 2 IR B o R IR PR B0 & B AR - Bk
BRAEZAMENRIEE 2 AN A E

TEo
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The cash flow forecasts were prepared by the management
of the associates and were derived from the financial budgets
covering a period of 5 years approved by management of
the associates on an estimated growth pattern at growth
rate between 2% to 6% (2007: 7.8% to 120%) at discount
rate of 12% (2007: 12%). The financial budgets and growth
rates are estimated according to the stage of each operation
with reference to the development curve of the gas fuel

industry in the PRC region.

The summarised financial information in respect of the

Group’s associates is set out below:

Total assets BELE
Total liabilities BEREE
Net assets BEFE

Group's share of net assets of AEBEEHBERRIEEFE

associates

Revenue PN
(Loss)/profit for the year NEFE (E8) % F
Impairment loss recognised ERRAZEABRERBE

in respect of goodwill

Group’s share of results of AEBEEHERARNRNFEEE

associates for the year

BeReBAnEBEERIEARSFE M
BREERUIERE2%E6% (20074F -
7.8% % 120%) K BEIR & 12% (20074 :
12%) #HE 2 REXRRRERER
A-BHRBEEREREBRBESEBL 2B
B E2ZPEMRMAITE R RMZ
fEH {5t

AEBBERRZMBERBARNT

2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T T I
224,698 159,485
(117,416) (63,808)
107,282 95,677

52,128 44,762
79,737 99,762
(24,810) 51,171
(8,397) =
(10,369) 25,299



Unlisted securities 3 & H

— Equity securities (Note) —BRAREH (M)

Accumulated impairment RETRE
Impairment loss recognised B TR (E B B
(Note 44) (P 5£44)

Note:

The unlisted investment represents investment in unlisted interest
in a private entity incorporated in the PRC. They are measured at
cost less impairment at each balance sheet date because the range
of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the Directors

are of the opinion that their fair values cannot be measured reliably.

2008 2007

HK$'000 HK$'000
BWT T AETIT
12,774 11,601
(6,147) -
6,627 11,601

B

FLETREERPEEMKLZLAERIE
EhERZRE ARABAFEMLANEE
A NBEEAREAFETEA FEHF
B REMREESEE DR AR B

o

fein
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Notes to the Conso

R R R AR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2008
B = 2008F 3A 318 It F &

idated Financial Statements

24. DEPOSIT PAID ON ACQUISITION OF 24. WiE—ENBE AR EMER
ADDITIONAL INTEREST IN A SUBSIDIARY ENRE
The amount represents deposit for acquisition of additional FHSEREBES IELAARERA
20% equity interest in Jinjiang Guangan Natural Gas Co., A20% =M IEE Z AR AAEERE
Ltd., which is 80% owned subsidiary of the Group. The 80% = M B A & o LA LU HE £+ B4
acquisition will be completed upon the approval by the B P4/ 2 1B BRI SE R o

relevant PRC authorities.

25. INVENTORIES 25. 7§
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
Construction materials, spare BEMH -HHRBEE®D

parts and consumables 16,689 11,018
Gas appliances M es A 70 233

Gas Fuel, including natural gas MR (BRERXARKRCEBAR)
and LPG 6,797 12,154
Others H Aty 4 157
23,560 23,562

> 1 70 Chinese People Holdings Company Limited Annual Report 2007-2008



The Group allows its trade customers with credit periods

normally ranging from 30 days to 90 days and extending to

180 days for major customers. An aged analysis of the trade

receivables (net of allowance for doubtful debts) as at the

balance sheet date, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

Current to 90 days
91 days to 180 days
Over 180 days

Trade receivables
Advances to third parties (Note)
Amount due from an ex-associate
Prepayments
Bills receivable
Deposit paid/payment in advance
to suppliers
Deposit paid for capital expenditures
Consideration receivable for
the disposal of an associate
Others

The movements in provision for
impairment of trade and other

receivables are as follows:

At 1 April
Impairment loss
Amount written off as uncollectible

Exchange realignment

At 31 March

BNHRZ=90H
91BE =180H
180H M k£

B 5 R W KIA

BN TE=772KE (M)
& L — ] A B = 2 B 5R0R

BN A
e

AEBRKRTHESEFP ZEEHH30H
ZIOHTE RRFEFFPERZE180
B-BSRUWRIE CRREEE) REE
BB BEXEAHET:

2008
HK$'000
BETT
8,921

402
1,974

11,297
7,662
3,668
7,551
5,558

EffRe BN FHERIHKA

BEARAXZE RS
HEBMERFZ

JE U KB IR

H At

B 5 N H e R IR

BEREZEESHMT

R4A1H
(B & A
i RN QTR O
BE 54 38 B

M3H31H

34,519
609

31,121
14,860

116,845

1,678
759

(58)

261

2,640

2007
HK$'000
AETIT

14,002
847
3,912

18,761
5,275

25,618
1,009

33,894
15,140

18,999

118,696

547
1,120

11

1,678
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Note:

At 31 March 2008, the advances to third parties were unsecured,
interest free and repayable on demand. At 31 March 2007, the
advances to third parties were unsecured, bore interest at 5.58%
and repayable on demand. Before making any advances, the Group
will understand the potential debtor’s credit quality and defines its
credit limits to debtors with an appropriate credit history. Credit

limits attributed to debtors are reviewed regularly.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses a system
to assess the potential customer’s credit quality and defines
credit limits by customer. Limits attributed to customers are
reviewed on a regular basis. Minimal amount of the trade
receivables that are neither past due nor impaired have the

best credit under the credit system used by the Group.

At 31 March 2008, included in the Group’s trade receivable
balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
HK$1,974,000 (2007: HK$3,912,000) which are past due at
the reporting date and aged over 90 days for which the
Group has not provided for impairment loss. The Group did

not hold any collateral over these balances.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent

history of default.

it

R2008F3A31H BN FE=ZAZHRELEE
HiR B RANREREEE -N2007F3A
3B BRFE=ZAZRBBAERR M
5.58% R /BR B RKEEEE - RIEHE MR
A AEBBBEBECLEBAZEEEERE
ERSUREEFERE-BBAZEERE
ThEHE %o

EERMEIAFELH AEERA—EX
BRI LEEEEPZEEEERRATH
FERE-BEPZEERBNERER
RIBASBERRAZZG HAREH R
BzRUERRECHEEREFEEY

[

bl

F2008F3A31H KREE 28 5 KKK
B BBIREMBEA1,974,0007T 2 FE
Y BR FK (20074 : A% 3,912,0007T) * 3%
ZRACNHRE R BBE MAEE® K
¥ A R90R 2 R KFT IR BB B -
ERUTHEZEEHB ZAMERGD-

HARBHIREZBURBLESZEP
Bl Z2SXPRONLER R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B AR Y A

For the year ended 31 March 2008
B = 2008F 3A 318 It F &

26.

27.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Receivables that were past due but not impaired related to
a number of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are

still considered fully recoverable.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

26.

27.

B 5 & HMERKE (&)

B 8 8B W R OR (B 2 FE R IR B A T
AEBREBERINHELE I TP AR
ERERKR EEEMRE ARGEEER
WEE A I EBRAERIDRR DA
BRI - #B  ph k F AE ARAE HRL (B B
e

BRAVEFAEBESEZEHME
F

H

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T T T
Financial assets at fair value BAVEFAEGZERMEE:
through profit or loss include:
Listed securities: EHESH:
— Listed securities listed —-RBEBEMZzEWESH
in Hong Kong, at fair value EATFEFE 102,042 =

FREZERERDT 2007-2008F 3
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At the balance sheet date, the bank balances and cash of
the Group denominated in RMB amounted to
HK$124,063,000 (2007: HK$103,528,000). The RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies. However, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to

conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for
varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Group, and earn interest at the respective short term time

deposit rates.

Included in bank deposits, bank balances and cash are the
following amounts denominated in currency other than the

functional currency of the entity to which they relate.

Hong Kong dollars B
United States dollars ETT

NEEH NEBUARBERE ZR1T4H
3R & &S 124,063,0007T (2007
1 5 #103,528,0007T) - AR BTG B
RB|ABEMER AT AREF B Z 5
EBBEGAREE NEREEEER
EARE l&ﬁu&ﬁ&%%%&\ﬁ%%
ZHRITHARBRBSBEME

ﬂEﬂ—%ﬁ&'@%

I

ROBRERBARTHERNEAEZF
BRXGE -BHERFR2ERE R —

E=AA BARRAEBEZRRAESF
KRB 2B ME RF RN R B

RITER ROTEREREEBEATZE
B ABSBRIUAZRER ZERE LI
ZEBEE.

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT

11,452 41,851
34,324 37,876



The following is an analysis of major components of the

balance with aged analysis of trade payables:

Trade payables, falling due in:
0 - 3 months
4 — 6 months

Over 6 months

Trade payables

Deposit received from customers
(note (i)

Convertible notes interest payable

Customer gas fuel deposits and
other deposit received

Income received in advance

Received in advance for
the exercise of share options
(note (ii))

Other payable for the purchase of
property, plant and equipment

Consideration payable for
the acquisition of additional
interest in a subsidiary — Note 32

Accrued charges and other payables

BHRNFIE JBHEMT:
0-31& A

4-61E A

6fE A LA £

B 5 R’ R
W EF 2 (KEEI)

N A RIRERFN B
EEFMRZeREME kRS

Bz A

RHRTEZHI> DN EEE S ENFIAR

BAITMT:

2008
HK$'000
BET T

19,262
2,577
12,462

34,301

56,941
910

8,901
23,586

A 1T {68 P A 4 7B WO KR (B E (i)

BEVEX BERRBEZ
H b & 1 5RA

WK B AR BEIMER
e B — P32

FE =B N E At FE S RO0R

8,321

8,892
24,365

166,217

2007
HK$'000
AET T

16,285

4,031
21,889

42,205

15,464
2,169

20,008
12,506

9,607

8,803

1,009

37,779

149,550
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Notes:

it

(i) Deposits received from customers represent the gas pipeline (i)

connection fee received but the pipelines have not yet been

completed.

(i) Received in advance for the exercise of share options represent (ii)

the amount received from the share option holders.

Secured bank loans

Unsecured bank loans

The bank loans are repayable:
Within one year or on demand

In the second year

In the third to fifth years, inclusive

Less: amounts due within one year

shown under current liabilities

Amounts due after one year

BEMBITER
EEMBITER

AR TIREER ZRITEK:
—FARRNERE

RE—F
REZZFRAF (PEEEME)

W — F R B ESE
RBREZEE

—FRIBPZEHE

2008
HK$'000

BT

148,536
77,805

226,341

147,629
27,788
50,924

226,341

(147,629)

78,712

WBREPZREEE WM Z MR EEE
REBEWRA MEEEHRTK

AT O AR TR SE R IR R R R
BEFEAZEE-

2007
HK$'000
BETIT
122,377

110,023

232,400

106,238
52,488
73,674

232,400

(106,238)

126,162



Secured bank loans were secured by pledging of various
assets of the Group, details of which are set out in note 43

to the consolidated financial statements.

All bank loans (secured and unsecured) are floating rate
borrowings of which interest rates are in the range of 4.73%
to 10.36% per annum (2007: ranging from 4.88% to
7.96%).

The Directors consider the carrying amount of the Group’s
bank loans within one year approximate their fair value and
estimate the difference between carrying amount and fair

value of bank loans due after one year as insignificant.

BEERBRETERANBBAREB 2 ETE
EERBER FREINNERE M HREMN
FF430

FrERTER (BERREERR) 5FF
KA F4.73%Z 10.36% (20074 : |
488%%E7.96%) 2 3 EBBEREE-

EZRRAERE-FRIHZRITER
FREEERE A FERL XHET—FRE
HRTERZEHEREATEZER
TIBM T RE-
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Convertible notes measured EAVEFEZ
at fair value: BE:LES
At the beginning of the year NG
Issue of convertible note BT MR ER
Change in fair value ARFEEZEH
Conversion to shares iSRG
At the end of the year RE R

The balance is analysed into ER DT AR T 215 :
the following components:
A 2 & 2= 1% — Equator

A AR 2 — Indopark

Convertible note — Equator

Convertible note — Indopark

o — FREB B
mBEEZER

Less: amount due within one year

shown under current liabilities

Amount due after one year

During the year ended 31 March 2008, an aggregate of
126,706,488 shares of HK$0.07 each were issued to the
holder of convertible note — Equator upon the conversions
of the convertible note with total principal amount of
HK$38,900,000 at a conversion price ranging from
HK$0.2158 to HK$0.3433 each. As such, the convertible
note — Equator outstanding at 31 March 2007 were fully
converted to the shares of the Company. For details of terms
of convertible note — Equator, please refer to the Company’s
circular dated 12 October 2005.

2008 2007

HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
410,974 133,788
= 310,000

61,789 19,797
(314,885) (52,611)
157,878 410,974
= 62,658
157,878 348,316
157,878 410,974
= (62,658)
157,878 348,316

HZ2008F3A31H LFE KLIEGRE
#0.2158 T £ B H0.3433 T 2 IR B
MRS 85 A 38,900,0007T 2 AT #
R EF % ATRREREAE A — Equator
174 126,706,488 % B A% B %50.07
TLZBEAD e BRItk - A 2007F 3 A31H M &
@it 7 A I ZE IR — EquatorE B H & iR
RARBIZKRGO -FEAITBRBREE -
Equatorff Rz =B w2 BH A
200510 12R 2 R AR~



During the year ended 31 March 2008, an aggregate of
258,333,332 shares of HK$0.07 each were issued to the
holder of convertible notes — Indopark upon the partial
conversion of the convertible notes of HK$155,000,000 at a

conversion price of HK$0.60 each.

The details of the Group’s and the Company’s convertible

note outstanding as at 31 March 2008 are set out below:

Date of issue

THITHH

Aggregate principal amount

BitAE®

Outstanding principal amount as
at balance sheet date
REERRBRZ AR

Coupon rate

FEER

Conversion price (HK$)

BmRE GEx)

Conversion period

Collaterals

1

Maturity date
A

HZ2008F3A31H LFE KIEGRE
BOOTL 2 R EH D LA
155,000,0007T 2 A] # f& 4R 12 A R AR
ZE A A — Indorpark % 174 &

258,333,332k F AR A ¥ 0.607T Z % 15 °

AREEKAATRN2008FE3431H |k
i BRI ERFEBLD T

15 June 2006
200696 A 15H

US$40,000,000

(approximately HK$310,000,000)
40,000,000 7T

(%75 %310,000,0007T)

US$20,000,000

(approximately HK$155,000,000)
20,000,000 7T

(#97% % 155,000,0007T)

2 per cent
2%

HK$0.60
B #0.607T

six months after the issue date and
up to the tenth trading day

before the maturity date
HETREMNERE AR
HEINHEMTERS A IEZHME

Nil

14 June 2009
20096 A 14H
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Other term:

The convertible note shall be redeemed by the Company at
106% of their principal amount on the third anniversary of

the issue date of the convertible note.

If on each anniversary of the issue date of the note the
average volume-weighted closing price per share for the 15
trading days up to and including the trading day immediately
prior to such anniversary (the “Reset Reference Price”) is
less than the current conversion price, the conversion price
will be reset to the Reset Reference Price, subject to the

floor price of HK$0.50 per share.

The functional currency of the Group is Renminbi and the
conversion option of these notes is denominated in U.S.
dollars. Since the conversion price for the notes is subject to
change, the conversion will not result in settlement by the
exchange of a fixed number of equity instruments. Therefore,
upon application of HKAS 32 and HKAS 39, it was
determined that the notes do not contain any equity
component and the entire notes were designated as
“financial liabilities at FVTPL” which requires the notes to
be carried at fair value at the balance sheet date and the
changes in fair values are recognised in the consolidated
income statement. During the year ended 31 March 2008, a
loss on change in its fair value of approximately
HK$61,789,000 (2007: HK$19,797,000) is recognised in the

consolidated income statement.

ARNRAIREITERE=ZFAFIEAT B
ﬁﬁjr‘@%ﬁzm@/o,ﬁié@EH;@HX%?E‘?"

MRERFTANEG—BF FREROR
HEZEZBEFEHINRSB (RBE
ZB) IEM15ER S B KN FE kT
EB([ET2ZE]) BERERNBRRE
BREHETNRTAEILEE HER
TR A AR A 0.507T AR -

AEBCZNHEEBRARE LEREZ
BRGEERRUETIE - ARER 2R
RER T2 BRI EBENETEH
Eﬁﬂglﬂf/ﬁnn?%"lit’ﬁ’:\ﬁé%m?é;%

SR EAENRREINE NEEE
EERW 6 EEMRERD MEHR
BEEERIRATEFABREZEHE
El REEBRERGEERAUAFET
B HAFEZEZHRGEAKERNRE
B MNEE2008F3A3 1R EFE A
WankANBEREATEEDHEEZEE
#4) 5B 61,789,0007T (20074 : B ¥
19,797,0007T) °



The fair value of the notes at each of the balance sheet
date was calculated using the Monte Carlo Simulation Model

and the Binomial Model. The inputs into the model were as

follows:
2008

Indopark
Stock price IR (& HK$0.2700
Exercise price TEE HK$0.6000
Expected volatility SEEEN A 76.47%
Stock borrowing cost & 17 18 B Bk A 0.91%
Expected dividend yield T8 HA AR B M & 0%
Market yield 45 R & 10.13%

The amount represented unpaid balance of consideration
payable for the acquisition of additional interest in a
subsidiary. The balance was unsecured, interest-free,
repayable by instalments and will be fully repaid in January
2009. Balance at 31 March 2008 has been classified under
current liabilities and is included in trade and other payables
(Note 29).

REEER ER2ATFEFRSRERE
BEREAR ZERAGTE R 2@ A
(=R UNE

2007
Equator Indopark Equator

n/af#@HA HK$0.5300 HK$0.5300
n/afi@HA  HK$0.6000 HK$0.3433

n/afiE A 56.78% 56.78%
n/a7fiE A 3.73% 3.79%
n/afiE A 0% 0%
n/afiE A 13.20% 13.20%

ERSERXTUER —HNBARZ
BIMER 2 BN REZ RIS Z 4
BROEER 22 2HEERERN
20091 A 2 B EE - 7N 20085F3H31H
ZEREBHEFTOBEARDEME W
ANE 5 K& E A A 5 E (M 5E29) °
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The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in the

consolidated balance sheet and the movements during the

year are as follows:

At 1 April 2006
Acquisition of subsidiaries

Disposal of subsidiaries

At 31 March 2007 and
1 April 2007

Exchange realignment

Charged/(credited) to
consolidated income
statement

Effect of change in

tax rate

At 31 March 2008

2006547 1H
L1 PN
HE KB AR

R2007F3A31A K
200744818

3 A

AR T
ek (Gt A)

CEET FE T

720083 H31H

Property,
plant and
equipment
M- KE
KRB
HK$'000
BE¥TT

2,426

2,426
216

128

(602)

2,168

At the balance sheet date, the Group had unrecognised tax
losses of approximately HK$9,586,000 (2007: HK$25,105,000)

available to offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset

has been recognised in respect of the unrecognised tax losses

due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Such

unrecognised tax losses will be carried forward for five years

from respective dates of origination.

EAEHIEE B2 AR B NG L E
BRER RSERBHIRNKEE 2 28
T

Revaluation

of
investment Intangible
properties assets Total
B
REWHE BREE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T
61 - 61
— 25,351 27,777
(61) = (61)
— 25,351 27,777
- 2,101 2,317
- (1,497) (1,369)
- (6,132) (6,734)
- 19,823 21,991

REER RNEBARERHERK N2
RERMIBE B L /A% 9,586,0007T
(20074 : 7% 25,105,0007T) - AR KK
wAN TR TR SRR R BIEE
BRABREHEEE RERERZBIE
EBREEBHABH ZAFAEE.



Shares of HK$0.07 each

Authorised:

At the beginning of the year

Increase of share capital

At the end of the year

Issued and fully paid:

At the beginning of the year

Issue of shares upon

exercise of share options

Issue of shares upon

conversion of convertible

notes

Issue of shares for

acquisition of subsidiaries

At the end of the year

BREEBE0.07T

BT
REF
A SE AN

RER

BETRAR:

REA

TR AR
BT

B RRRER

BT D

WM B A A

TR D

RER

2008
Number of

shares

R&o8E

7,999,999,999

7,999,999,999

3,620,084,734

77,200,000

385,039,820

4,082,324,554

2007
Number of

shares

Bin 2x B

4,999,999,999
3,000,000,000

7,999,999,999

2,885,559,946

411,400,000

123,124,788

200,000,000

3,620,084,734

2008
HK$’000
BETR

560,000

560,000

253,406

5,404

26,953

285,763

2007
HK$'000
BETT

350,000
210,000

560,000

201,989

28,798

8,619

14,000

253,406
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Notes:

On 4 April 2007 and 10 April 2007 respectively, the Company
allotted and issued an aggregate of 62,200,000 shares of HK$0.07
each for cash at the exercise price of HK$0.365 as a result of the

exercise of share options.

On 4 April 2007, the Company allotted and issued 5,000,000 shares
of HK$0.07 each for cash at the exercise price of HK$0.40 as a

result of the exercise of share options.

On 13 August 2007, the Company allotted and issued 10,000,000
shares of HK$0.07 each for cash at the exercise price of HK$0.385

as a result of the exercise of share options.

On 25 May 2007, 13 June 2007, 22 June 2007, 25 June 2007,
3 December 2007, 21 December 2007 and 18 January 2008
respectively, 90,649,576 shares of HK$0.07 each were issued to
the convertible notes holders upon the partial conversion of the
convertible notes of HK$31,120,000 at a conversion price of
HK$0.3433 each.

On 15 February 2008 and 3 March 2008 respectively, 36,056,912
shares of HK$0.07 each were issued to the convertible notes holders
upon the partial conversion of the convertible notes of
HK$7,780,000 at a conversion price of HK$0.2157 each. After then,

the convertible bond of Equator is fully converted during the year.

On 13 June 2007 and 17 August 2007 respectively, 258,333,332
shares of HK$0.07 each were issued to the convertible notes holders
upon the partial conversion of the convertible notes of
HK$155,000,000 at a conversion price of HK$0.60 each.

All the above shares rank pari passu in all respects with other

shares in issue.

M i

20075448 2007548108 AR
BETE ARARRATEEERASEE
0.365 T Al % R 3174 #£62,200,0004% & A% E
EAEK0.07Lz e

R2007F 448 BHREREETE KX2QA
RITEEESRESBE040T BB RHEIT
5,000,000/% F X EE A ¥ 0.0770 2 1D -

R2007F8A13H AR EREETFE AQ
RIRITEESRIRE B 0.385 0 it 8 K 31T
10,000,000/% F iz E1E A ¥ 0.077C 2 B {7 °

2007458258 2007465 138 20074
6722820074 6A25H 2007412838
2007412 A218 2008 1A 188 AR A i
REEREADH X BRAEH31,120,0007T 2
AR EE AR T IRREZ R BN 0.3433
TLE1790,649,576/k B R EE & 10.077T 2
B 17

#2008F2 A 15H &2008F3A3H AR A
REEFE AT D R BB %7,780,0007T 2 A
BIRERE AR URKRETRAEK0.21577T
%%1736,056,912 B R EEE¥0.077T 2 &
3 th 18 * Equatorz Al AR EHE B R F AR
e

7200746 5138 % 200748 A 170 - AR Al 4
MREIEFFE A5 R iR % 155,000,0007T 2 A
AR R HE AN R R AR AR (B B R A 8 0.607T 3
#7258,333,332R BIREEE#0.077T 2 IR 5

tamERDEEMEBHITRODEMETE
EZREER-



The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Option
Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants of the Option
Scheme include full-time employees (including executive
Directors) of the Group. The Option Scheme became effective
on 4 April 1997 (the “1997 Share Option Scheme”) and,
unless otherwise amended or altered, will remain in force

for 10 years from that date.

On 3 October 2006, a new share option scheme (the “2006
Share Option Scheme"”) was adopted by the shareholders of
the Company and the 1997 Share Option Scheme were
terminated accordingly on the same day and no further
options will be granted under the 1997 Share Option Scheme
but in all other respects, the provision of the 1997 Share
Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect in respect
of any options granted prior to the adoption of the 2006
Share Option Scheme and any such options shall continue

to be exercisable in accordance with their terms of issue.

As at 31 March 2008, the total number of shares available
for issue under the 2006 Share Option Scheme was
296,007,405, representing approximately 7.25% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at 31 March 2008
and the date of this Annual Report. Without prior approval
from the Company’s shareholders, the total number of shares
in respect of which options may be granted under the
Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any point in time, and the aggregate
number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
to any individual in any year is not permitted to exceed 1%

of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time.

RARRE —HEERES ([ERE
2l BEUSBREEHARNER KDY
REERERM AR EE - BRES
EvAEAR2EEBERAEE 2 HE
B(BEATES) BRIESIMETHE
B BAIERESTEIK B 1997648 48
BI0OFRAEM ([1997F B ERTS]) -

M 2006F 108 38 * AR & & R K
BB ERTE ([2006F B ERE])
M 19974 AR RE AT I AR A B 4% 4% 1E -
BT e BIRIE1997F B R ET 2R
H o] B AR - 1B B ER 49 2006 4F 8 AR 1
HEZAIMREZEMBRERS
1997 F R ETEIEFMAREM T EMNA
TRMANRER BEMZEEREMNR
BHEBITIERERE T AITE-

F200843A31H ' IRIZ20065F FEAR #E 5T
20 31T IR 17 48 25 296,007,4050% + 16
LH2008F3A31H RAFHRET A A
NEEBITIRALT.25% o REAR TR
RELABER REREAETTREZ
BRESRZBRMDBETEEBARA
RERBEBEBITRN 210% - RREME
FEREMER A LA T2 ERE
R 2 RAD R BT 15 B B AR R E ]
REEZETRMZ1% °
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No amount is payable on acceptance of an offer to grant an
option to subscribe for the shares of the Company granted
pursuant to the 2006 Share Option Scheme (the “Offer”).
The 2006 Share Option Scheme may be exercised at any
time for a period of ten years commencing after a period of
six months from the date of acceptance of the Offer, subject
to the conditions imposed by the board of directors. The
exercise price of the option shares would be at a price equal
to the higher of: (i) the closing price of the shares of the
Company on the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on
the date of offer of the option; (ii) the average closing
prices of the shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange
for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of

offer of the options; and (iii) the nominal value of a share.

During the year ended 31 March 2008, 337,372,000 options
were granted under the 2006 Share Option Scheme to the
eligible participants of the Group. For the year ended 31
March 2007, 56,000,000 options were granted to the eligible
participants of the Group.

BEMRIZ2006F BT BIR B RELR
DA 2 BBHE ([ ]) BABNK
TH2006F FERERT EI AT R B EAER K
B E /N E A BE 2 18+ F A ERERE
TE-EAXBRRESTSRL ZGE B
BEZTEERBSER T Z2ESE ()
RELBREZ AR AERRERM
SR 2 BB 2 W : (i) B IR B BB
2 BRI AEERBBIABARRFR
oz FH T E: R mE-

REZE2008F3A831BILLEE RE
2006F AR IEGTEIM AL E S A2 H
2 AR $£337,372,00010 - B =
2007 3A3MBIEFE EMAEEEE
% 2 B84 % 1156,000,00017 B B& #E -



TRIFBERE1997F BT 2 %2006
FHEBRETS SEN28E (BEE
B)EHBEARREREZFBERTFANZSE

The following table discloses details of the Company’s share
options held by category of participants (including Directors)
under 1997 Share Option Scheme and 2006 Share Option

Scheme and movements in such holdings during the year.

HEEZBHER

Date of At Exercise
grant of 31 March Lapsed/ Exercise  price of
share At Granted Exercise 2007 and Granted  cancelled Exercise At period of share
Category of options 1 April during during 1 April during during during 31 March share  options
participants (Note 1) 2006 the year the year 2007 the year the year the year 2008 options  (Note 2)
#2007
BRE 331R R BRE
RHAM R2006% 2007% EREH R 20085 BRE OKE
SEZER (K1) 4B1B ERBE  ERfR 4818 FRER V43 B 3Lt 3831H TEAE (K2
Directors 13 April 2005 59,800,000 - (2,600,000) 57,200,000 - - (57,200,000) - 12 October 2005 to 0.365
% 2005544130 3 April 2007
2005108120 E
200764838
2 April 2007 - - - - 43,650,000 - - 43,650,000 18 October 2007 to 0.530
200754828 1 October 2010
2007F10718RE
2010510718
15 October 2007 - - - - 14,960,000 - - 14,960,000 1 May 2008 to 0514
2007108158 14 April 2011
2008F581RE
2011548148
Continuous Contract 13 April 2005 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000 - - (5,000,000) - 12 October 2005 to 0.365
Employees 2005%4A 138 3 April 2007
REANNER 20056 10A12RE
20074 4R 38
18 November 2005 26,000,000 - (21,000,000) 5,000,000 = - (5,000,000) = 17 May 2006 to 0.400
20055 114188 3 April 2007
200655R17A %
20074 4R 38
2 April 2007 - - - - 97,270,000  (6,240,000) - 91,030,000 18 October 2007 to 0.530
200754828 1 October 2010
20075107 18R ZE
2010£10F18
15 October 2007 - - - - 39,700,000  (1,120,000) - 38,580,000 1 May 2008 to 0.514
2007%10A 158 14 April 2011
200855R1RZE
2011547148
2 November 2007 - - - - 1,300,000 - - 1,300,000 10 May 2008 to 0.632
2007511428 1 May 2011
200855R10R %
201145818
4 January 2008 - - - - 20,000,000 - - 20,000,000 17 July 2008 to 0.382
200851848 3 July 2011
200857R17R %

01157A38
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Granted
during
the year

FRR

47,382,000

13,750,000

27,760,000

10,000,000

16,090,000

5,510,000

Date of At
grant of 31 March
share At Granted Exercise 2007 and
Category of options 1 April during during 1 April
participants (Note 1) 2006 the year the year 2007
R2007%
BRE 3A31RR
L R2006% 20075
SREEN (H&E1) 4818 EARE  FRAR 451R
Consultants 11 October 2006 - 56,000,000 - 56,000,000
EAA 20065108118
2 April 2007 - - - -
20074 4A28
15 October 2007 - - - -
200745108158
Agents 2 April 2007 - - - -
KB 200744728
15 October 2007 - - - -
2007104 15A
Advisors 2 April 2007 - - - -
B 2007%4A28
15 October 2007 - - - -
20074108158
90,800,000 56,000,000 (23,600,000) 123,200,000 337,372,000
Notes:
1. The vesting period of the share options is from the date of

the grant until the commencement of the exercise period.

2. The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment

in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes

in the Company’s share capital.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to

dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

Exercise

Lapsed/ Exercise  price of
cancelled Exercise At period of share
during during 31 March share  options
the year the year 2008 options  (Note 2)

BhRE
EREX 20085 RRE  EE
/E# ERfE 38318 TEEE (W2

(10,000,000) 46,000,000 11 April 2007 to 0.385
10 April 2010
200754A11RZE
2010544108

(3,000,000) - 44,382,000 18 October 2007 to 0.530
1 October 2010
2007F10R18H
2010610718

- - 13,750,000 1 May 2008 to 0.514
14 April 2011
2008F5A1HE
2011548148

(1,220,000) - 26,540,000 18 October 2007 to 0530
1 October 2010
2007510818RE
2010104 1A

(240,000) - 9,760,000 1 May 2008 to 0514
14 April 2011
200855R1HZE
2011F4714R

(1,130,000) - 14,960,000 18 October 2007 to 0.530
1 October 2010
2007F10A18A Z
2010610718

(370,000) - 5,140,000 1 May 2008 to 0.514
14 April 2011
200855R1HZE
2011548148

(13,320,000) (77,200,000) 370,052,000

GEE

1. BREZEEIERLARETESME
FIsA 7 k-

2. EARREREEHR BITARIAQF
RAHIRE AR B ES B 21T
EEAEHRE-

BRETERTHRAAZTAREINK
RAELERZEN-



The fair value of the Company’s shares at date of issue of
share options during the year is HK$0.53 on 2 April 2007;
HK$0.45 on 15 October 2007; HK$0.57 on 2 November
2007 and HK$0.38 on 4 January 2008 respectively (2007:
HK$0.385).

The fair values of the share options granted during the year
were calculated using the Black-Scholes Pricing Model and

the Binomial Lattice Model. The inputs into model were as

RERNBFTEREZA KRR ZA
FEMR2007F 4828 BB 0.537T:
F 20074 108 158 & & ¥ 0.457T :
R2007F11A2B BB %057t B X
200851 H4H &4 %0.387T (20074 : %
#0.3857T) °

FARLZBREAFEDEAREAR
— R EEEA R - EARFEAG
H-zBEABMAEBNT:

follows:
4 January 2 November 15 October 2 April
2008 2007 2007 2007
20084 20074 2007 2007
184H 11A2H 10H15H 4R 2H
Weighted average g FHRE
share price HK$0.384 HK$0.581 HK$0.471 HK$0.529
Weighted average MEFHTERE
exercise price HK$0.382 HK$0.632 HK$0.514 HK$0.530
Expected volatility T8 B R 1 61.63% 61.14% 60.81% 52.77%
Expected life T8 B £F B 3 1 1 1.5
Risk free rate £ 2 b A 2.7% 1.79% 3.55% 3.69%
Expected dividend yield T8 HA AR B M &= n/a”iE A n/a” 3 n/a” 3 A n/a”~iE A
Valuation model used EAzEERRN Binomial Black- Black- Black-
—EARBT Scholes Scholes Scholes
Bh=w— B — BA5%w—
£ /R Hy &R Hn &R AN

The volatility measured at the standard deviation of expected
share price returns is based on statistical analysis of daily
share prices over 156 weeks immediately proceeding the

grant date.

NFEHREOREEZE ZNE IR
BEEFXLBEHAZ1S6ERNERKREZ
FEt e
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The estimated fair value of options granted on 2 April 2007,
15 October 2007, 2 November 2007 and 4 January 2008
are approximately HK$26,456,000, HK$5,062,000,
HK$110,000 and HK$1,589,000 respectively. During the year
ended 31 March 2007, the estimated fair values of the
options granted on 11 October 2006 was approximately
HK$5,677,000.

The weighted average share price of the Company at the
dates of exercise of the share options was at a range of
HK$0.50 to HK$0.77 (2007: HK$0.34 to HK$0.63).

In April 2005, the Group enrolled all non-PRC employees in
a Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF"”) Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
under the control of trustees. The retirement benefit cost
for the MPF charged to the consolidated income statement
represents contributions payable to the fund by the Group

at rates specified in the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The Group's subsidiaries operating in PRC have participated
in defined contribution retirement schemes organised by the
relevant local government authorities in PRC. All PRC
employees are entitled to an annual pension equal to a
fixed portion of their ending basic salaries at their retirement
dates. The Group is required to make specific contributions
to the retirement schemes at a rate of 12% to 25% of basic
salary of its PRC employees and have no further obligation
for post-retirement benefits beyond the annual contributions

made.

M 20079 48 2H 2007 108 158 +
200711 A28 K% 20081 4B R T 2
BREZHEFATFEINORBE
26,456,0007T * /% #5,062,0007T * /& ¥
110,0007T & /& # 1,589,0007C - R & &
20079F3A318 L E - 120065 107
NMEERHZERE AR TEN RS
¥ 5,677,0007T °

REBRRHEST(H H BR ANQ 8] 2 N F A%
BN FTHEEOSOTEHBE0TIT
(20074 : B #0.34T EHH0.637T) °

FR20055F 4R  AEBLTH BT ERE
EcmulEABeE ([BES
g2ll) mEeHEsEERASER T
ANFTIESI 2 BESRFE R s s &
W 2 RRB K R IEARE B RRE

S ERAEE L EENES 2 K-

REERPHELEECHBRARE 2 NF
Bl G B 7 BT MRS & B 2 T Rt FOR
WRetgl-FrETREEARZARSINE
ERRABEHRZELRTHE 2 EEEH
ERRRFe -AEEAZPEESER
& Z12%E25% MR REHEE L R
HFCBRER 2 FEHRRIN REE W &
HMRKEBR 2 & E-



On 24 October 2007, the Group entered into an agreement
with an independent third party for the disposal of 51%
equity interest in Dehua Guang An, an wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, for consideration of RMB28,600,000
(approximately HK$31,789,000). After the disposal, the
Group remained 49% equity interest in Dehua Guang An.
Upon the completion of disposal, Dehua Guang An ceased
to be a subsidiary of the Group but became an associate of
the Group as the Group is in a position to exercise significant

influence over Dehua Guang An.

On 31 December 2007, the Group entered into agreements
with independent third parties for the disposal of 100%
equity interest in Hefei Tian An Trading Company Limited
("Tian An Trading”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group,
for an aggregate consideration of RMB134,320,000
(approximately HK$149,297,000). The consideration is settled
by the purchaser by way of jointly assuming the debt owed
by the Group to Tian An Trading under the debt transfer

agreement.

During the year ended 31 March 2007, the Group disposed
of two subsidiaries, namely Penmark Limited and Mian Zhu
City Hongsen Glass Products Company Limited respectively.
Glass Products became an available-for-sale investment of

the Group thereafter.

R 2007F 108 248 - A & @ 82 —
BB E=ZFAFIN —EHE N
K{E ARK28,600,0005m (#%5#K
31,789,0007T) HERLELZ (REE 2
EMBARE)ST%RE-REER K&
BRE E(CEL A% HE K%
BEELZTERNEE 2B AT EA
RAEREBZHE RN RBAAEE HiE
CERIEHEATE-

2007124318 - AEEE-—EH 7
FE=ZFFL—EHHH AERKEBARE
134,320,0007T (#77##149,297,0007T)
HEERRLZEEERAA ([RELK
Bl) (REB2EMBAR) 100%MKHE-
BEFREDBRBEEEEHBEZE R RIAL
RABEAEEHRALEE BB HIRAX
fif o

REZE2007F3A318 EFE - AEBH
EMHENBAR DRl ASEMEBRA
AR TMARKBREEER QG KB
EmERARNEENAHEERE-
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The net assets of these subsidiaries at the date of disposal

were as follows:

Assets/(liabilities) disposed of:

Property, plant and equipment

Investment properties
Prepaid lease payments
Trade and other receivables
Inventories
Bank balance and cash
Trade and other payables
Amount due from/(to)
fellow subsidiaries
Taxation payable
Bank borrowings
Deferred tax liabilities

Net assets disposed of
Goodwill disposed of
Remaining interests

in disposed company
Gain/(loss) on disposal

Total consideration

Satisfied by:
Cash consideration
Assuming the debt owed
by the Group

Net cash inflow arising
on disposal:
Cash consideration
Bank balances and
cash disposed of

HEZEE/ (BE)

BREME
BNEE

B 5 N H WK IR

A
RITEBR LA

g5 K B Al A 3R

Y ()

FRH B2 5 5OR

FE IR
RITEE
EREREEE

hE 2 EEFE
HEZHE

EHERARB T 2

HEWE (BE)
BAE

SERPIE
ReHE
EEASEERR

HERELZRSE
MmN
HeRE
H & Z RIT

BmHRkRE

Dehua

Guang An
FElLEZR

HK$'000
BET R

49,458

21,622
2,189
3,752

(5.167)

(13,531)

(985)
(28,899)

28,439
8,628

(13,935)
8,657

31,789

31,789

31,789

31,789

(3,752)

28,037

jiN

HERZEMBRRZEERENT:

HK$'000
BET T

(10,225)

149,297

144,122
11,157

(5,982)

149,297

149,297

149,297

(2)
(2)

Total
&t
2008
HK$'000
BT T

49,458

26,670
2,189
3,754

(15,392)

135,766
(985)
(28,899)

172,561
19,785

(13,935)
2,675

181,086

31,789

149,297

181,086

31,789

(3,754)

28,035

2007
HK$'000
ABETIT

17,343
6,984
1,894
7,124
1,855
3,979

(13,439)

(2,444)
(1,009)
61)

22,226

(5,583)
(10,143)

6,500

6,500

6,500

6,500

(3,979)

2,521



The impact of disposed subsidiaries on the Group results in

the current and prior periods is as follow:

Revenue

Expenses

Profit before tax

Income tax expense

Profit after tax

Cash flows from disposed subsidiaries:
Net cash from operating activities
Net cash used in investing activities

Net cash from financing activities

BEEZHZEDT:

2008
HK$’'000
BT T
PN 83,427
i3 (81,683)
B B AT & 1,744
FTsRiA X (581)
B £ 18 & F 1,163
REeHENBRARZEHSRE:
RETEHEEZIRE FH 16,994
REEHMAZIRE T8 (150)
MEEHEEZRESFEE (13,536)
3,308

HEMBARNHASRERFELBES

2007
HK$'000
BETT

129,895
(123,301)

6,594
(2,844)

3,750

16,658

(1,857)

(14,749)

52
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(i)

(i)

Acquisition of Fujian An Ran

During the year ended 31 March 2007, the Group and
an independent third party entered into two equity
transfer agreements and an operation rights transfer
agreement whereby the Group acquired 100% equity
interest in An Ran Group at a consideration of
RMB104,320,000 (approximately HK$110,793,000) and
acquired its operation rights by issued and allotted
200,000,000 consideration shares at an issue price of
HK$0.40 each. The fair value of the ordinary shares of
the Company, being the average of the closing price
as quoted on the Stock Exchange for the last ten days
prior to the date of the agreement, amounting to
HK$80,000,000.

Acquisition of gas fuel business at Yan Liang
District, Xi‘an City

On 8 June 2006, the Group acquired 70% of equity
interest in a gas fuel business at Yan Liang District,
Xi‘an City for cash consideration of RMB42,500,000
(approximately HK$42,986,000) and set up Xi‘an
Zhongmin Gas Company Limited (Xi‘an Zhongmin). This
transaction has been accounted for using the purchase

method of accounting.

()

(i)

WEEEZAR

HZE2007F3A31BLEEE K&
BB E = A L MIAREEE
Rk - EHEEREERGH A%
AR E AR 104,320,0007T (49
75%110,793,0000T) B R E LA
100% 2 IR # 2 DA B iR B #50.407T
%77 I B 2% 200,000,0008% BZ 19 &
REWBEKLER - XRREBER
ZNF1E (Bifh% B BRI &% 108
R ETAT R 2 FHWRTE) BB
#80,000,0007T °

WREAZTHRRERRER

2006F6 A8H NEE LR SR
8 AR ¥ 42,500,000 (478 %
42,986,0007T) WAL M HERE
ZRRETST0% 2 BRAEI A S AL
HRUBRERAR ([ALXFR]) -
ZXSHEARBEEFEAR



The fair values of assets and liabilities acquired in the RENUBEERBBECATERME

transaction and the goodwill arising are as follows: EZEERTAE:
Gas Fuel
business at
Yan Liang
Fujian District,
An Ran Xi'an City
BETHERE
1 May 2006 8 June 2006
Effective date of acquisition WEzEXRBH 2006%E581H 2006 6A8H
Percentage of equity interests PElERER DL
acquired (voting rights) (E#) 100% 70%
These transactions have been accounted for by the purchase ZEXHERBRESTHEAAK.

method of accounting.
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BB MR

For the year ended 31 March 2008

#H E2008F3A31H It FE
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38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES/BUSINESS

(Continued)

Acquisition during the year ended 31 March 2007

(Continued)

The net assets acquired, being the fair value,

in the

transaction, and the goodwill on acquisition or discount

arising, are as follows:

W B DR %K ()

HZEZ2007E3A831ALEER 2]

B ()

RPN E 2 EEFE (LA FER
B REBEL ZAEHMEE ZITEL

™~

Gas fuel business at

Fuiian An Ran Yan Liang District, Xi'an City Total
BRZA BXTHRERRER Eh
Acquiree’s Acquiree’s Acquiree’s
carrying carrying carrying
amount amount amount
before  Fair value before  Fair value before  Fair value
combination adjustments  Fair value combination adjustments  Fair value combination adjustments  Fair value
HUER BUBEA BUBA
REBH REGH RESH
ZREE ATEHE AVE ZEAE ATEEE ATE ZEAE ATERE AVE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
E¥fr  E%Tn  A%Tx  BETn  BETr  BETr Bkt EETn B%Tx
Property, plant and equipment nE BERXE 287,655 6,410 294,065 50,753 3,846 54,599 338,408 10,256 348 664
Investment properties RENE 41 = 421 = = = 4 = 4,221
Prepaid lease payments B 11,243 = 11,243 = 505 505 11,43 505 11,748
Intangible assets BVAE 23,72 74,791 98,513 - 27,758 27,758 3722 102,549 126,271
Interests in associates REENRER 4,806 = 4,806 = = = 4,806 = 4,806
Inventories E& 19,011 (2,363) 16,648 334 - 334 19,345 (2.363) 16,982
Trade and other receivables BAREBERHE 106,858 (15,833) 91,025 6,487 (991) 5,496 113,345 (16,824) 96,521
Available-for-sale investments ARHERE 656 - 656 40 = 40 696 = 696
Bank balances and cash R ﬁ?&}ﬁﬁ 18,547 - 18,547 11,392 - 11,392 29,939 - 29,939
Taxation recoverable/(payable) qkE/ (fE WE 971 (1,083) (112) 4 12 54 1,013 (1,071) (58)
Trade and other payables E%&Mﬂgﬁ (156,695) (6,776)  (163,471) (36,059) - (36,059)  (192,754) (6,776)  (199,530)
Deferred tax liabilities BRKEAE = 1,177 (@1,177) - - - - (21,177) (7,177)
Bank borrowings BIEE (264,359) - (264359 (6,830) - (6,830 (271,189) - (271,189
56,636 27,369 84,005 26,159 31,130 57,289 82,795 58,499 141,29
Minority interests PERRER (55,584) (17,187) (12,1m)
Goodwil G 162,372 2,884 165,256
Total consideration BRE 190,793 42,986 233,779
Satisfied by: XAAR
Cash consideration ReRE 110,793 42,986 153,779
Issue of shares BIRG 80,000 = 80,000
190,793 42,986 233,779
Cash outflow arising from REEEZRERL
the transaction
Cash consideration A 110,793 42,986 153,779
Bank balances and cash acquired WEsTERRRS (18,547) (11,392) (29,939)
Net cashflow of cash and BeRBEEEEAL
cash equivalents RERHFE 92,246 31,594 123,840
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The goodwill arising on the acquisition of Fujian An Ran
and Xi‘an Zhongmin are attributable to the anticipated

profitability of the gas pipeline connection business.

The subsidiaries acquired contributed to the Group’s turnover
of HK$367,189,000 and contributed to the Group’s profit
for the year of HK$94,751,000 for the period between the

date of acquisition and the balance sheet date.

If the acquisition of Fujian An Ran and Xi‘an Zhongmin had
been completed on 1 April 2006, total group revenue for
the year ended 31 March 2007 would have been
HK$532,865,000 and profit for the year ended 31 March
2007 would have been HK$33,676,000. The proforma
information is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indicative revenue and results of operations
of the Group that actually would have been achieved had
the acquisition been completed on 1 April 2006, nor is it

intended to be a projection of future results.

During the year ended 31 March 2008, the Group acquired
an exclusive rights of purchase from an ex-associate — Yan
Bian Hua Xin Oil Exploitation Company Limited at a
consideration of HK$12,282,000. At 31 March 2008, the
Group paid HK$8,947,000 with the balance remaining in
trade and other payables.

R RRE AR AR RAEL 2
B BIR MR R RS2 B

RAFEWER R&EE B HE WEHB
NAEAEAREB R E367,189,0007T
EEBNANEEERE® 94,751,000

7Ttk Al °

WP 2006F 4 1B MBRELAR
B R R HE2007F3A31BIEFEZ
BwEEF W A & AE%532,865,0007T * M &
Z2007F3A3MBIEFEZ R BEE
33,676,000T B EBRHEH R ZE T —
TE I R 1 U BE 7R 2006 F4 A1 B ek AN &
EERAMBIETRERARKEE XS
N TR RREE 2 TEAR -

REE2008F3A31B LFE  AEB L
K8 % 12,282,000 T A AT B & A &) —
EEMERARAZEBRAAKE I8
BREBEER N 2008F3A318 K&
B2 8 %8,947,0007T R EE D 5T A
B REMERNKIE.
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Save as disclosed elsewhere, the Group entered into

the following material related party transactions.

Balance at the balance sheet date:

Amounts due from associates/
ex-associate
Zhongmin Zai Xian (Beijing)
Technology Development Limited
Yan Bian Hua Xin Oil Exploitation
Co., Ltd.

Amounts due to associates
Dehua Guang An
Fuzhou An Ran Ju Pipeline Gas
Co., Ltd.

Amount of transactions
during the year:

Dehua Guang An (note)
Sales of Gas Fuel to
Purchase of Gas Fuel from
Interest payable to

thereafter.

& i st i ) B, g

NGIE/ S|

FREK HER) B

ZRARRAA

HIE 22 M B 3 O B 3%

BR QA

& {1 Bt & 1 ] FROR
IER
BMZAREEE

AR AR AR

VI

k>

FARZ R

i EZ (M)
HEMRT
BEMRB
e 2 8

Dehua Guang An was a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group in
year ended 31 March 2007. During the year ended 31 March 2008,
the Group disposed of 51% of its interest and remained 49%

equity interest in Dehua Guang An. It is an associate of the Group

Remuneration for key management personnel which

comprises mainly the Directors is disclosed in note

10(a).

BREMEBOBREN AEEEERH
BALTETTIEARS:

REEB 2R

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI T AETIT
- 7,066

3,668 9,084
3,668 16,150
4,358 -
16,339 -
20,697 -
578 -

75 -

943 -

P 2 -

B ZE2007F3A31BLFE EELERAEAE
Ee2EHEA 2 ME QG -HREE2008F3831
HIEFE AEELEES1% 5 WRER
BlEERAO% 2 RIE-ZARILEKANEER

Z & nE

TZEEAB (XTERESR) 2B
A B 5 10(a) W 3 58 -



The Group leases its investment properties, as set out
in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements,
under operating lease arrangements with leases
negotiated for terms ranging from three to eight years.
The terms of the leases generally also require the
tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic
rent adjustments according to the then prevailing

market conditions.
At the balance sheet date, the Group had contracted

with tenants for the following future minimum lease

payments.

Within one year —&FR

In the second to fifth years, inclusive HE_-_ZEFRHF (£

After five years hF &

Property rental income earned during the year was
approximately HK$301,000 (2007: HK$89,000).
Properties held at the balance sheet date are expected
to generate rental yields of 1% to 2% (2007: 1% to
2%) on an ongoing basis. All of the properties held
have committed tenants for the next seven (2007:

seven) years.

MERE IS SRR L 18FT# - AN &
ERBECEHERHEREREY
¥ rEnrEAEFHA3EsF M
EfF—RERAPRERNMIS
ER #XRERREEHES
FEE o

REEB AEEEHEFFITEAN
ZARRKEBEERDWT :

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

254 125

EEEMS) 610 270
16 71

880 466

REAEE MEHRHSKBRADLDR
7 % 301,0007T (20074 : & ¥
89,0007T) “REE BRI B 2 WHETE
BB R 1%ZE2% (20074 :

1% ZE2%) 2 HEEIHRE-FRHEYE
RAREF (2007F :+F) BB E
EaEish
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Certain office properties leased by the Group are under
operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties are
negotiated for terms of one to three years. Rents are
fixed for the relevant lease term. The minimum lease
payment under operating lease for rented premises
during the year ended 31 March 2008 is HK$3,139,000
(2007: HK$2,466,000).

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

Within one year —&FR

In the second to fifth years, inclusive HE_-_ZEFRHF (£

BREBEEHERY AEEAES
TRMRAEYE LR RELDHFH
R—E=ZF-REBAEEHANES
Wi E - E E2008F3831H I
FEREBEVERBLLEHEZ &
K7 £ &% ¥ 3,139,000t (2007
B2 466,0000T) °

il

I

REER AEBEREBETEIEL
EHEZARKEHESAENT:

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

1,836 1,080

EEEMS) 1,193 357
3,029 1,437



Contracted for but not provided
in the consolidated

financial statements

Capital expenditure in respect of
investment in an associate

investment in a subsidiary

Commitments in respect of
the acquisition for:

property, plant and equipment

ERQERR
REMBRER LBE

BARRX
RELE D EIRE
R B QTR E

B 2 AE:

ME BB REE

Apart from the above, the Group had no other material

commitments or contingent liabilities at the balance sheet

date.

2008 2007

HK$'000 HK$'000
BWT T AETIT
- 9,690

30,000 16,150
302,783 297,769
332,783 323,609

B EXFESN AEENEE AW EE
MEBREERKARAEE-
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Assets with the following carrying amounts have been THEEE - EECEAUEAER TA

pledged to secure bank borrowings of the Group. SERTEEZER
2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT I
Property, plant and equipment Y -HWEREZE 14,477 15,529
Investment properties "EWEHE 8,370 1,756

Intangible assets — exclusive rights of

BIEE - BRELEN

operations 52,176 49,019
Prepaid lease payments in respect of MImERAECENES

land use rights 17,860 11,184

92,883 77,488

In addition to the above, the Group has also pledged its BR DA Pt 9N - K62 B 75 9 Bl 7 20084

rights to receive fee income of certain subsidiaries in favour N 2007F3A31HEHES FTHEQ A

of banks to secure banking facilities granted to the Group WEETRITUMEAR TAEBERITE

as at 31 March 2008 and 2007 respectively. B 2R



On 12 May 2008, there was an earthquake with a magnitude
of 8.0 on the Richter scale struck Wenchuan area of Sichuan
Province, the PRC. The urban and rural areas of Bei Chuan
County, Mian Zhu City and Han Wang Town, where certain
of the Company’s subsidiaries are located, were affected. In
the earthquake, a considerable portion of assets and
operating facilities of wholly owned subsidiaries of the Group
namely as Mian Zhu City Han Wang Natural Gas Co., Ltd.;
Mian Zhu City Hong Sen Natural Gas Co., Ltd.; Mian Zhu
City Long Teng Gas Installation Co., Ltd.; Longxing (Yan
Ting) Natural Gas Co., Ltd. and Bei Chuan County Zhongmin
Gas Co., Ltd. (collectively referred to as the “Sichuan
Companies”) in Mianzhu City, Han Wang Town, and Bei
Chuan County, Sichuan Province were seriously damaged
and there were casualties among the staff and families, which
caused material disruption to the operation of the supply of

Gas Fuel and gas pipeline connection business.

Meanwhile, certain assets of Chongging Zhongmin Gas Co.,
Ltd. and Xi‘an Zhongmin (collectively referred to as
the “Affected Neighbouring Companies”), wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Group located in Chongging City and
Yan Liang District, Xi‘an City, both surrounding Sichuan
Province, respectively were also damaged during the

earthquake.

200845128 - RBP4 30 1| 4 [ 2
ERTHEHIS.OMME A A RIHE QR
FRIE LI 85 - 4347 T ROZ RE SE 03 T %
EBNMEHZIZE N EFR KA
R L) B 4T SRR B R B 2
BB ARG MEERARER AR
BOITARKARBRAR BITHRER
MREEEREA AR BEERKE
REEARRIENGEFRRABRA A
(mBERTIIARL) BRE S EERK
EREEXBREERZ WEEIRRES
T ERHERRREREBRREBLR
Eaal -

A EEFRMRERAFAEALTR
(B SOZZEAR]) (IRM
EMEEEMRARTERENEEK
BABMETEERDINBESIR

L
o
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Notes to the Conso

R R R AR MY A

For the year ended 31 March 2008
B £ 2008F3A31H IEF E

idated Financial Statements

44, POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT/

44. FEBRBIE HWEBES

IMPAIRMENT LOSS IN RESPECT OF B (&)
EARTHQUAKE (Continued)
Impairment in respect of earthquake was recognised as HEREEROT
follows:
Affected
Sichuan Neighbouring
Companies Companies Total
i
milas ZXELAH &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB T T BB T T BB T T
Property, plant and equipment ME -BE &K 167,103 51,498 218,601
Goodwill kS 43,756 5,000 48,756
Prepaid lease payments BRES 4,459 - 4,459
Available-for-sale investment AHEERE 6,147 = 6,147
Trade and other receivables B 5 K H fth W KB 633 - 633
Inventories FE 1,326 = 1,326
223,424 56,498 279,922
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As assessed by Asset Appraisal Limited, independent qualified
professional valuers not connected with the Group,
impairment loss of approximately HK$56,498,000 was
recognised for property, plant and equipment of and
goodwill attributable to the Affected Neighbouring
Companies in the consolidated income statement. In
addition, the Directors are of the opinion that no future
economic benefits would be generated from certain assets
of Sichuan Companies, and accordingly impairment loss of
approximately HK$223,424,000 was recognised in the

consolidated income statement.

As of the date of these consolidated financial statements,
the Group has neither received nor been entitled to receive
any compensation from the insurance companies or
government. The Directors are of the opinion that the Group
had no significant contingent liabilities and capital
commitment arising from the earthquake at the balance

sheet date.

BEBIGEREXMERBEENE
BERARAR (EARNEEYEEE) T
Iz hE REeRaRTPERHOR
HERNRZME - BERZBUREEZ
B 5 18 49 /& 75 15 56,498,000 ° IE Sh »
EERBEARNNRAZETEEE
RSB MR e R P g
KB FE R (B E5 18 40 7 %6 223,424,0007T

RUEEAMBHRERTNE 2R AEEL
AU B B W ER B R R R B SR
BEZEABE-BESRA REEAR
SETENBEMARTAERNKAE
B R EARNALE-
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Balance sheet information of the Company at the balance ARRAREERBZEEAEREHNBIE:
sheet date includes:

2008 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T 7T
Non-current assets ERENEE
Property, plant and equipment Yz HWEREZE 793 1,142
Investments in subsidiaries RB AR ZKE 508,992 391,992
Amount due from a subsidiary & U — 5 B B A B FRIE = 117,000
509,785 510,134
Current assets MEEE
Other receivables H b e W s IR 669 519
Amounts due from subsidiaries & W BT B~ B FR 1A 116,555 116,242
Financial assets at fair value BAFEEGFABREZ
through profit or loss SREE 102,042 =
Bank balances and cash RITHEGB MRS 46,129 80,345
265,395 197,106
Current liabilities mEAaE
Other payables H b JE - 5K IR 3,600 15,704
Income tax payables FES IR 5,042 -
Convertible notes AR EIE - 62,658
8,642 78,362
Net current assets MENEEFE 256,753 118,744
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRDEE 766,538 628,878
Non-current liabilities EREBEE
Convertible notes TR EE 157,878 348,316
Net assets BEFE 608,660 280,562
Share capital (Note 34) A A (BT 5E34) 285,763 253,406
Reserves (Note 46) & (B 5T46) 322,897 27,156
Total equity B 608,660 280,562
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The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements

therein for the current and prior year are presented in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 79 of

the consolidated financial statements.

The following table sets out the components of the reserves

of the Company and the movements thereof during the

current and prior year.

At 1 April 2006
Issue of shares upon
exercise of share options
Issue of shares on conversion
of convertible notes
Issue of shares for
the acquisition of subsidiaries
Recognition of
equity-settled share-based
payment
Loss for the year

At 31 March 2007 and
1 April 2007
Issue of shares upon exercise
of share options
Issue of shares on conversion
of convertible notes
Recognition of equity-settled
share-based payment
Forfeited of share options
Loss for the year

At 31 March 2008

720065 4A 18
IR B RE
BIRG
RBABRERE
BIRG
KENBRAE
BED
NEREERNA
AR

FRER

M2007F3A318 &
2007F4F18

T1E R R
Bk

HATRARERE
Bkh

NEREERR 2
ER AR

3 B R

ENER

2008534310

Share
Premium
KRB EE

HK$'000
EETTL

164,699
23,091
43,992

66,000

297,782
29,812

287,932

615,526

Contributed
surplus
(Note)

RAER

(R3)
HK$'000
EETTL

101,688

101,688

101,688

AEBzFEEBRIERBAIRBES
BEZBHE2INEEMBERRETIAL

BAREEDE-

TREINARQR ZFEE AR RE

RENMRBEEE 2 #

Share-based
Capital compensation

contribution reserve
DRGBX M2

EAEE kAL
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BB
7,482 7,056
- (1,821)

- 5,677

7,482 10,912
- (6,663)

- 31,551

- (1,425)

7,482 34,375

Accumulated

losses Total
2itE#R @it
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETE  ABTR
(331,819) (50,894)
- 21,270

- 43,992

- 66,000

- 5,677
(58,889) (58,889)
(390,708) 27,156
- 23,149

- 287,932

- 31,551

1,425 -
(46,891) (46,891)
(436,174) 322,897
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Note:

The contributed surplus represents the difference between the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued and the value of net
assets of the underlying subsidiaries acquired. Under the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the Company may not declare
or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus,
if there are reasonable grounds for believing that (i) the Company
is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as
they become due; (ii) the realisable value of the Company’s assets
would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its

issued share capital and share premium account.

B = -

ERBRBRRRARFCHTRNEEEEK
BRBANBARAZEEFEZZR - REAR
ZE1981ERANE (BER])  RRENTBER
TAREEZARRT RIORNREHEL D
& ANA RHPEMBEOERBRE IR IR
S AE D IRTE & AT AL R AR 52 BIHIE T« (ii)
ARZEENRESRALINEAR B
TR A R B A7 i (B B 2 48 %8 -



Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at 31

March 2008 are as follows:

Name of company
ARER

ERPEREERAA
("Beijing Zhongmin Gas
Co., Ltd.")

BHMERRARERA R
("Mian Zhu City Han Wang
Natural Gas Co., Ltd.")

BOTARKAR
EREMERLA
(“Mian Zhu City Hong Sen
Natural Gas Co., Ltd.")

BImEBMREZE
EREMERA
("Mian Zhu City Long Teng
Gas Installation Co., Ltd.")

EERERREREMEAR
("Longxing (Yan Ting)
Natural Gas Co., Ltd.")

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
HMEIL
Rt

PRC*
REY

PRC*
RE?

PRC*
PE

PRC*
RE?

PRC*
REY

Capital
contributed
by the Group
xE

US$60,000,000
60,000,000% 7T

RMB1,000,000
AR #1,000,0007T

RMB16,308,800
AR % 16,308,800

RMB7,633,400
AR #7,633,4007T

RMBS5,000,000
AR ¥5,000,0007T

Group
effective
interest
EEEER
EE

%

100

100

20083 A318

AFHBEMT:
Directly Indirectly
BB &

% %

100 =

- 100

= 100

- 100

- 100

ARARZETEMBLR

Principal activities

TEEK

Investment Holding

REZRK

Distribution and supply of
Gas Fuel

DHRBERR

Distribution and supply of
Gas Fuel
AEREERE

Installation of Gas Fuel
distribution facilities

KRMREBRIE

Distribution and supply of
Gas Fuel and installation
of Gas Fuel distribution
facilities

DR BEERE R

KRMREERIE
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Name of company

DEEH

LNEFRARERA A
("Bei Chuan County
Zhongmin Gas Co., Ltd.")

EEPRMABBAOA
(“Chongging Zhongmin
Gas Co., Ltd.")

EYETRMRERAA
("Fu Ping County Zhongmin
Gas Co., Ltd.")

ARPRBAERAA
("Xi'an Zhongmin Gas

Co., Ltd.")

BltrRMBRER AT
("Huaihua Zhongmin Gas

Co., Ltd.")

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
B Ye
Bt

PRC*
i

PRC*
RE?

PRCH
;F ##

PRC
i

PRC
G

Capital
contributed
by the Group
A&HE

xE

RMB6,000,000
A K %6,000,0007T

RMB4,080,004
AR #4,080,0047T

RMB10,000,000
AR %10,000,0007

RMB40,000,000
A #40,000,0007T

RMB18,180,000
AR 18,180,0007T

Group
effective
interest
AKBER  Directly Indirectly Principal activities
i 83 ME TEXR
% % %
100 - 100  Distribution and supply of
Gas Fuel
DR BERR
100 - 100  Distribution and supply of
Gas Fuel and installation
of Gas Fuel distribution
facilities
DR BERR
REZMRE BRI
80 - 80  Distribution and supply of
Gas Fuel
DR BERR
70 - 70  Distribution and supply of
Gas Fuel, design of
Gas Fuel pipeline and
related maintenance
DHRBERE
Rt MREER
HREE
55 = 55  Transportation and

distribution of LPG and
retail of bottled LPG
BB RRERRDHER

RETH



Name of company

DEEH

BEMNPRBRERB A
("Guizhou Zhongmin Gas

Co., Ltd.")

EHPRBRRERLA
("Yunnan Zhongmin Gas

Co., Ltd.")

Bl RAMREHEERAR
("Huaihua Zhongmin
Petroleum Gas Supply
Co., Ltd.")

BEATAMR
REBERRAA
("Fujian Province An Ran

Gas Investment Co., Ltd.")

HIRAMRERAA
(“Nanping An Ran Gas
Co., Ltd.")

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
B Ye
Bt

PRC
E

PRC
E

PRC
E

PRC
E

PRC
E

Capital
contributed
by the Group
A&HE

xE

RMB20,000,000
A K #20,000,0007T

RMB7,560,000
AR #7,560,0007T

RMB26,000,000
A K #26,000,0007T

RMB120,000,000
AR #120,000,0007T

RMB10,000,000
AK%10,000,0007

Group
effective
interest
EEEER
i

%

100

100

Directly

E#
%

Indirectly
CE:S
%

100

100

Principal activities

FEEK

Transportation and
distribution of LPG and
retail of bottled LPG

Bl RARES R HER
BETE

Transportation and
distribution of LPG and
retail of bottled LPG

Bl RARES R HER
BETE

Transportation and
distribution of LPG

Bl RARESR R D H

Investment holding

REZRK

Supply of Gas Fuel and
installation of Gas Fuel
distribution facilities

HERRRERMR

EBR I
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Name of company

DEEH

REZRMAERRA
("Changle An Ran Gas
Co., Ltd.")

BNAEREIZAEE
MRARAR
(“Fuzhou Development
Area Futie An Ran Pipe
Gas Co., Ltd.")

KRZREBRRERRA

("Yong'an An Ran Gas
Co., Ltd.")

BRTRANRERAF

("Fuding City An Ran Gas

Co., Ltd.")

ERLZARRERAF
("Long Yan An Ran Gas
Co., Ltd.")

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
B Ye
Bt

PRC
i

PRC
i

PRC#
EF ##

PRC
G

PRC#
EF ##

Capital
contributed
by the Group
A&HE

xE

RMB10,000,000
AR ¥#10,000,0007T

RMB600,000
AR #600,0007T

RMB10,000,000
AE#10,000,0007T

RMB3,550,000
AR #3,550,0007T

RMB10,000,000
AE#10,000,0007T

Group
effective
interest
EEEER
i E#

% %

Directly

100 =

60 =

90 =

26 =

100 =

Indirectly
CE:S
%

100

60

90

51

100

Principal activities

FEEK

Supply of Gas Fuel and
installation of Gas Fuel
distribution facilities

HERERERRR

BERKE

Supply of Gas Fuel and
installation of Gas Fuel
distribution facilities

HEMR

r

BERE

ERMA

Supply of Gas Fuel and
installation of Gas Fuel
distribution facilities

HERERERNRR

r s

BERE

Supply of Gas Fuel and
installation of Gas Fuel
distribution facilities

MR

r s

BERIE

ERMA

Supply of Gas Fuel and
installation of Gas Fuel
distribution facilities

HERERERNRR

r

BERE



Name of company

DEEH

BRZAREEMABRAT
("Luoyuan An Ran Pipeline

Gas Co., Ltd.")

BMNAEREZAREERAF
(“Fuzhou Development
Area An Ran Gas
Co., Ltd.")

EMZABRER A
("Zhangzhou An Ran Gas
Co., Ltd.")

BIRAMRBRAA
(“"Lianjiang An Ran Gas

Co., Ltd.")

Place of Capital

incorporation/ contributed

establishment by the Group

gZRRYL  AKE
B 37 35 B E

PRC RMB3,000,000
3 AR #3,000,0007T
PRC RMB10,000,000

3 A E#10,000,0007T
PRC RMB90,000,000

H A E#90,000,0007T
PRC RMB 10,000,000

H A E#10,000,0007T

Group
effective
interest

AEEER  Directly Indirectly

B# HE i &

% % %

100 - 100

100 - 100

100 - 100

100 - 100

Principal activities

FEEK

Supply of Gas Fuel and
installation of Gas Fuel
distribution facilities

HERRRERMR

BERE

Supply of Gas Fuel and
installation of Gas Fuel
distribution facilities

HERRRERME

r

BERIE

Supply of Gas Fuel and
installation of Gas Fuel
distribution facilities

HERRRERME

BERE

Supply of Gas Fuel and
installation of Gas Fuel
distribution facilities

HERRRERME

r s

BERIE
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Name of company

DEEH

BEEZRARERAA
("Minging Guang An
Natural Gas Co., Ltd.")

BEARRERAT
(“Ningde An Ran Gas
Co., Ltd.")

Bl

EREARABRRERAA
("Zhangpu An Ran Gas
Co., Ltd.")

REZABRERAA
("Longhai An Ran Gas
Co., Ltd.")

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
B Ye
Bt

PRC
E

PRC
P

PRC
P E

PRC
P E

Capital Group
contributed effective
by the Group interest
31 AREER
xE B#
%
RMB20,000,000 100
AR %20,000,0007C
RMB10,000,000 51
AR %10,000,0007C
RMB1,000,000 100
AR 1,000,0007C
RMB5,000,000 100

AR #5,000,0007T

Directly

E#
%

Indirectly
CE:S
%

100

51

100

100

Principal activities

FEEK

Supply of Gas Fuel and
installation of Gas Fuel
distribution facilities

HERERERRR

BERKE

Supply of Gas Fuel and
installation of Gas Fuel
distribution facilities

HEMR

r

BERE

ERMA

Supply of Gas Fuel and
installation of Gas Fuel
distribution facilities

HERERERNRR

.

BERE

Supply of Gas Fuel and
installation of Gas Fuel
distribution facilities

MR

r s

BERIE

ERMA



i Wholly foreign-owned enterprises registered in the PRC.

il Sino-foreign joint equity enterprises registered in the PRC.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities during

the year and at the end of the year.

All of the above subsidiaries operate principally in their

respective place of incorporation/establishment.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results
or net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in

particulars of excessive length.

The English names of the PRC companies referred to above
in this note represent management’'s best efforts in
translating the Chinese names of those companies as no

English names have been registered or available.

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform

with current year’s presentation.

# RPBEEMzIEBEERE-

Mo RPREMRzFIEEREDRE.

FARBEEAFETE WEARMESR
TERERES

FELANBAREEAERSR B
XS,/ RS B AR o

ERFAINIZARRRIZHIB AR RHALE
B REREEFEFEATE Mg
HpERRZF B EFNAREREE
FBRITEe-

2 N A /NI ER Ri 3 =1
AR B BUL R R AR A HE
REEBHARTXEREABE

ETHBEFEENRRNARFE
ERITERTE—He
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The following is a summary of the published results and of the

assets, liabilities and minority interests of the Group for the five

financial years ended 31 March 2008.

Turnover

Profit/(loss) before tax

Tax

Profit/(loss) for the year

Attributable to:
Equity holders of
the Company

Minority interests

Total assets

Total liabilities

Net assets

Minority interests

Note:

policies for the adoption of the new HKFRSs.

]

BR B A s A,
(B1])
B

AEZEM,/
(B18)

DRI
ENYNSIE? 33
FAA

DB R

E 3
cRt  CRb

T
it

BN

pily
i

BEEFE

> B R A 25

2008
HK$'000
BET R

619,676

(300,661)
(8,739)

(309,400)

(309,456)
56

(309,400)

1,365,454
(648,469)

716,985

(66,089)

The result of the year ended 31 March 2004 has not been B 7

restated for the effect of the changes to the Group's accounting

REBEE2008F3A31B It AEABREE 2
EE BEBERLVERRES 2T BREERE N
T

Year ended 31 March

BZ3A3MHLEE
2007 2006 2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT A¥Tr ABAET
532,417 240,607 81,080 38,243
49,381 (35,711) 27,435 (9,024)
(15,917) (19,400) (11,603) (135)
33,464 (55,111) 15,832 (9,159)
22,123 (56,061) 15,336 (9,132)
11,341 950 496 (27)
33,464 (55,111) 15,832 (9,159)
1,436,863 496,268 260,351 72,053
(867,309)  (219,080) (92,952) (38,711)
569,554 277,188 167,399 33,342
(66,033) (4,713) (1,834) (274)

AEBEBWEREABRMNFTE ST REAER
BYSHBUREBERN I EMEINEE
2004F3A31HIEFE 2 ¥4



S5 i Bl

Distribution of businesses

(BLZE2008F3H31H)
(For the year ended 31 March 2008)

Jb ¢l

Beijing City @
PRELR

Zhong Min Zai Xia

itJIIER
Bei Ch Project

IE .

REBEEBREAT

The provinces in which the Group has businesses

ong Min

Q@ FEEREEENREEEBRRALBARERY

ROfEHE ) 81E - #F281EEH A Al)

The Group’s investment on gas pipeline projects (The operation
of Fujian An Ran coveres 8 regions out of 9 regions in Fujian
province, with a total of 28 project companies)

AEERER(CABRSLETERE (BLLER
BEELPRARARMELCHREHQFMEER)

The Group’s investment on wholesale & retail of LPG projects
(Huai Hua project includes 2 projects: Huai Hua Zhongmin Gas
Company & Huai Hua Zhongmin Petroleum Gas Supply Company)

AEBREHMIER
(BREETRMRRALTRER2MEEE)

The Group’s other investment (including 2 projects:
Yan Bian Zhongmin Gas & Zhongmin Zai Xian)



P REKREBERZ2EA
Chinese People Holdings Company Limited

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability B ZEZEZ M7 2 BREE L)
(Stock Code B #X55 : 681)
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